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. years of experience
company proflle 33 anos de experiencia
EVERTEC, Inc. (NYSE: EVTC) is a leading full
service transaction processing company in

Latin America focused on simplifying professionals
commerce for merchants, financial institutions, profesionales
government agencies and consumers. 9

We provide mission critical technology solutions

that enable our customers to issue, process and operations in countries
accept transactions securely. We provide these operaciones en paises

end-to-end transaction-processing solutions
across several channels and geographies.

With 33 years of experience in the transaction serving clients in COl{ntries
processing industry, we employ over 2,500 dando servicio en paises
professionals, operate in 10 countries and serve

customers with diverse businesses across 26

countries.

perfil de la empresa

Evertec, Inc. (NYSE: EVTC), es una compania lider que ofrece
servicios de procesamiento de transacciones en América Latina,
enfocada en simplificar el comercio para negocios, instituciones
financieras, agencias de gobierno y consumidores.

Ofrecemos soluciones tecnoldgicas criticas que le permiten a

nuestros clientes emitir, procesar y aceptar transacciones de manera
segura. Brindamos estas soluciones completas a través de numerosos
canales y regiones.

Con 33 anos de experiencia en la industria de procesamiento de transacciones,
empleamos mds de 2,500 profesionales, operamos en 10 paises y servimos a clientes con
operaciones diversas en 26 paises.

Evertec®, ATH Movil®, ATH Business™, paystudio by evertec®, and pvot by evertec® are trademarks of Evertec, Inc. or its
subsidiaries in the United States of America and/or other countries.



to our valued shareholders

As we reflect on this past year, we are reminded
of our values and culture at Evertec. Our
commitment to our customers, team members,
communities and shareholders has enabled us
to become the partner of choice, a key pillar that
will drive our next chapter of growth. In 2021,
we not only delivered record financial results
but also continued to make strides in our
ongoing  strategic  transformation. We
announced the successful extension of key
contracts with our largest customer, Popular,
Inc., important expansions with key clients in
Latin America, as well as our first acquisition
since the beginning of the pandemic, which
extends our footprint and our position as the
leading payments processor in Latin America.
All these wins demonstrate our commitment to
the region, our ability to meet our customers’
needs and further evidence that we have
become the partner of choice.

The over-arching goal of establishing partnerships,
has driven our strategic imperatives since 2015. As
a result, Evertec is well positioned to capitalize on
the significant opportunity that lies ahead while
creating meaningful, long-term value for our
shareholders.

a nuestros valiosos accionistas

Al reflexionar sobre lo acontecido el ano pasado,
recordamos nuestros valores y la cultura de Evertec.
Nuestro compromiso con el servicio y el enfoque en
nuestros  clientes, empleados, comunidades y
accionistas nos ha permitido convertirnos en el socio
preferencial o “partner of choice” de nuestros clientes,
un pilar clave que impulsard una nueva etapa de
crecimiento para Evertec. En el 2021, no solo tuvimos
un ano récord en términos de resultados financieros,
sino que continuamos avanzando en el camino de
nuestra transformacion estratégica. Anunciamos fa
exitosa extension de contratos claves con nuestro
cliente mds grande, Popular, Inc, logramos
importantes negocios y expansion de relaciones con
clientes claves en América Latina, y anunciamos fa
primera adquisicion desde el comienzo de la pandemia.
Estos factores amplian nuestra huella geogrdfica y
nuestra posicion como lideres en el procesamiento de
pagos en América Latina. Todos estos logros
demuestran nuestro compromiso con la region, la
capacidad de satisfacer las necesidades de nuestros
clientes y evidencian que nos hemos convertido en un
socio preferencial.

El objetivo de establecer alianzas en la region ha guiado
nuestros esfuerzos e iniciativas estratégicas desde el
2015. Como resultado, en Evertec estamos en una
excelente posicion para capitalizar en nuevas
oportunidades, mientras creamos un valor significativo
a largo plazo para nuestros accionistas.
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strategic imperatives
for the partner of choice

Since 2015, we have been in the process of a
strategic transformation that has included S key
imperatives as we aspire to become the ‘partner of
choice’ for our customers. The first

imperative was to invest in and
improve our service and
infrastructure by rebuilding
our reputation in the region
through a heightened
attention to service and
delivery. We redesigned our
organization and metrics for
better execution with a focus
on improving relationship
management and
investing in new
infrastructure,
operations, and
information security
capabilities.

41%

business
solutions

Our second imperative
was the expansion of our
footprint in Latin America,
mainly through acquisitions. Since
2016 we have made acquisitions including
Processa, Paygroup and Placetopay that have
allowed us to enter markets such as Colombia, Chile
and Uruguay, as well as deepen our presence in some
of our existing markets. Most recently, we announced
the acquisition of BBR, a Chilean based payment and
technology provider, that we expect to close by
mid-2022. This transaction will allow us to expand our
capabilities in Chile, where BBR services over 30,000
terminals, and expand into Peru, opening a new
country for us with existing services for over 12,000
terminals.

Our third imperative was to accelerate our product
development and innovation capabilities to ensure
that we were building products that our customers
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26%

payment services

*Percentage of 2021 revenue.
Excludes a negative 10% revenue
impatct from Corporate & Other

of $(59)mm.

Iniciativas claves
para ser el socio preferencial

Desde el 2015 hemos estado en un proceso de
transformacion estratégica que ha incluido 5 iniciativas
claves para convertirnos en el socio preferencial de
nuestros clientes. La primera iniciativa fue invertir y
mejorar nuestro servicio e infraestructura, recons-
truyendo nuestra imagen en la region, a través de una
mayor y mejor atencion al cliente. Reestructuramos
nuestra organizacion y las métricas para una
mejor ejecucion, enfocdndonos en opti-
mizar relaciones e invertir en nueva
infraestructura, operaciones y capa-
cidades de manejo de seguridad de

la informacion.

PR & Caribbean
Nuestra segunda iniciativa fue
la expansion de nuestra
presencia en América
1 8 % Latina, frincfipalmente a
payment services . .r(')ves de nuevas
LatAm adgquisiciones. Desde el
2016, hemos llevado a
cabo varias adquisiciones
2021 incluyendo Processa,
revenue Paygroup y Placetopay, lo que
by segment* nos ha permitido entrar a

mercados como Colombia, Chile
y Uruguay; y, a la vez, aumentar
nuestra presencia en algunos de los
mercados donde ya teniamos
operaciones. Recientemente, anunciamos la
adquisicion de BBR, un proveedor de pagos y tecnologia
con sede en Chile, que esperamos cerrar a mediados del
2022. Esta transaccién nos permitird ampliar nuestras
capacidades en Chile, donde BBR estd conectado y
brinda servicios a mas de 30,000 terminales de punto de
venta, y expandir a Perd, abriendo un nuevo mercado
para la compania, con servicios existentes en mas de
12,000 terminales de punto de venta.

Nuestra tercera iniciativa fue la de acelerar el
desarrollo de productos y nuestra capacidad de
innovacion, para asegurarnos que estamos creando
los productos que nuestros clientes buscan y necesitan.
Para esto, establecimos una nueva organizacion



revenue

S millions

$600 @ $5898

$540

$480

$420
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*Adjusted earnings per share is a supplemental measure of the Company's performance is not
required by, or presented in accordance with, accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America ("GAAP”). It is not a measurement of the Company's financial
performance under GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to total revenue, net
income or any other performance measures derived in accordance with GAAP or as
alternatives to cash flows from operating activities, as an indicator of cash flows or as a
measure of the Company's liquidity. In addition to GAAP measures, management uses this
non-GAAP measure to focus on the factors the company believes are pertinent to the daily
management of the Company’s operations and believe it is frequently used by securities
analysts, investors and other interested parties to evaluate companies in the industry. For
more information regarding adjusted earnings per share, including a quantitative
reconciliation of adjusted net Income to the most directly comparable GAAP financial
performance measure, which is net income.

adjusted EBITDA!

S millions

$300 @

$294.8

$260

$220

$180

adjusted earnings per share!

$3.00 @

s274

S2.50 @

$2.00 @

$1.50

2020

reconciliation of gaap to non-gaap operating results

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

'Represents the elimination of non-cash equity
earnings from the Company's 19.99% equity
investment in Dominican Republic, Consorcio de

Years ended December 31

2019 2020 2021

Tarjetas Dominicanas, S.A. ("CONTADO"), net of Netincome $ 103700 $ 104851 $ 161143
dividends  received. 2Primarily represents

share-based compensation and severance Income tox expense 12975 13,002 20,562
payments. Represents fees and expenses Interest expense, net 27,594 23572 20,921
associated with corporate transactions  as Depreciation and amortization 68,082 71,518 75,070
defined in the 2018 Credit Agreement, recorded

as part of selling, general and administrative EBITDA 212,351 218,943 277696
eperis cod o ool e Srted iy reome) @ e e
operating  depreciation and  amortization Compensation and benefits® 13,798 14,383 15,144
expense, which excludes amounts generated as Transaction, refinancing and other fees® 498 8,277 2,373

a result of merger and acquisition activity.

5 . . Adjusted EBITDA 226,196 240,467 294,818
Represents interest expense, less interest

income, as they appear on the consolidated Operating depreciation and amortization? (34,880) (39,084) (43,438)
statements of income and comprehensive Cash interest expense, net? (@7,016) (22,285) (19,.804)
income, adjusted to exclude non-cash amortiza- .

tion of the debt issue costs, premium and Income tax expense (20,239) (27.192) (31.684)
accretion of discount. ®Represents income tax Non-controlling interest” (347) (546) (161)

expense calculated on adjusted pre-tax income
using the applicable GAAP tax rate, adjusted for
certain discreet items. ‘Represents the 35%
non-controlling equity interest in Evertec
Colombia, net of amortization for intangibles
created as part of the purchase.

Adjusted Net Income

$ 143714 S 151360 $ 199731

Netincome per common share (GAAP) diluted S 141 S 143 S 221
Adjusted earnings per common share (Non-GAAP)
Shares used in computing adjusted earnings per common share 73,475,763
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S 196 S 207 S 274
73,051,205 72,870,585



want and need. We created a new organization solely
dedicated to product management and development.
This team evolved ATH Movil in Puerto Rico,
transformed the PayStudio platform into a service
model for Latin America, and localized our Placetopay
gateway in multiple countries. We have also
established a customer excellence group which works
hand in hand with the product organization to make
sure that we understand changing customer needs
and pro-actively monitor our service delivery so we
can be agile and adjust our offering as needed. In
2021, our capital expenditures were approximately
$67 million, a portion of which was directly tied to the
development of our own intellectual property such as
our PayStudio platform. This has allowed us to
successfully launch Santander’s payment acquiring
arm in Chile, Getnet, using our proprietary Paystudio
platform. Consequently, we have now expanded our
relationship with Getnet into Uruguay, again using our
proprietary technology to enable them to shorten
their time to market and quickly enroll merchants in
the country. We were also able to add Mercado Pago,
the payment subsidiary of Mercado Libre, to
PayStudio, which helped launch a successful debit
card program in Mexico where we exceeded the
projection for cards issued and transactions. The
success of this initiative makes us confident that we
will have further opportunities in the region with
Mercado Libre.

Our fourth imperative relates to further strengthening
our relationship and improving service delivery to
Banco Popular, our largest client and an ongoing area
of focus for the organization. To address this, we have
implemented tools to better assess client satisfaction
across multiple constituencies within the bank,
created structure and discipline around account
management at multiple levels and over the years
improved our service level agreements (SLA)',
introduced new ones for services that were not
previously measured and even increased penalties for
missed SLA's. We have also established pricing
strategies on certain products to encourage
collaboration and mutual growth.

cnnual report 2021

exclusivamente dedicada al desarrollo y administracion
de productos. Este grupo evolucioné nuestro producto
ATH Movil en Puerto Rico, transformé la plataforma
PayStudio en un modelo de servicio para América
Latina y facilité el acceso y localizacion de nuestra
pasarela de pagos digitales, PlacetoPay, en varios
paises. También hemos establecido un grupo de
excelencia en servicio al cliente, que trabaja de la mano
con la organizacién de productos para asegurarnos
que entendemos las necesidades cambiantes de los
clientes y monitoreamos de manera proactiva nuestra
prestacion de servicios. Esto nos permite ser dgiles y
qjustar nuestra oferta de productos y servicios segun
las necesidades del mercado.

En el 2021, nuestras inversiones en capital fueron de
aproximadamente S$67 millones, con una parte
directamente dedicada al desarrollo de la plataforma
PayStudio, parte de la propiedad intelectual de
Evertec. Esto nos permitio lanzar con éxito el servicio de
pagos adquirentes de Getnet, parte de Banco
Santander, en Chile, utilizando PayStudio. ~ Como
resultado de esto, hemos expandido nuestra relacion
con Getnet a Uruguay usando nuestra tecnologia, para
ayudarlos a acortar su tiempo de llegada al mercado, y
ofrecer el servicio de adquirencia a comerciantes en el
pais. También pudimos sumar a Mercado Pago, la
subsidiaria de pagos de Mercado Libre, a PayStudio,
lanzando exitosamente un programa de tarjetas de
débitos en Meéxico, el cual ha superado las
proyecciones de tarjetas emitidas y transacciones. Con
Mercado Libre, confiamos en que obtendremos nuevas
y mas oportunidades de negocio en la region.

Nuestra cuarta iniciativa ha sido mejorar la oferta de
servicios y fortalecer, aun mas, nuestra relacion con
Banco Popular, nuestro cliente mds grande, y un drea
de enfoque continuo en nuestra organizacion. Para
atenderlo, implementamos  herramientas  para
entender mejor la satisfaccion del cliente en multiples
areas dentro del banco, creamos una estructura e
implementamos una disciplina para el manejo de la
relacién en mdltiples niveles. Ademds, a través de los
anos, mejoramos nuestros acuerdos de nivel de
servicio (SLA “service level agreements’, por sus siglas
en inglés), lanzamos nuevos acuerdos para aquellos
servicios que no se estaban midiendo, y aumentamos



OUR MANAGEMENT TEAM: From left to right: Zayra Emanuelii Anzalotta, Philip Steurer, Guillermo Rospligliosi, Pacla Pérez Surillo,
Joaquin Castrillo, Miguel Vizcarrondo, Mac Schuessler, Diego Viglianco, Alexandra Lopez Soler, Rodrigo Del Castillo, y Luis Rodriguez Gonzdlez.

O

That brings us to the fifth imperative in our
transformation journey, extending and modifying
key agreements with our largest customer, Banco
Popular. With the recently announced extension of
our main commercial agreements, we have a
predictable long term revenue stream that
provides certainty in our cash flow. Further, we
hope the extensions and modifications will
incentivize Banco Popular to continue being a key
strategic partner for the foreseeable future. We
agreed to divest certain assets to Banco Popular
that are exclusively used by them and are not part
of Evertec’s long term growth and investment
strategy. This sale demonstrates our desire to
focus on higher growth segments while reducing
our exposure to single client products, consistent
with our long-term strategy. As a part of the
transaction, Popular has agreed to take certain
actions after closing that we expect will result in
Evertec no longer being deemed a “subsidiary” of

penalidades por incumplimiento de SLA. También
hemos establecido estrategias de precios en ciertos
productos para fomentar la colaboracion y el
crecimiento mutuo.

Eso nos lleva a la quinta iniciativa en este camino de
transformacion, extendiendo y modificando acuerdos
claves con nuestro cliente mas grande, Banco Popular.
Con el reciente anuncio de la extensién de nuestros
acuerdos comerciales, contamos con una fuente de
ingresos predecibles a largo plazo, lo que nos brinda
mayor certeza en el flujo de efectivo. Ademds,
esperamos que estas extensiones y modificaciones
incentiven a Banco Popular a seguir siendo un socio
estratégico clave de nosotros a futuro. Acordamos
vender ciertos activos a Banco Popular que son de su
uso exclusivo y no forman parte de la estrategia de
inversion y crecimiento a largo plazo de Evertec

Esta venta demuestra nuestro interés en centrarnos en
segmentos de mayor crecimiento, mientras reducimos
nuestra exposicion a servicios y productos para un solo
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Banco Popular for purposes of the Bank Holding
Company Act, including selling shares over the
subsequent three months in the open market or
converting the shares into non-voting stock to reduce
their voting interest to under 4.5%. Once this occurs,
we expect to have increased flexibility to pursue
growth through acquisitions.

Strong Results in 2021

It is remarkable how much we persevered and
accomplished, not only in terms of our stead-fast
dedication to help customers, team members, and
communities throughout the Caribbean and Latin
America, but also financial performance. This year
was another strong one for Evertec, with the
Company generating record revenue, as well as other
milestones in each of our businesses. We delivered
$590 million in revenue, an increase of 16% year over
year. The strong year over year growth in Puerto Rico
was driven by the inflow of Covid 19 related federal
funds early in the year, higher ATH Movil and ATH
Business transactions, the impact from the expansion
of our relationship with FirstBank, and the continued
benefit in our Business Solutions segment from higher
volumes in our digital channels. Most satisfying was
our Latin American growth of 25% for the year, driven
by our successful partnerships with Santander and
Mercado Libre, the expansion of our digital gateway
platform, Placetopay, and organic growth in Central
America. Our earnings and cash flow performance
were even more impressive, with Adjusted EBITDA
growing 23% for the year, and Adjusted EPS growing
32%. In 2021, we continued to generate significant
operating cash flow, of $228 million for the year, and
we returned approximately $39 million to our
shareholders  through dividends and share
repurchases. Additionally, our liquidity remained
strong at $386 million as of December 31st.

New Opportunities

We are encouraged by the economic environment
ahead in Puerto Rico and the opportunities in Latin
America that will provide a unique backdrop to fuel
our future growth and partnerships.
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cliente, consistente con nuestra estrategia a largo
plazo. Como parte de fa transaccién, Banco Popular
acordo tomar ciertas medidas después del cierre que
esperamos resulten en que Evertec ya no sea
considerada una “subsidiaria” de Banco Popular para
propésitos del Bank Holding Company Act, incluida la
venta de acciones durante los tres meses subsiguientes
en el mercado abierto, o convertir las acciones a
acciones sin derecho al voto, para reducir su
participacion por debajo del 4.5%. Una vez esto ocurra,
esperamos tener una mayor flexibilidad para perseguir
crecimiento a través de adquisiciones.

Sdlidos resultados en el 2021

Nuestra perseverancia y nuestros logros han sido
notables, no solo en términos de la firme dedicacion de
apoyar a nuestros clientes, empleados y las
comunidades que servimos en el Caribe y América
Latina, sino también en nuestro desemperio financiero.
Este fue otro ano sdlido para Evertec, donde
generamos un récord en ingresos, asi como
alcanzamos otras metas en cada uno de nuestros
negocios. Logramos S590 millones en ingresos, un
aumento de 16% en comparacion al ano anterior. Este
solido crecimiento en Puerto Rico fue impulsado por la
entrada de fondos federales a principios de afo
relacionados con el COVID-19, mayor volumen de
transacciones de ATH Movil y ATH Business, el impacto
de la ampliacion en nuestra relacion con FirstBank, y el
beneficio continuo de nuestro segmento de Soluciones
de Negocio, al obtener volimenes mds aitos en
nuestros canales digitales. Mds satisfactorio aun fue
nuestro crecimiento de 25% en América Latina,
resultado de nuestras exitosas alianzas con Santander
y Mercado Libre, la expansion de nuestra plataforma
de pagos digitales, Placetopay, y el crecimiento
organico en Centroamérica. Nuestros ingresos y flujo
de efectivo fueron aun mds impresionantes, con el
EBIDTA ajustado aumentando 23% en el ano, y un EPS
Ajustado con un 32% de crecimiento. En 2021,
continuamos generando un flujo de efectivo
significativo de S228 millones en el ario, y un retorno
de inversion de aproximadamente S39 millones a
nuestros accionistas, a través del pago de dividendos y
recompra de acciones. Ademds, nuestra liquidez se
mantuvo fuerte, con $S386 millones al 31 de diciembre.



The Puerto Rico economic environment has
progressed significantly. Economic indicators
continue to improve, and in some cases, have now
surpassed pre-pandemic levels. Most impressive
is the labor participation rate of 44.2%, which is at
the highest level since 2010. Additionally, while the
island has benefited from the inflow of pandemic
related federal stimulus funds, most impressive is
that the individual and commercial bank deposits
in Puerto Rico have increased 41% over the past
two years, from $42.2 billion to $59.6 billion. These
are additional funds that should translate into
future spending that will continue to drive growth
for Evertec in the coming years.

Further, a range of Federal Funds from Covid 19
relief to the Federal infrastructure bill, are
expected to provide approximately $10 billion in
stimulus that will flow through Puerto Rico’s
economy in 2022 and 2023, which represents
approximately 15% of the island’s GNP. We believe
this level of influx of funds should remain a strong
stimulus for the economy.

And lastly, the Puerto Rico debt restructuring has
been approved by the bankruptcy judge assigned
to the PROMESA proceedings, which will cut the
Island's debt roughly in half, from $70 billion to
approximately $34 billion. This will allow the Puerto
Rican government to get back to making
investments that will improve areas such as
education, health and public safety and continue
to work on measures that make Puerto Rico a
better place to do business.

The Latin America region is also primed for growth.
Latin America continues to be underbanked when
compared with more mature economies around
the world, presenting a significant opportunity for
us as these markets are on average twice as large
as Puerto Rico.

Credit card penetration and consumer spend on
cards in our core markets is significantly lower than
what we see in the US, as an example Chile, Mexico
and Colombia are particularly interesting and
areas of focus for our company.

Nuevas oportunidades

Nos alienta el futuro econémico que vemos en Puerto
Rico y las oportunidades en América Latina, que
proporcionaran un ambiente Unico para impulsar
nuestro crecimiento y alianzas futuras.

El ambiente econémico de Puerto Rico ha progresado
significativamente.  Los  indicadores  econémicos
continian mejorando y, en algunos casos, han
superado los niveles previos a la pandemia. De éstos, el
mds significativo siendo la tasa de participacion laboral
de 44.2%, el nivel mds alto desde 2010. Ademds,
mientras la isla se ha beneficiado de la entrada de
fondos de estimulo federal relacionados con la
pandemia, los depdsitos individuales y de bancos
comerciales en Puerto Rico han aumentado un 41% en
los ultimos dos anos, de $42,200 millones a $59,600
millones. Estos son fondos adicionales que deberian
traducirse en consumo a futuro que seguirdn
impulsando el crecimiento de Evertec en los proximos
anos.

Ademds, se espera que una variedad de fondos
federales, desde el alivio de Covid 19 hasta el Proyecto
de Ley Federal de Infraestructura, proporcionen
aproximadamente $10,000 millones en estimulo que
entrard a la economia de Puerto Rico en 2022 y 2023,
lo que representa aproximadamente el 15% del PIB de
la isla. Creemos que este nivel de entrada de fondos
debe seguir siendo un gran estimulo para la economia.

Finalmente, la reestructuracion de la deuda de Puerto
Rico ha sido aprobada por el juez de quiebras asignado
al proceso de PROMESA, lo que reducird en
aproximadamente 50% la deuda de la isla, de $70,000
millones a aproximadamente $34,000 millones. Esto le
permitird al gobierno de Puerto Rico retomar
inversiones que mejorardn dreas como: la educacion, la
salud y la seguridad publica, y continuar trabajando en
medidas que hagan de Puerto Rico un mejor lugar
para hacer negocios.

La regién de América Latina también esta preparada
para el crecimiento. América Latina sigue estando
sub-bancarizado en comparacién con economias mas
maduras alrededor del mundo, lo que presenta una
oportunidad significativa para nosotros, ya que estos
mercados son, en promedio, dos veces mds grandes
que Puerto Rico.
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Evertec is as well positioned as we have ever been in
Latin America. Since 2015, we have doubled our offices
in the region, more than tripled our employees and
increased revenues from $37 million to $106 million, a
compounded annual growth rate of approximately 19%.
We believe Evertec is well positioned to be the regional
payments processing leader.

In Closing

We have now extended and re-established our
relationship with Banco Popular creating strength for
our Puerto Rico business. We have also established
an enviable footprint of people and products in Latin
America as well as a more flexible structure for MGA
going forward. Given the state of our key markets and
the expected benefits from the transactions
announced, we are more optimistic than ever about
our Company's future.

Thank you to our shareholders for your continued
investment in Evertec, to our customers for giving us
the opportunity to serve you and your communities,
and to the team members who give us the spirit to
succeed as the ‘partner of choice’.

La penetracion de tarjetas de crédito y el gasto de
consumidores en tarjetas de crédito y débito en
nuestros mercados principales es significativamente
menor a lo que vemos en los EE.UU., por ejemplo Chile,
México y Colombia, los cuales son mercados
particularmente interesantes y dreas de enfoque para
nuestra empresa.

Evertec continua estando bien posicionado en América
Latina. Desde 2015, hemos duplicado nuestras oficinas
en la regién, mds que triplicado nuestros empleados y
aumentado los ingresos de $37 millones a S106
millones, una tasa de crecimiento anual compuesta de
aproximadamente 19%. Creemos que Evertec estd bien
posicionado para ser el lider regional en procesamiento
de pagos.

Para concluir

Hemos ampliado y restablecido nuestra relacién con
Banco Popular, creando fortaleza para nuestro
negocio de Puerto Rico. Hemos establecido una
presencia envidiable, tanto en numero de personas
como en productos, asi como una estructura mas
flexible para fusiones y adquisiciones en Ameérica
Latina a futuro. Dado el estado de nuestros mercados
claves y los beneficios esperados de las transacciones
anunciadas, estamos mads optimistas que nunca sobre
el futuro de nuestra compania.

Gracias a nuestros accionistas por su continua
inversion en Evertec, a nuestros clientes y comunidades
por darnos la oportunidad de servirles y a nuestros
empleados que son el espiritu que nos lleva a ser
exitosos como el socio preferencial de nuestros clientes.

Mac Schuessler
President and Chief Executive Officer
Presidente y Principal Oficial Ejecutivo
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, or Report, contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of, and subject to the
protection of, the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We intend such forward-looking statements to be covered
by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act.
Such statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “estimates,”
“will,” “should,” “plans” or “anticipates” or the negative thereof or other variations thereon or comparable terminology, or by
discussions of strategy. Readers are cautioned that any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and may involve significant risks and uncertainties, and that actual results may vary materially from those in the
forward-looking statements as a result of various factors. Among the factors that significantly impact our business and could
impact our business in the future are:

*  our reliance on our relationship with Popular, Inc. (“Popular”) for a significant portion of our revenues pursuant to our
Master Services Agreement ("MSA") with them, and to grow our merchant acquiring business;

* as aregulated institution, the likelihood we will be required to obtain regulatory approval before engaging in certain
new activities or businesses, whether organically or by acquisition, and our potential inability to obtain such approval
on a timely basis or at all, which may make transactions more expensive or impossible to complete, or make us less
attractive to potential sellers;

«  our ability to renew our client contracts on terms favorable to us, including our contract with Popular, and any
significant concessions we may grant to Popular with respect to pricing or other key terms arising out of any disputes
or in anticipation of the negotiation of the extension of the MSA, both in respect of the current term and any extension
of the MSA;

*  our dependence on our processing systems, technology infrastructure, security systems and fraudulent payment
detection systems, as well as on our personnel and certain third parties with whom we do business, and the risks to our
business if our systems are hacked or otherwise compromised;

«  our ability to develop, install and adopt new software, technology and computing systems;
* adecreased client base due to consolidations and failures in the financial services industry;
» the credit risk of our merchant clients, for which we may also be liable;

« the continuing market position of the ATH network;

* areduction in consumer confidence, whether as a result of a global economic downturn or otherwise, which leads to a
decrease in consumer spending;

*  our dependence on credit card associations, including any adverse changes in credit card association or network rules
or fees;

« changes in the regulatory environment and changes in international, legal, tax, political, administrative or economic
conditions;

+ the geographical concentration of our business in Puerto Rico, including our business with the government of Puerto
Rico and its instrumentalities, which are facing severe political and fiscal challenges;

» additional adverse changes in the general economic conditions in Puerto Rico, whether as a result of the government’s
debt crisis or otherwise, including the continued migration of Puerto Ricans to the U.S. mainland, which could
negatively affect our customer base, general consumer spending, our cost of operations and our ability to hire and
retain qualified employees;

e operating an international business in Latin America and the Caribbean, in jurisdictions with potential political and
economic instability;

« our ability to protect our intellectual property rights against infringement and to defend ourselves against claims of
infringement brought by third parties;

*  our ability to comply with U.S. federal, state, local and foreign regulatory requirements;
*  evolving industry standards and adverse changes in global economic, political and other conditions;

*  our level of indebtedness and restrictions contained in our debt agreements, including the secured credit facilities, as
well as debt that could be incurred in the future;

*  our ability to prevent a cybersecurity attack or breach to our information security;

+  the possibility that we could lose our preferential tax rate in Puerto Rico;



« the possibility of future catastrophic hurricanes, earthquakes and other potential natural disasters affecting our main
markets in Latin America and the Caribbean;

* uncertainty related to the effect of the discontinuation of the London Interbank Offered Rate at the end of 2021;

« the continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and measures taken in response to the outbreak, on our resources,
net income and liquidity due to current and future disruptions in operations as well as the macroeconomic instability
caused by the pandemic; and

»  other risks and uncertainties detailed in Part I, Item IA “Risk Factors” in this Report.

The forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are only predictions. We have based these forward-
looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections about future events and financial trends that we believe
may affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. These forward-looking statements are subject to a number
of important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements, and
should, therefore, be considered in light of various factors, including those set forth under “Item 1A. Risk Factors,” in “Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in this Report. These
forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Report, and, except as may be required by law, we do not
undertake any obligation to publicly release any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances

after the date of this Report or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.



INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

This Form 10-K includes industry data that we obtained from periodic industry publications, including the 2021 World
Payments Report. Industry publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources
believed to be reliable. This Form 10-K also includes market share and industry data that were prepared primarily based on
management’s knowledge of the industry and industry data. Unless otherwise noted, statements as to our market share and
market position relative to our competitors are approximated and based on management estimates using the above-mentioned
latest-available third-party data and our internal analysis and estimates. While we are not aware of any misstatements regarding
any industry data presented herein, our estimates, in particular as they relate to market share and our general expectations,
involve risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed under “Risk
Factors,” “Forward-Looking Statements” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in this Form 10-K.



Part I
Item 1. Business
Except as otherwise indicated or unless the context otherwise requires, (a) the terms “EVERTEC,” “we,” “us,” “our,” “our
Company” and “the Company” refer to EVERTEC, Inc. and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, (b) the term “Holdings’
refers to EVERTEC Intermediate Holdings, LLC, but not any of its subsidiaries and (c) the term “EVERTEC Group” refers to
EVERTEC Group, LLC and its predecessor entities and their subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. EVERTEC Inc.’s
subsidiaries include Holdings, EVERTEC Group, EVERTEC Dominicana, SAS, Evertec Chile Holdings SpA (formerly known
as Tecnopago SpA), Evertec Chile SpA (formerly known as EFT Group SpA), Evertec Chile Global SpA (formerly known as
EFT Global Services SpA), Evertec Chile Servicios Profesionales SpA (formerly known as EFT Servicios Profesionales SpA),
EFT Group S.A., Tecnopago Esparia SL, Paytrue S.A., Caleidon, S.A., Evertec Brasil Solutions Informdatica Ltda. (formerly
known as Paytrue Solutions Informatica Ltda.), EVERTEC Panamad, S.A., EVERTEC Costa Rica, S.A. (“EVERTEC CR”),
EVERTEC Guatemala, S.A., Evertec Colombia, SAS (formerly known as Processa, SAS), EVERTEC USA, LLC, Evertec
Placetopay, SAS (formerly known as EGM Ingenieria sin Fronteras, S.A.S. ("PlacetoPay")) and EVERTEC Meéxico Servicios de
Procesamiento, S.A. de C.V. Neither EVERTEC nor Holdings conducts any operations other than with respect to its indirect or
direct ownership of EVERTEC Group.

1

Company Overview

EVERTEC is a leading full-service transaction-processing business in Puerto Rico, the Caribbean and Latin America, providing
a broad range of merchant acquiring, payment services and business process management services. We believe that we are one
of the largest merchant acquirers in Latin America based on total number of transactions and the largest merchant acquirer in
the Caribbean. We serve 26 countries out of 11 offices, including our headquarters in Puerto Rico. We own and operate the
ATH network, which we believe is one of the leading personal identification number (“PIN”’) debit networks in Latin America.
We manage a system of electronic payment networks and offer a comprehensive suite of services for core banking, cash
processing, and fulfillment in Puerto Rico, that process over three billion transactions annually. Additionally, we offer
technology outsourcing in all the regions we serve. We serve a diversified customer base of leading financial institutions,
merchants, corporations, and government agencies with “mission-critical” technology solutions that enable them to issue,
process and accept transactions securely. We believe our business is well-positioned to continue to expand across the fast-
growing Latin American region.

We are differentiated, in part, by our diversified business model, which enables us to provide our varied customer base with a
broad range of transaction-processing services from a single source across numerous channels and geographic markets. We
believe this capability provides several competitive advantages that will enable us to continue to penetrate our existing customer
base with complementary new services, win new customers, develop new sales channels, and enter new markets. We believe
these competitive advantages include:

*  Our ability to provide competitive products;

*  Our ability to provide in one package a range of services that traditionally had to be sourced from different vendors;

e Our ability to leverage proprietary IP that enables us to be nimble and flexible when it comes to client requirements;

*  Our ability to put forth Spanish speaking developers in front of our Spanish speaking customers making
communication much more effective and integrations more efficient;

*  Our ability to serve customers with disparate operations across several geographies with technology solutions that
enable them to manage their business as one enterprise; and

*  Our ability to capture and analyze data across the transaction-processing value chain and use that data to provide
value-added services that are differentiated from those offered by pure-play vendors that serve only one portion of the
transaction-processing value chain (such as only merchant acquiring or payment services).

Our broad suite of services spans the entire transaction-processing value chain and includes a range of front-end customer-
facing solutions such as the electronic capture and authorization of transactions at the point-of-sale, as well as back-end support
services such as the clearing and settlement of transactions and account reconciliation for card issuers. These include: (i)
merchant acquiring services, which enable point of sales (“POS”) and e-commerce merchants to accept and process electronic
methods of payment such as debit, credit, prepaid and electronic benefit transfer (“EBT”) cards; (ii) payment processing
services, which enable financial institutions and other issuers to manage, support and facilitate the processing for credit, debit,
prepaid, automated teller machines (“ATM”) and EBT card programs; and (iii) business process management solutions, which
provide “mission-critical” technology solutions such as core bank processing, as well as IT outsourcing and cash management
services to financial institutions, corporations and governments. We provide these services through scalable, end-to-end
technology platforms that we manage and operate in-house and that generate significant operating efficiencies that enable us to
maximize profitability.



We sell and distribute our services primarily through a proprietary direct sales force with established customer relationships.
We continue to pursue joint ventures and merchant acquiring alliances. We benefit from an attractive business model, the
hallmarks of which are recurring revenue, scalability, significant operating margins, and moderate capital expenditure
requirements. Our revenue is predominantly recurring in nature because of the mission-critical and embedded nature of the
services we provide. In addition, we generally negotiate multi-year contracts with our customers. We believe our business
model should enable us to continue to grow our business organically in the primary markets we serve without significant
incremental capital expenditures.

As of December 31, 2021, Popular, Inc. (Nasdaq: BPOP) ("Popular") owned approximately 16.2% of our common stock and
was our largest shareholder. For the year ended December 31, 2021, 42% of our revenue was generated from our relationship
with Popular. The revenue concentration with Popular makes our MSA with them our most significant client contract. On
February 24, 2022, we announced that we entered into an agreement to modify and extend the main commercial agreements
with Popular that had an initial term ending in 2025, including the MSA. We also entered into an agreement to sell Popular
certain assets in exchange for Popular owned Evertec stock ("Popular Transaction"). As part of this transaction, Popular has
agreed to take certain actions after closing to ensure that Evertec is no longer deemed a “subsidiary” of Popular for purposes of
the Bank Holding Company Act, including reducing their voting interest in Evertec to 4.5% over a period of three months after
the close of the transaction through either the sale of shares or conversion to non-voting preferred shares.

See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Relationship with
Popular.”

Industry Trends
Accelerated Shift to Digital Payment Methods

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, consumer preference has accelerated its shift away from cash and paper payment
methods, noting increased demand for omni-channel payment services that facilitate cashless and contactless transactions. The
ongoing migration to digital payment methods continues to benefit the transaction-processing industry globally. Technologies
such as contactless payments, tap-on-phone, mobile commerce, “e-wallets” and advanced and smart POS devices continue to
drive the shift away from cash and other traditional payment methods. The Company has benefited from an increase in
transaction volumes for these types of payment solutions. As consumers and merchants increase demand for contactless and
mobility-based solutions, the Company has continued to innovate and invest, expanding the footprint and functionality of
digital solutions such as Placetopay (e-commerce gateway), our wallet ATH Movil and ATH Business, and Paystudio our
issuing and acquiring processing platform. We believe that the ongoing shift to digital payments will continue to generate
substantial growth opportunities for our business.

The digital payments space is experiencing rapid and disruptive technological innovation which has been accelerated by the
ongoing pandemic and the resulting shift in consumer preferences and merchant demands.

Fast Growing Latin American and Caribbean Financial Services and Payments Markets

The markets in which we operate, particularly in the Latin American and Caribbean region continue to grow and consumer
preference is driving an increase for electronic payments usage. Non-cash transaction volumes in Latin America have grown
from 40.9 billion in 2016 to 57.2 billion in 2020 according to the 2021 World Payments report, representing a compound annual
growth rate of 8.7%. Increase in demand for contactless technology, QR code payments and instant payment-based transfers is
one of the main drivers for this growth. Latin America is one of the fastest-growing mobile markets globally, with a growing
base of tech-savvy customers that demonstrate a preference for credit cards, digital wallets, contactless payments, and other
value-added offerings. Non-cash markets in Latin America are expected to continue their accelerated growth, with non-cash
transactions expected to reach over 100 billion in 2025, a growth rate of 14.1% from 2020 to 2025. The region's FinTech sector
is driving change via new contactless payment technology that are becoming popular alternatives to cash payments. We
continue to believe that the attractive characteristics of our markets and our position across multiple services and sectors will
continue to drive growth and profitability in our businesses.

Ongoing Technology Outsourcing Trends

We benefit from the trend of financial institutions and government agencies outsourcing technology systems and processes.
Financial institutions globally are facing significant challenges including the entrance of non-traditional competitors, the



compression of margins on traditional products, significant channel proliferation and increasing regulation that could
potentially curb profitability. Many of these institutions have traditionally fulfilled their IT needs through legacy computer
systems, operated by the institution itself. Legacy systems are generally highly proprietary, inflexible, and costly to operate and
maintain. Many medium and small-size institutions in the Latin American markets in which we operate have outdated computer
systems and updating these legacy systems is financially and logistically challenging, which presents a business opportunity for
the Company.

Our Competitive Strengths
Market Leadership in Latin America and the Caribbean

We believe we have an inherent competitive advantage relative to competitors based on our first-hand knowledge of the Latin
American and Caribbean markets and technology needs, language, and culture. We have built leadership positions across the
transaction-processing value chain and the financial technology space in the key geographic markets that we serve, which we
believe will enable us to continue to penetrate our core markets and provide advantages to enter new ones. We are one of the
largest merchant acquirers in Latin America based on total number of transactions. We own and operate the ATH network,
which we believe is one of the leading ATM and PIN debit networks in Latin America. EVERTEC processed over three billion
transactions in 2021. According to management's estimates, ATH branded products are the most frequently used electronic
method of payment in Puerto Rico. Our scale and customer base of top tier financial institutions and government entities
ensures we are the leading card issuer and core bank processors in the Caribbean and the only non-bank provider of cash
processing services to the U.S. Federal Reserve in the Caribbean. We believe our competitive position and brand recognition
increases card acceptance, driving usage of our proprietary network, and presents opportunities for future strategic
relationships.

Broad and Deep Customer Relationships and Recurring Revenue Business Model

We have built a strong and long-standing portfolio of financial institution, merchant, fintech, corporate and government
customers across Latin America and the Caribbean, which provides us with a reliable, recurring revenue base and powerful
references that have helped us expand into new channels and geographic markets. Our Payment Services - Puerto Rico &
Caribbean, Payment Services - Latin America and Merchant Acquiring segments, as well as certain business lines representing
the majority of our business solutions segment, generate recurring revenues that collectively accounted for approximately 95%
of our total revenues in 2021. We receive recurring revenues from services based on our customers’ on-going daily commercial
activity such as processing loans, hosting accounts and information on our servers, and processing everyday payments at
grocery stores, gas stations and similar establishments. We generally provide these services under one to five-year contracts,
often with automatic renewals. We also provide a few project-based services that generate non-recurring revenues in our
business solutions segment and our Payment Services - Latin America segment, such as IT consulting for a specific project or
integration or one-time license sales. Additionally, we provide a number of critical payment services, core baking services and
business solutions products and services to Popular as part of the 15-year MSA entered into on September 30, 2010 and benefit
from the bank’s distribution network and continued support. Through our long-standing and diverse customer relationships, we
are able to gain valuable insight into trends in the marketplace that allows us to identify new market opportunities. In addition,
we believe the recurring nature of our business model provides us with revenue and earnings stability.

Highly Scalable, End-to-End Technology Platform

Our diversified business model is supported by our scalable, end-to-end technology platforms that allow us to provide a broad
range of transaction-processing services and develop and deploy technology solutions to our customers at low incremental costs
and increasing operating efficiencies. We have spent over $251 million over the last five years on technology investments,
including POS terminals, to continue building the capacity and functionality of our platforms and we have been able to achieve
attractive economies of scale with flexible product development capabilities. We believe that our platforms will allow us to
provide differentiated services to our customers and facilitate further expansion into new sales channels and geographic
markets.

Experienced Management Team with a Strong Track Record of Execution

We have grown our revenue organically by introducing new products and services and expanding our geographic footprint
throughout Latin America. We have a proven track record of creating value from operational and technology improvements and
capitalizing on cross-selling opportunities. EVERTEC's management team brings many years of industry experience, with long-
standing leadership at the operating business level and collectively benefits from an average of over 20 years of industry
experience. We believe our leadership team is well positioned to continue to drive growth across business lines and regions.



Our Growth Strategy
We intend to grow our business by continuing to execute on the following business strategies:
Continue Cross-Sales to Existing Customers

We seek to grow revenue by continuing to sell additional products and services to our existing merchant, financial institution,
corporate and government customers. We intend to broaden and deepen our customer relationships by leveraging our full suite
of end-to-end technology solutions. For example, we believe that there is opportunity to cross-sell our payment gateway
product; card issuing and acquiring platforms and services; network services; ATM and point-of-sale processing services, and
payment and collection platforms, and our risk management products to existing financial institution customers, particularly in
markets outside of Puerto Rico. We will also seek to continue to cross-sell value-added services into our existing merchant
base.

Leverage Our Franchise to Attract New Customers in the Markets We Currently Serve

We intend to attract new customers by leveraging our comprehensive product and services offering, the strength of our brand
and our leading end-to-end technology platform. Furthermore, we believe we are well positioned to develop new products and
services and to take advantage of our access to and position in markets we currently serve. For example, in markets we serve
outside of Puerto Rico, we believe there is a good opportunity to penetrate small to medium and some larger financial
institutions, fintech companies and medium to large retailers with our products and services.

Expand in the Latin America Region

We believe there is substantial opportunity to expand our businesses in the Latin American region. We believe that we have a
competitive advantage relative to competitors based on our first-hand knowledge of the Latin American and Caribbean markets
and their technological needs, our physical presence in the region, language, and culture. We believe significant growth
opportunities exist in a number of large markets such as Colombia, México, and Chile, among others. We also believe that there
is an opportunity to provide our services to existing fintech and financial institution customers in other regions where they
operate. Additionally, we continually evaluate our strategic plans for geographic expansion, which can be achieved through
strategic acquisitions, joint ventures, partnerships, or alliances. For a description of risks associated with obtaining regulatory
approvals and other risks associated with strategic transactions, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business—
We are subject to extensive government regulation and oversight. Failure to comply with existing and future rules and
regulations in the jurisdictions in which we operate could adversely affect the operations of one or more of our businesses in
those jurisdictions.”

Develop New Products and Services

At the core of Evertec’s value proposition is innovation. We have to take advantage of the changing consumer and market
dynamics and build innovative solutions for our clients. Our close relationship with customers and deep understanding of the
markets where we operate, together with a proprietary intellectual property around our products and offerings, allow Evertec to
continuously explore and develop new products and services that tend to our customer’s needs.

We plan to continue investing and growing our merchant, financial institution, fintech, corporate and government customer
base by investing in core products, including (i) processing platforms, such as Paystudio, (ii) data and fraud management
solutions, such as Risk Center, Scudo and 3DS, (iii) merchant capture channels, such as ATH Movil for person-to-person, and
person-to-merchant digital transactions, pvot for Smart POS and Placetopay for card-not-present and omni-channel experiences.
We also invest in value-added services such as API enablement, tokenization, loyalty, digital on-boarding, and predictive
models. We intend to continue to focus on these and other new product opportunities in order to take advantage of our
leadership position in the transaction-processing and financial services industry in the Latin American and Caribbean region.

Our Business

We offer our customers end-to-end products and solutions across the transaction-processing value chain from a single source
across numerous channels and geographic markets, as further described below.



Merchant Acquiring

Our merchant acquiring business provides services to merchants that allow them to accept electronic methods of payment such
as debit, credit, prepaid and EBT cards carrying the ATH, Visa, MasterCard, Discover and American Express brands. Our full
suite of merchant acquiring services includes, but is not limited to, the underwriting of each merchant’s contract, the
deployment and rental of POS devices and other equipment necessary to capture merchant transactions, the processing of
transactions at the point-of-sale, processing of transactions digitally through our online payment gateway, the settlement of
funds with the participating financial institution, detailed sales reports, and customer support. In 2021, our merchant acquiring
business processed over 474 million transactions.

Payment Services

We believe we are the largest card processor and card network service provider in the Caribbean. We provide a diversified suite
of payment processing products and services to blue chip regional and global corporate customers, government agencies, and
financial institutions across Latin America and the Caribbean. These services provide our clients with the technology necessary
to facilitate the processing and routing of payments across the transaction-processing value chain.

At the point-of-sale, we sell transaction-processing technology solutions, similar to the services in our merchant acquiring
business, to other merchant acquirers enabling them to service their own merchant customers. We also offer terminal driving
solutions to merchants, merchant acquirers (including our merchant acquiring business) and financial institutions, which
provide the technology to securely operate, manage and monitor POS terminals and ATMs. We also rent POS devices to
financial institution customers who seek to deploy them across their own businesses.

To connect the merchants to card issuers, we own and operate the ATH network, which we believe is one of the leading ATM
and PIN debit networks in Latin America. The ATH network connects the merchant or merchant acquirer to the card issuer and
enables transactions to be routed or “switched” across the transaction-processing value chain. The ATH network offers the
technology, communications standards, rules and procedures, security and encryption, funds settlement and common branding
that allow consumers, merchants, merchant acquirers, ATMs, card issuer processors and card issuers to conduct commerce
seamlessly, across a variety of channels, similar to the services provided by Visa and MasterCard. We also own and operate
ATH Movil and ATH Business which is an ATH network application that allows individuals to (i) transfer money instantly to
individuals and merchants using only their phone number, and (ii) transfer money between an individual's registered cards.
ATH Business enables businesses through the download of the application to accept payments instantly for their services or
products from individuals with ATH Movil in real time and to donate to non-profit organizations. The ATH network and
payment processing businesses processed approximately two billion transactions in 2021.

To enable financial institutions, governments and other businesses to issue and operate a range of payment products and
services, we offer an array of card processing and other payment technology services, such as internet and mobile banking
software services, bill payment systems and EBT solutions. Financial institutions and certain retailers outsource to us certain
card processing services such as card issuance, processing card applications, cardholder account maintenance, transaction
authorization and posting, high volume payment processing fraud and risk management services, and settlement. Our payment
products include electronic check processing, automated clearing house (“ACH”), lockbox, online, interactive voice response
and web-based payments through personalized websites, among others.

We have been the main provider of EBT services to the Puerto Rican government since 1998. Our EBT application allows
certain agencies to deliver government benefits to participants through a magnetic card system and serves over 850,000 active
participants in Puerto Rico.

Business Solutions

We provide our financial institutions, corporate and government customers with a wide suite of business process management

solutions including core bank processing, network hosting and management, IT consulting, business process outsourcing, item
and cash processing, and fulfillment. In addition, we believe we are the only non-bank provider of cash processing services to

the U.S. Federal Reserve in the Caribbean.



Competition

Competitive factors impacting the success of our services include the quality of the technology-based application or service,
application features and functions, ease of delivery and integration, ability of the provider to maintain, enhance and support the
applications or services, and price. We believe that we compete well in each of these categories. In addition, we believe that our
relationship with Popular, scale and expertise, and financial institution industry expertise, combined with our ability to offer
multiple applications, services and integrated solutions to individual customers, enhances our competitiveness against
companies with more limited offerings and helps us compete with large global competitors with similar assets to ours.

In merchant acquiring, we compete with several other service providers and financial institutions that are either in our markets
or represented through Independent Sales Organizations (“ISO”), including Fidelity National Information Services, Inc., Fiserv,
Inc., Global Payments, Inc., Elavon, Inc., EVO Payments, Inc., Paypal, Square, Zelle and some local banks. Also, the card
associations and payment networks are increasingly offering products and services that compete with ours. The main
competitive factors are price, reliability of service, brand awareness, strength of the relationship with financial institutions,
system functionality, integration service capabilities and innovation. Our business is also impacted by the expansion of new
payments methods and devices, card association business model expansion, and bank consolidation.

In payment services, we compete with several other third-party card processors, debit networks, and financial technology
providers, including Tecnocom Telecomunicaciones y Energia, S.A., Galileo Financial Technologies, LLC, Margeta, Inc.,
Fidelity National Information Services, Inc., Fiserv, Inc., Total System Services, Inc., MasterCard, Visa, American Express,
Discover, Global Payments, Inc. Rappi, PayU and Paypal. Also, card associations and payment networks are increasingly
offering products and services that compete with our products and services. The main competitive factors are price, system
performance and reliability, system functionality, security, service capabilities and disaster recovery and business continuity
capabilities.

In business solutions, our main competition includes internal technology departments within financial institutions, retailers, data
processing or software development departments of large companies, large technology and consulting companies, and/or
financial technology providers, such as Fidelity National Information Services, Inc., Jack Henry & Associates, Inc., CGI Inc.
and Fiserv, Inc. The main competitive factors are price, system performance and reliability, system functionality, security,
service capabilities, and disaster recovery and business continuity capabilities.

Intellectual Property

We own numerous registrations for several trademarks in different jurisdictions and own or have licenses to use certain
software and technology, which are critical to our business and future success. For example, we own the ATH and EVERTEC
trademarks in several jurisdictions, which are associated by the public, financial institutions and merchants with high quality
and reliable electronic commerce, payments, and debit network solutions and services. Such goodwill allows us to be
competitive, retain our customers and expand our business. Further, we also use a combination of (i) proprietary software, and
(i1) duly licensed third-party software to operate our business and deliver secure and reliable products and services to our
customers. The licensed software is subject to terms and conditions that we considered within the industry standards. Most are
perpetual licenses and the rest are term licenses with renewable terms. In addition, we monitor these license agreements and
maintain close contact with our suppliers to ensure their continuity of service.

We seek to protect our intellectual property rights by securing appropriate statutory intellectual property protection in the
relevant jurisdictions. We also protect proprietary know-how and trade secrets through company confidentiality policies,
licenses, programs, and contractual agreements.

People and Culture

At December 31, 2021, we had approximately 2,500 employees, 53% of which are Puerto Rico and US employees, while our
remaining workforce is composed of foreign nationals working in our offices throughout Latin America, which include,
Dominican Republic, Mexico, Guatemala, Costa Rica, Panama, Colombia, Chile, Uruguay and Brazil. In Brazil, we have two
unionized employees covered by the terms of industry-specific collective agreements. None of our other employees are
otherwise represented by any labor organization. We believe we have strong and positive relationships with our employees. We
have not experienced any work stoppages in connection with employee matters.



Diversity and Inclusion

Our culture is underpinned by our core values, including a commitment to diversity and inclusion, an essential component of
our formula for innovation. We value diversity of ideas, thoughts, and opinions, as well as of race, gender, age, cultural
backgrounds, and physical abilities, among others. We embrace inclusion by integrating diversity into our human capital
management, product development and customer service strategies and decisions. Our workforce is 37% female and 63% male,
making us unique among technology companies both in the U.S. and in Latin America. Over 99% of our employees and over
90% of our managers are Hispanic.

In 2021, the Company implemented the Next Generation Talent Program which identifies emerging leaders in the organization
and provides them with training and development focused on becoming the successors for senior management. The program
has a 50/50 male and female participation.

The Company has been included in the Bloomberg Gender Equality Index ("GEI") for four consecutive years. The GEI
distinguishes companies committed to transparency in gender reporting and advancing women’s equality.

Employee Engagement

Evertec considers employee engagement a key component of its high-performance culture. Throughout the year, we engage
with our employees in many ways, including through content on Evertec’s intranet, digital signage, virtual quarterly town-hall
style (all-staff) meetings, and in many other ways.

An internal engagement survey is conducted at least once every two years. Our last comprehensive engagement survey was
performed in 2020, with 85% of employees participating, the highest participation rate in the Company's history. The survey
empowers employees to provide feedback on a variety of experiences, the results help Evertec's management and leadership
gain insight into the most important drivers related to the work environment of our employees. Areas with highest employee
satisfaction were our business and organizational development, collaboration, and work environment. In response to this
employee feedback, management collaborates with our employees to create and adopt action plans to address concerns or
potential areas of improvement. Completion of these action plans are monitored by the People & Culture division and reported
to senior management.

Recruiting and Development Initiatives

Evertec pursues a diverse talent pool and is an Equal Opportunity Employer that aims to hire the best-qualified candidates for
available positions. We promote based on merit. Our diversity recruitment initiatives are tracked through the completion of an
Annual Affirmative Action Plan. In addition, we periodically conduct gender gap pay analysis for our employee population.
The Company currently has a remote recruitment and on-boarding strategy to ensure the safety of our new hires and existing
population in connection with the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.

Evertec is focused on providing our employees the tools needed for their career development. Evertec University, in one
platform, features all the learning opportunities available to our workforce, providing a curriculum composed of both online
classroom and external trainings. Within Evertec University, we developed a leadership program that includes a 360-degree
assessment, feed forward sessions, a leadership on-boarding program and a leadership academy. In 2021, the Company began
providing access to the Linkedin learning platform which provides an extensive and diverse training catalog ranging from
technical to soft-skill and leadership courses that allow our employees to develop in a self-paced and flexible environment. We
also provide health and safety educational sessions in liaison with external health professionals as part of our health and
wellness education programs efforts.

Our values for People and Culture are aligned with our commitment to environmental, social and governance (ESG). For
further information, refer to the ESG tear sheet available on our website at https://ir.evertecinc.com/ESG.doc as well as Vision,
Mission and Values section in our most recent proxy statement. Nothing on our website shall be deemed incorporated by
reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Government Regulation and Payment Network Rules
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Federal Reserve Regulations

Popular is a bank holding company that has elected to be treated as a financial holding company under the provisions of the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999. To the extent that we are deemed to be a “subsidiary” of Popular for purposes of the Bank
Holding Company (“BHC”) Act, we will be subject to regulation and oversight by the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve Board”) and our activities will be subject to several related significant restrictions, the
more significant of which are discussed below.

Transactions with Affiliates

To the extent that we are deemed to be an affiliate of Popular for purpose of the affiliate transaction rules found in Section 23A
and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation W of the Federal Reserve Board, we will be subject to various restrictions
on our ability to borrow from and engage in certain other transactions with Popular’s bank subsidiaries, Banco Popular and
Banco Popular North America (“BPNA”). In general, these rules require that any “covered transaction” that we enter into with
Banco Popular or BPNA (or any of their respective operating subsidiaries), as the case may be, must be limited to 10% of
Banco Popular’s or BPNA'’s, as the case may be, capital stock and surplus. In addition, all “covered transactions” between
Banco Popular or BPNA, on the one hand, and Popular and all of its subsidiaries and affiliates on the other hand, must be
limited to 20% of Banco Popular’s or BPNA’s, as the case may be, capital stock and surplus. “Covered transactions” are
defined by statute and by regulation to include a loan or extension of credit from a bank to an affiliate, as well as a purchase of
securities issued by an affiliate, a purchase of assets (unless otherwise exempted by the Federal Reserve Board) from the
affiliate, the acceptance of securities issued by the affiliate as collateral for a loan, the issuance of a guarantee, acceptance or
letter of credit on behalf of an affiliate, or the credit risk arising from certain repurchase, securities borrowing/lending and
derivative transactions that a bank may engage in with an affiliate. Certain credit transactions by a bank with an affiliate, in
addition to being subject to the limitations above, must be secured by specified collateral.

In addition, Section 23B and Regulation W require that to the extent that we are deemed an affiliate of Banco Popular or
BPNA, all transactions between us and either Banco Popular or BPNA be on terms and conditions, including credit standards,
that are substantially the same or at least as favorable to Banco Popular or BPNA, as the case may be, as those prevailing at the
time for comparable transactions involving other non-affiliated companies or, in the absence of comparable transactions, on
terms and conditions, including credit standards, that in good faith would be offered by Banco Popular or BPNA to, or would
apply to, non-affiliated companies.

Permissible Activities

To the extent that we are deemed to be controlled by Popular for bank regulatory purposes, we may conduct only those
activities that are authorized for a bank holding company or a financial holding company under the BHC Act, the Federal
Reserve Board’s Regulation K and other relevant U.S. federal banking laws. These activities generally include activities that are
related to banking, or that are financial in nature or incidental to financial activities. In addition, restrictions placed on Popular
as a result of supervisory or enforcement actions may restrict us or our activities in certain circumstances, even if these actions
are unrelated to our conduct or business.

To the extent that we are deemed to be a foreign subsidiary of a bank holding company under the Federal Reserve Board’s
regulations, we will rely on the authority granted under the Federal Reserve Board’s Regulation K to conduct our data
processing, management consulting and related activities outside the United States. The Federal Reserve Board’s Regulation K
generally limits activities of a bank holding company outside the United States that are not those activities of a banking or
financial nature, that are specifically permitted under Regulation K to foreign subsidiaries or necessary to carry on such
activities that are not otherwise permissible for a foreign subsidiary under the banking regulations. We continue to engage in
certain activities outside the scope of such permissible activities pursuant to authority under the Federal Reserve Board’s
Regulation K, which allows a bank holding company to retain, in the context of an acquisition of a going concern, such
otherwise impermissible activities if they account for not more than 5% of either the consolidated assets or consolidated
revenues of the acquired organization.
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New lines of business, other new activities, divestitures, or acquisitions that we may wish to commence in the future may not be
permissible for us under the BHC Act, the Federal Reserve Board’s Regulation K or other applicable U.S. federal banking laws.
Further, as a result of being subject to regulation and supervision by the Federal Reserve Board, we may be required to obtain
the approval of the Federal Reserve Board before engaging in certain new activities or businesses, whether organically or by
acquisition, unless such activities are considered financial in nature. If we are unable to obtain any such approval on a timely
basis, are delayed in receiving approval, are approved subject to regulatory conditions or do not receive approval, this may
make transactions more expensive or may make us less attractive to potential sellers.

Examinations

As a technology service provider to financial institutions, we are also subject to regulatory oversight and examination by the
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council (the “FFIEC”), an interagency body of federal financial regulators that
includes the Federal Reserve Board. The office of the Commissioner of Financial Institutions of Puerto Rico also participates in
such examinations by the FFIEC. In addition, independent auditors annually review several of our operations to provide reports
on internal controls for our clients’ auditors and regulators.

Regulatory Reform and Other Legislative Initiatives

The payment card industry has come under increased scrutiny from lawmakers and regulators. The Dodd-Frank Wall Street
Reform and Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) set forth significant structural and other changes to the regulation of the
financial services industry, including the establishment of the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the “CFPB”). The CFPB
has broad supervisory, enforcement and rulemaking authority over consumer financial products and services (including many
offered by us and by our clients) and certain bank and non-bank providers of such products and services. In addition,

Section 1075 of the Dodd-Frank Act (commonly referred to as the “Durbin Amendment”) imposed new restrictions on card
networks and debit card issuers. More specifically, the Durbin Amendment provides that the interchange transaction fees that a
card issuer or payment network may receive or charge for an electronic debit transaction must be “reasonable and proportional”
to the cost incurred by the card issuer in authorizing, clearing, and settling the transaction.

The Federal Reserve’s regulations (a) limit debit transaction interchange fees to $.21 + (5 bps times the value of the
transactions) + $.01 (as a fraud adjustment for issuers that have in place policies and measures to address fraud); (b) require that
issuers enable at least two unaffiliated payment card networks on their debit cards without regard to authentication method; and
(¢) prohibit card issuers and payment card networks from entering into exclusivity arrangements for debit card processing and
restrict card issuers and payment networks from inhibiting the ability of merchants to direct the routing of debit card
transactions over networks of their choice. The Dodd-Frank Act also allows merchants to set minimum dollar amounts
(currently, not to exceed $10) for the acceptance of a credit card and provide discounts or incentives to entice consumers to pay
with various payment methods, such as cash, checks, debit cards or credit cards, as the merchant prefers.

The CFPB is responsible for many of the regulatory functions with respect to consumer financial products and services. In
addition to rulemaking authority over several enumerated federal consumer financial protection laws, the CFPB is authorized to
issue rules prohibiting unfair, deceptive, or abusive acts or practices in connection with the offering of a consumer financial
product or service or any transaction with a consumer for such product or service. The CFPB also has authority to examine
supervised entities for compliance with, and to enforce violations of, consumer financial protection laws.

To the extent that we are deemed an affiliate of Banco Popular, an insured depository institution with greater than $10 billion in
total consolidated assets, and as a service provider to other insured depository institutions with $10 billion or more in total
consolidated assets, as well as larger participants in markets for consumer financial products and services, as determined by the
CFPB, we are subject to the supervision, enforcement, and rulemaking authority of the CFPB. CFPB rules, examinations and
enforcement actions may require us to adjust our activities and may increase our compliance costs.

From time to time, various legislative initiatives are introduced in Congress and state legislatures, and changes in regulations or
agency policies, or in the interpretation of such regulations and policies, are proposed by regulatory agencies. Such initiatives
may include proposals to modify the powers of bank holding companies and their affiliates. Such legislation or changes in
regulation could affect our operating environment in substantial and unpredictable ways. If adopted, such legislation or changes
in regulation could increase the cost of doing business or limit permissible activities. We cannot predict whether any such
legislation will be enacted, and, if enacted, the effect that it, or any implementing regulations or related policies and guidance,
would have on our financial condition or results of operations.
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Other Government Regulations

Our services are also subject to a broad range of complex federal, state, Puerto Rico, and foreign regulation, including privacy
laws, international trade regulations, the Bank Secrecy Act and other anti-money laundering laws, anti-trust and competition
laws, the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, the PR Code, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act and other Puerto Rico laws and regulations. Failure of our services to comply with
applicable laws and regulations could result in restrictions on our ability to provide such services, as well as the imposition of
civil fines and/or criminal penalties. The principal areas of regulation (in addition to oversight by the Federal Reserve Board)
that impact our business are described below.

Privacy and Information Security Regulations

We and our financial institution clients are required to comply with various U.S. state, federal and foreign privacy laws and
regulations, including those imposed under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 which applies directly to a broad range of
financial institutions and to companies that provide services to financial institutions. These laws and regulations place
restrictions on the collection, processing, storage, use and disclosure of certain personal information, require disclosure to
individuals of detailed privacy practices and provide them with certain rights to prevent the use and disclosure of protected
information. The regulations, however, permit financial institutions to share information with non-affiliated parties who
perform services for the financial institutions. These laws also impose requirements for safeguarding personal information
through the issuance of data security standards or guidelines. Certain state laws impose similar privacy obligations, as well as,
in certain circumstances, obligations to provide notification to affected individuals, states officers and consumer reporting
agencies, as well as businesses and governmental agencies that own data, of security breaches of computer databases that
contain personal information. In addition, U.S. state and federal government agencies have been contemplating or developing
new initiatives to safeguard privacy and enhance data and information security. Some foreign privacy laws may be stricter than
those applicable under U.S. federal, state, or Puerto Rican law. As a provider of services to financial institutions, we are
required to comply with applicable privacy and cybersecurity regulations and are bound by the same limitations on disclosure
of the information received from our customers as applied to the financial institutions themselves. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors-
Risks Related to Our Business-We are subject to security breaches or other confidential data theft from our systems, which can
adversely affect our reputation and business."

Anti-Money Laundering and Office of Foreign Assets Control Regulation

Since we provide data processing services to both foreign and domestic financial institutions, we are required to comply with
certain anti-money laundering and terrorist financing laws and economic sanctions imposed on designated foreign countries,
nationals, and others. Specifically, we must adhere to the requirements of the Bank Secrecy Act, as amended by the USA
PATRIOT Act of 2001 (collectively, the “BSA”) regarding processing and facilitation of financial transactions, as well as other
state, local and foreign laws relating to money laundering. Furthermore, as a data processing company that provides services to
foreign parties and facilitates financial transactions between foreign parties, we are obligated to screen transactions for
compliance with the sanctions programs administered by the U.S. Department of the Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets
Control (“OFAC”). These regulations prohibit us from entering into or facilitating a transaction to or from or dealings with
specified countries, their governments and, in certain circumstances, their nationals and others, such as narcotics traffickers and
terrorists or terrorist organizations designated by the U.S. Government under one or more sanctions regimes.

A major focus of governmental policy in recent years has been aimed at combating money laundering and terrorist financing.
Preventing and detecting money laundering and other related suspicious activities at their earliest stages warrants careful
monitoring. The BSA, along with a number of other anti-money laundering laws, imposes various reporting and record-keeping
requirements concerning currency and other types of monetary instruments. Similar anti-money laundering, counter-terrorist
financing and proceeds of crime laws apply to movements of currency and payments through electronic transactions and to
dealings with persons specified on lists maintained by organizations similar to OFAC in several other countries and which may
impose specific data retention obligations or prohibitions on intermediaries in the payment process. These laws and regulations
impose obligations to maintain appropriate policies, procedures, and controls to detect, prevent and report money laundering
and terrorist financing and to verify the identity of their customers. Failure to maintain and implement adequate programs to
combat money laundering and terrorist financing, or to comply with all of the relevant laws or regulations, could have serious
legal and reputational consequences for us. We may also be subject to enforcement actions and as a result may incur losses and
liabilities that may impact our business.
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Federal Trade Commission Act and Other Laws Impacting our Customers' Business

All persons engaged in commerce, including, but not limited to, us and our merchant and financial institution customers are
subject to Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act prohibiting Unfair or Deceptive Acts or Practices (“UDAP”). In
addition, there are other laws, rules and/or regulations, including the Telemarketing Sales Act, that may directly impact the
activities of our merchant customers and in some cases may subject us, as the merchant's payment processor, to investigations,
fees, fines, and disgorgement of funds in the event we are deemed to have aided and abetted or otherwise provided the means
and instrumentalities to facilitate the illegal activities of the merchant through our payment processing services. Federal and
state regulatory enforcement agencies including the Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, and the states' attorneys general have
authority to take action against nonbanks that engage in UDAP or violate other laws, rules, and regulations. To the extent we
process payments for a merchant that may be in violation of these laws, rules, and regulations, we may be subject to
enforcement actions and as a result may incur losses and liabilities that may impact our business.

Anti-trust and Competition Laws

We are required to comply with various federal, local, and foreign competition and anti-trust laws, including the Sherman Act,
Clayton Act, Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act, Robinson-Patman Act, Federal Trade Commission Act and Puerto
Rico Anti-Monopoly Act. In general, competition laws are designed to protect businesses and consumers from anti-competitive
behavior. Competition and anti-trust law investigations can be lengthy, and violations are subject to civil and/or criminal fines
and other sanctions for both corporations and individuals that participate in the prohibited conduct. Class action civil anti-trust
lawsuits can result in significant judgments, including in some cases, payment of treble damages and/or attorneys' fees to the
successful plaintiff. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business—We are subject to extensive government
regulation and oversight. Failure to comply with existing and future rules and regulations in the jurisdiction in which we
operate could adversely affect the operations of one or more of our businesses in those jurisdictions.”

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”), Export Administration and Other

As a data processing company that services both foreign and domestic clients, our business activities in foreign countries, and

in particular our transactions with foreign governmental entities, subject us to the anti-bribery provisions of the FCPA, as well
as the laws and regulations of the foreign jurisdiction where we operate. Pursuant to applicable anti-bribery laws, our
transactions with foreign government officials and political candidates are subject to certain limitations. Finally, in the course of
business with foreign clients and subsidiaries, we export certain software and hardware that is regulated by the Export
Administration Regulations from the United States to the foreign parties. Together, these regulations place restrictions on who
we can transact with, what transactions may be facilitated, how we may operate in foreign jurisdictions and what we may export
to foreign countries.

The preceding list of laws and regulations is not exhaustive, and the regulatory framework governing our operations changes
continuously. The enactment of new laws and regulations may increasingly affect directly and indirectly the operation of our
business, which could result in substantial regulatory compliance costs, litigation expense, loss of revenue, decreased
profitability and/or adverse publicity.

Association and Network Rules

Several of our subsidiaries are registered with or certified by card associations and payment networks, including the ATH
network, MasterCard, Visa, American Express, Discover and numerous debit and EBT networks as members or as service
providers for member institutions in connection with the services we provide to our customers. As such, we are subject to
applicable card association and network rules, which could subject us to a variety of fines or penalties that may be levied by the
card associations or networks for certain acts and/or omissions by us, our acquirer customers, processing customers and/or
merchants. For example, “EMV” is a credit and debit card authentication methodology that the card associations are mandating
to processors, issuers, and acquirers in the payment industry. Compliance deadlines for EMV mandates vary by country and by
payment network. We have invested significant resources and man-hours to develop and implement this methodology in all our
payment related platforms. However, we are not certain if or when our financial institution customers will use or accept the
methodology and the time it will take for this technology to be rolled-out to all customer ATM and POS devices connected to
our platforms or adopted by our card issuing clients. Non-compliance with EMV mandates could result in lost business or
financial losses from fraud or fines from network operators. We are also subject to network operating rules promulgated by the
National Automated Clearing House Association relating to payment transactions processed by us using the Automated
Clearing House Network and to various government laws regarding such operations, including laws pertaining to EBT.
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Geographic Concentration

For the year ended December 31, 2021, 80% of revenues were generated from our business in Puerto Rico, while the remaining
20% was generated from Latin America and the Caribbean. Latin America includes, among others, Costa Rica, México,
Guatemala, Colombia, Chile, Uruguay, Brazil, and Panama. The Caribbean primarily represents the Dominican Republic and
the Virgin Islands. See Note 24 to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for additional information related to geographic areas.

Seasonality

Our payment businesses generally experience increased activity during the traditional holiday shopping periods and around
other nationally recognized holidays.
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Available Information

EVERTEC’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to such reports (if applicable) filed or furnished pursuant to Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) are available free of charge, through our website, http://www.evertecinc.com, as
soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC. In addition, we make
available on our website under the heading of “Corporate Information” our: (i) Code of Ethics; (ii) Code of Ethics for Service
Providers; (iii) Corporate Governance Guidelines; (iv) the charters of the Audit, Compensation and Nominating and Corporate
Governance committees, and also, we intend to disclose any amendments to the Code of Ethics. The information found on our
website is not part of this or any other report we file with, or furnish to, the SEC. The aforementioned reports and materials can
also be obtained free of charge upon written request or telephoning to the following address or telephone number:

EVERTEC, Inc.
Cupey Center Building
Road, 176, Kilometer 1.3
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00926
(787) 759-9999

Our filings with the SEC are also available to the public from commercial document retrieval services and at the web site
maintained by the SEC at http://www.sec.gov.

Our Corporate Information

We were incorporated on April 13, 2012 in Puerto Rico under the name Evertec, Inc. Our principal executive offices are located
at Cupey Center Building, Road 176, Kilometer 1.3, San Juan, Puerto Rico 00926, and our telephone number is (787)
759-9999.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Readers should carefully consider, in connection with other information disclosed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the
risks and uncertainties described below. The following discussion sets forth risks that we believe are material to our
stockholders and prospective stockholders. The occurrence of any of the following risks might cause our stockholders to lose all
or a part of their investment in our Company. We cannot assure you that the risk factors described below or elsewhere in this
document are a complete set of all potential risks we may face; additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or
not believed by us to be material may also affect our business results, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, and
the trading price of our common stock. Some statements in this report, including statements in the following risk factors
section, constitute forward-looking statements. Please also refer to the section titled “Forward Looking Statements” at the
beginning of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Risks Related to Our Business

Our services to Popular account for a significant portion of our revenues, and we expect that our services to Popular will
continue to represent a significant portion of our revenues for the foreseeable future.

In 2021, we derived approximately 42% of our revenue from our relationship with Popular and the MSA is our most significant
client contract, which has an initial term ending in 2025. The majority of Popular’s business is presented in the Business
Solutions segment. If Popular were to terminate or fail to perform under the MSA, or our other material agreements with
Popular, our revenues could be materially reduced and our profitability and cash flows could also be materially reduced, all of
which would have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

If we are unable to maintain our merchant relationships and our alliance with Popular, our business may be materially
adversely affected.

Growth in our merchant acquiring business is derived primarily from acquiring new merchant relationships, new and enhanced
product and service offerings, cross selling products and services into existing relationships, the shift of consumer spending to
increased usage of electronic forms of payment, and the strength of our relationship with Banco Popular, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Popular. A substantial portion of our business is generated from our Independent Sales Organization Sponsorship
and Services Agreement (the “ISO Agreement”) with Banco Popular, which has an initial term ending in 2025.

Banco Popular acts as a merchant referral source and provides sponsorship into the ATH, Visa, Discover and MasterCard
networks for merchants, as well as card association sponsorship, clearing and settlement services. We provide transaction-
processing and related functions. Both we and Popular, as alliance partners, may provide management, sales, marketing, and
other administrative services to merchants. We rely on the continuing growth of our merchant relationships, which in turn is
dependent upon our alliance with Banco Popular and other distribution channels. There can be no guarantee that this growth
will continue and the loss or deterioration of these relationships, whether due to the termination of the ISO Agreement or
otherwise, could negatively impact our business and result in a material reduction of our revenue and income.

If we are unable to renew or negotiate extensions for our MSA with Popular, our ISO Agreement with Banco Popular and
our ATH Network Participation Agreement and ATH Support Agreement with Banco Popular (the “BPPR ATH
Agreements"), or if we are required to provide significant concessions to Popular or Banco Popular to secure extensions or
otherwise, our ability to renegotiate our debt, results of operations, financial condition and trading price of our common
stock may be materially adversely affected.

We regularly discuss with Popular the terms of the MSA and the services we provide to Popular thereunder. We cannot be
certain that we will be able to negotiate an extension to the MSA upon its expiration on its terms. Even if we are able to
negotiate an extension of the MSA, any new master services agreement may be materially different from the existing MSA.
Further, Popular may require significant concessions from us with respect to pricing, services, and other key terms, both in
respect of the current term and any future extension of the MSA. Any such events may materially and negatively impact our
financial condition, results of operations and trading price of our common stock, as well as potentially limit our ability to
renegotiate our debt.

Pursuant to our ISO Agreement with Banco Popular, Banco Popular sponsors us as an independent sales organization with
respect to certain credit card associations and is required to exclusively refer to us any merchant that inquires about, requests or
otherwise evidences interest in merchant and other services. If the ISO Agreement is not renewed, we will have to seek other
card association sponsors, we will not benefit from Banco Popular referral of merchants and we may experience the loss of
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some merchants if Banco Popular itself enters the merchant acquiring business or agrees to sponsor another independent sales
organization. Any of these events may negatively impact our financial condition and results of operations.

The BPPR ATH Agreements also have initial terms ending in 2025. Under such agreements, among other things, we provide
Banco Popular certain ATM and POS services in connection with our ATH network; we grant a license to use the ATH logo,
word mark and associated trademarks; and Banco Popular agrees to support, promote, and market the ATH network and brand
and to issue debit cards bearing the symbol of the ATH network. If one or both of the BPPR ATH Agreements are not
extended, our ATH brand and network could be negatively impacted, and our financial condition and results of operations
materially adversely affected.

The inability to renew or maintain client contracts on favorable terms or at all may materially adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition.

Our contracts with private clients generally run for a period of one to five years. Our government contracts generally run for
one year and do not include automatic renewal periods due to government procurement rules and related fiscal funding
requirements. Our standard merchant contract has an initial term of up to three years, with automatic one-year renewal periods.
At the end of the relevant contract term, clients can renew or renegotiate their contracts with us, but may also decide to engage
one of our competitors to provide products and services. If we are not successful in achieving high renewal rates and/or contract
terms that are favorable to us, our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.

We also depend on our payment processing clients to comply with their contractual obligations, applicable laws, regulatory
requirements and credit card associations rules or standards. A client's failure to comply with any such laws or requirements
could force us to declare a breach of contract and terminate the client relationship. The termination of such contracts or
relationships, as well as any inability to collect any damages caused, could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations. Additionally, any such failure by clients to comply could also result in fines,
penalties or obligations imputed to EVERTEC, which could also have a material adverse effect on our business.

We rely on our systems, employees and certain suppliers and counterparties, and certain failures could materially adversely
affect our operations.

Many of our services are based on sophisticated software, technology, and computing systems, and we may encounter delays
when developing new technology solutions and services. We have experienced and expect to continue to experience actual and
attempted cyber-attacks of our IT networks, such as through phishing scams and ransomware. The technology solutions
underlying our services have occasionally contained, and may in the future contain, undetected errors or defects when first
introduced or when new versions are released. We may experience difficulties in installing or integrating our technologies on
platforms used by our customers.

Our businesses are dependent on our ability to reliably process, record and monitor a large number of transactions. We settle
funds on behalf of financial institutions, other businesses and consumers and process funds transactions from clients, card
issuers, payment networks and consumers on a daily basis for a variety of transaction types. Transactions facilitated by us
include debit card, credit card, electronic bill payment transactions, ACH payments, electronic benefits transfer ("EBT")
transactions and check clearing that supports consumers, financial institutions, and other businesses. These payment activities
rely upon the technology infrastructure that facilitates the verification of activity with counterparties, the facilitation of the
payment and, in some cases, the detection or prevention of fraudulent payments. If any of our financial, accounting, or other
data processing systems or applications fail or experience other significant shortcomings, our ability to serve our clients and
accordingly our results of operations could be materially adversely affected. Such failures or shortcomings could be the result
of events that are beyond our control, which may include, for example, computer viruses, fires, electrical or telecommunications
outages, natural disasters, disease pandemics, terrorist acts or other unanticipated damage to property or physical assets. Any
such shortcoming could also damage our reputation, require us to expend significant resources to correct the defect, and may
result in liability to third parties, especially since some of our contractual agreements with financial institutions require the
crediting of certain fees if our systems do not meet certain specified service levels.

There is also a risk that we may lose critical data or experience system failures. We perform the vast majority of disaster
recovery operations ourselves, though we utilize select third parties for some aspects of recovery. To the extent we outsource
our disaster recovery, we are at risk of the vendor’s unresponsiveness in the event of breakdowns in our systems. Our property
and business interruption insurance may not be adequate to compensate us for all losses or failures that may occur.

We are similarly dependent on our employees. Our operations could be materially adversely affected if one or more employees
cause a significant operational breakdown or failure, either intentionally or as a result of human error. Suppliers and third
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parties with which we do business could also be sources of operational risk to us, including relating to breakdowns or failures of
such parties’ own systems or employees. Any of these occurrences could diminish our ability to operate one or more of our
businesses, or result in potential liability to clients, reputational damage and regulatory intervention or fines, any of which could
materially adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations.

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has had, and may continue to have, a negative impact on the global economy and may
have a negative impact on our business, operations, and results.

The COVID-19 pandemic, and measures taken to contain and/or mitigate it, such as travel bans and restrictions, quarantines,
shelter in place or total lock-down orders and business limitations and shutdowns, have had dramatic adverse consequences for
the global economy. The effects of COVID-19 on our business and our financial condition could include but are not limited to
the following: (i) payment processing risks associated with disruptions to merchant activity and business failures including
chargeback risk; (i) adverse effects on revenue streams for certain lines of business in the Business Solutions segment
(including core banking, network services, IT consulting, cash and item processing); (iii) reduced transactional revenue in our
Payment Services - Latin America segment; (iv) additional regulatory requirements; (v) changes to normal operations; (vi)
impairments in our ability to timely deliver key projects; (vii) negative effects of general macroeconomic conditions on
consumer confidence; (viii) significant reductions or volatility in demand for one or more of our products and (ix) reduced
demand from consumers, stemming from the concern of the risk of contracting COVID-19, resulting in loss of profits.

These factors may prevail for a significant period of time and may adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition even after the COVID-19 outbreak has subsided, including any economic downturn or recession that has
occurred or may occur in the future. If these effects are sustained, they could have accounting consequences such as
impairments of tangible and intangible long-lived assets and could affect our ability to operate effective internal control over
financial reporting and execute expansion plans or invest in product development. Further, to the extent the COVID-19
pandemic adversely affects our business, results of operations or financial condition, it may also have the effect of heightening
many of the other risks described in this “Risk Factors” section.

We are subject to security breaches or other confidential data theft from our systems, which can adversely affect our
reputation and business.

As part of our business, we electronically receive, process, store and transmit a wide range of confidential information,
including sensitive customer information and personal consumer data, such as names and addresses, social security numbers,
driver’s license numbers, cardholder data and payment history records. We also operate payment, cash access and electronic
card systems. Attacks on information technology systems continue to grow in frequency, complexity and sophistication, a trend
we expect will continue. The objectives of these attacks include, among other things, gaining unauthorized access to systems to
facilitate financial fraud, disrupt operations, cause denial of service events, corrupt data, and steal non-public information. Such
attacks have become a point of focus for individuals, businesses, and governmental entities.

Unauthorized access to our computer systems or databases could result in the theft or publication of confidential information,
the deletion or modification of records or could otherwise cause interruptions in the successful operations of our businesses.
These risks are increased when we transmit information over the Internet as our visibility in the global payments industry
attracts hackers to conduct attacks on our systems. Our security measures may also be breached due to the mishandling or
misuse of information; for example, if such information were erroneously provided to parties who are not permitted to have the
information, either by employees acting contrary to our policies or as a result of a fault in our systems.

Actual or perceived vulnerabilities or data breaches may lead to claims against us, which may require us to spend significant
additional resources to remediate by addressing problems caused by breaches and further protect against security or privacy
breaches. Additionally, while we maintain insurance policies specifically for cyber-attacks, our current insurance policies may
not be adequate to reimburse us for losses caused by security breaches, and we may not be able to collect fully, if at all, under
these insurance policies. A significant security breach, such as loss of credit card numbers and related information, could have a
material adverse effect on our reputation and could result in a loss of customers throughout the years. Some of our systems have
experienced in the past and may experience in the future security breaches and, although they did not have a material adverse
effect on our operating results or reputation, there can be no assurance of a similar result in the future. We cannot assure you
that our security measures will prevent security breaches or that failure to prevent them will not have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and reputation. Any breaches of network or data security at our
customers, partners or vendors could have similar negative effects.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, we transitioned a significant subset of our employee population to a remote working
environment, which may exacerbate various cybersecurity risks to our business, including an increased demand for information
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technology resources, an increased risk of phishing and other cybersecurity attacks, and an increased risk of unauthorized
dissemination of sensitive personal information or proprietary or confidential information.

We are subject to the credit risk that our merchants will be unable to satisfy obligations for which we may also be liable.

We are subject to the credit risk of our merchants being unable to satisfy obligations for which we also may be liable. For
example, as the merchant acquirer, we are contingently liable for transactions originally acquired by us that are disputed by the
cardholder and charged back to the merchants. For certain merchants, if we are unable to collect amounts paid to cardholders in
the form of refunds or chargebacks from the merchant, we bear the loss for those amounts. A default on payment obligations by
one or more of our merchants could have a material adverse effect on our business.

The ability to adopt technology to changing industry and customer needs or trends may affect our competitiveness or
demand for our products, which may adversely affect our operating results.

Changes in technology may limit the competitiveness of and demand for our services. Our businesses operate in industries that
are subject to technological advancements, developing industry standards and changing customer needs and preferences. Also,
our customers continue to adopt new technology for business and personal uses. We must anticipate and respond to these
industry and customer changes in order to remain competitive within our relative markets. Our inability to respond to new
competitors and technological advancements could impact all of our businesses. For example, the ability to adopt technological
advancements surrounding POS technology available to merchants could have a material and adverse impact on our merchant
acquiring business.

Consolidations in the banking and financial services industry could adversely affect our revenues by eliminating existing or
potential clients and making us more dependent on a more limited number of clients.

In recent years, there have been a number of mergers and consolidations in the banking and financial services industry. Mergers
and consolidations of financial institutions reduce the number of our clients and potential clients, which could adversely affect
our revenues. Further, if our clients fail or merge with or are acquired by other entities that are not our clients, or that use fewer
of our services, they may discontinue or reduce their use of our services. It is also possible that the larger banks or financial
institutions resulting from mergers or consolidations would have greater leverage to negotiate terms less favorable to us or
could decide to perform in-house some or all of the services which we currently provide or could provide. Any of these
developments could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

There may be a change in the use of cards as a payment mechanism or adverse developments with respect to card industry in
general.

If the number of electronic and digital payment transactions of the type we process does not continue to grow or if businesses or
consumers do not continue to adopt our services, it could have a material adverse effect on the profitability of our business,
financial position, and results of operations. We believe future growth in the use of credit, debit and other electronic and digital
payments will be driven by the cost, ease-to-use, and quality of products and services offered to customers and businesses. In
order to consistently increase and maintain our profitability, businesses and consumers must continue to use electronic and
digital payment methods that we process, including credit and debit cards.

Changes in credit card association or other network rules or standards could adversely affect our business.

In order to provide our transaction-processing services, several of our subsidiaries are registered with or certified by Visa,
Discover and MasterCard and other networks as members or as service providers for member institutions. As such, we and
many of our customers are subject to card association and network rules that could subject us or our customers to a variety of
fines or penalties that may be levied by the card associations or networks for certain acts or omissions by us, acquirer
customers, processing customers and merchants. Visa, Discover, MasterCard and other networks, some of which are our
competitors, set the standards with which we must comply. The termination of Banco Popular’s or our subsidiaries’ member
registration or our subsidiaries’ status as a certified service provider, or any changes in card association or other network rules
or standards, including interpretation and implementation of the rules or standards, that increase the cost of doing business or
limit our ability to provide transaction-processing services to or through our customers, could have an adverse effect on our
business, operating results and financial condition.

Changes in interchange fees charged by credit card associations and debit networks could increase our costs or otherwise
materially adversely affect our business.
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From time to time, card associations and debit networks change interchange, processing, and other fees, which could impact our
merchant acquiring and payment services businesses. Competitive pressures could result in our merchant acquiring and
payment services businesses absorbing a portion of such increases in the future, which would increase our operating costs,
reduce our profit margin, and adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition.

We are subject to extensive government regulation and oversight. Failure to comply with existing and future rules and
regulations in the jurisdictions in which we operate could materially adversely affect the operations of one or more of our
businesses in those jurisdictions.

Our business is subject to the laws, rules, regulations, and policies in the countries in which we operate, as well as the legal
interpretation of such regulations by administrative bodies and the judiciary of those countries. The expansion of our business
may also result in increased regulatory oversight and enforcement, as well as any claims by regulatory agencies and courts that
we are required to obtain licenses to engage in certain business activity.

Enforcement of, failure, or perceived failure to comply with laws, rules, regulations, policies, or licensing requirements could
result in criminal or civil lawsuits, penalties, fines, forfeiture of significant assets, an outright or partial restriction on our
operations, enforcement in one or more jurisdictions, additional compliance and licensure requirements, and force us to change
the way we or our users do business. Any changes in our or our users' business methods could increase cost or reduce revenue.

The laws, rules, regulations, and policies in the markets in which we operate include, but are not limited to, privacy and user
data protection, banking, money transmission, antitrust, anti-money laundering and the export, re-export, and re-transfer abroad
of covered items. In addition, our operations in most of the countries where we operate are subject to risks related to compliance
with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other applicable U.S. and other local laws prohibiting corrupt payments to
government officials and other third parties.

Privacy and Use Data Protection

Our business relies on the processing of data in multiple jurisdictions and the movement of data across national borders. Legal
requirements relating to the collection, storage, handling, use, disclosure, transfer, and security of personal data continues to
evolve, and regulatory scrutiny in this area is increasing around the world. Significant uncertainty exists as privacy and data
protection laws may differ from country to country and may create inconsistent or conflicting requirements. Our ongoing efforts
to comply with privacy, cybersecurity, and data protection laws may entail expenses, may divert resources from other initiatives
and projects, and could limit the service we are able to offer. Enforcement actions and investigations by regulatory authorities
related to data security incidents and privacy actions or investigations could damage our reputation and impact us through
increased costs or restrictions on our business, and noncompliance could result in regulatory penalties and significant legal
liability.

Banking

In general, financial institution regulators require their supervised institutions to cause their service providers to agree to certain
terms and to agree to supervision and oversight by applicable financial regulators, primarily to protect the safety and soundness
of the financial institution. We have agreed to such terms and provisions in many of our service agreements with financial
institutions.

We and our customers are also generally subject to U.S. federal, Puerto Rico and other countries’ laws, rules and regulations
that affect the electronic payments industry, including with respect to activities in the countries where we operate and due to our
relationship with Popular.

Regulation of the electronic payment card industry has increased significantly in recent years. There is also continued scrutiny
by the U.S. Congress of the manner in which payment card networks and card issuers set various fees. Banking regulators have
been strengthening their examination guidelines with respect to relationships between banks and their third-party service
providers, such as us. Any such heightened supervision of our relationship with Popular could have an effect on our contractual
relationship with Popular as well as on the standards applied in the evaluation of our services. See “Item 1. Business-
Government Regulation and Payment Network Rules-Regulatory Reform and Other Legislative Initiatives.”

To the extent that we are deemed to be controlled by Popular pursuant to regulation and guidance under the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956 (the “BHC Act”), we will be subject to regulation, supervision, and examination by the U.S. Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve Board”). The BHC Act defines “control” differently than
GAAP, and “control” can be found based on a variety of facts and circumstances. New lines of business, other new activities
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and acquisitions that we may wish to commence or undertake in the future, including the manner in which we conduct our
business or may undertake such activities or acquisitions, may not be permissible for us under the BHC Act, the Federal
Reserve Board's Regulation K or other applicable U.S. federal banking laws or may require the approval of the Federal Reserve
Board or another applicable U.S. federal banking regulator. Potential acquisitions may take longer, be more costly, or make us
less attractive as a buyer. There can be no assurance that any required regulatory approvals will be obtained, or that they will be
obtained without regulatory conditions. Additional regulatory requirements may be imposed on our activities or acquisitions to
the extent we are controlled by Popular and Popular is subject to any supervisory or enforcement action, even if the supervisory
actions are unrelated to us or to our business. To the extent that we are deemed to be controlled by Popular for purposes of the
BHC Act, we may conduct only activities authorized under the BHC Act and the Federal Reserve Board's Regulation K and
other related regulations for a bank holding company or a financial holding company. These restrictions may limit our ability to
acquire other businesses or enter into other strategic transactions.

Export

We are also subject to the Export Administration Regulations (“EAR”), which regulates the export, re-export and re-transfer
abroad of covered items made or originating in the United States as well as the transfer of covered U.S.-origin technology
abroad. There can be no assurance that we have not violated the EAR in past transactions or that our new policies and
procedures will prevent us from violating the EAR in every transaction in which we engage. Any such violations of the EAR
could result in fines, penalties or other sanctions being imposed on us, which could negatively affect our business, operating
results, and financial condition.

Some financial institutions refuse, even in the absence of a regulatory requirement, to provide services to companies operating
in certain countries or engaging in certain practices because of concerns that the compliance efforts perceived to be necessary
may outweigh the usefulness of the service relationship. Our operations outside the United States make it more likely that
financial institutions may refuse to conduct business with us for this type of reason. Any such refusal could negatively affect
our business, operating results, and financial condition.

We and our subsidiaries conduct business with financial institutions and/or card payment networks operating in countries whose
nationals, including some of our customers, engage in transactions in countries that are the target of U.S. economic sanctions
and embargoes, including Cuba. As a U.S.-based entity, we and our subsidiaries are obligated to comply with the economic
sanctions regulations administered by OFAC. These regulations prohibit U.S.-based entities from entering into or facilitating
unlicensed transactions with, for the benefit of, or in some cases involving the property and property interests of, persons,
governments, or countries designated by the U.S. government under one or more sanctions regimes. Various state and
municipal governments, universities and other investors maintain prohibitions or restrictions on investments in companies that
do business involving sanctioned countries or entities.

Because we process transactions on behalf of financial institutions through the payment networks, we have processed a limited
number of transactions potentially involving sanctioned countries and there can be no assurances that, in the future, we will not
inadvertently process such transactions. Due to a variety of factors, including technical failures and limitations of our
transaction screening process, conflicts between U.S. and local laws, political or other concerns in certain countries in which we
and our subsidiaries operate, and/or failures in our ability to effectively control employees operating in certain non-U.S.
subsidiaries, we have not rejected every transaction originating from or otherwise involving sanctioned countries, or persons
and there can be no assurances that, in the future, we will not inadvertently fail to reject such transactions.

Antitrust

Due to our ownership of the ATH network and our merchant acquiring and payment services business in Puerto Rico, we are
involved in a significant percentage of the debit and credit card transactions conducted in Puerto Rico each day. We have in the
past been subject to regulatory investigations and any future regulatory scrutiny of, or regulatory enforcement action in
connection with, compliance with U.S. state and federal antitrust requirements could potentially have a material adverse effect
on our reputation and business. In connection with any acquisitions, in addition to other U.S. federal requirements, we must also
comply with antitrust and/or competition law requirements.
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Puerto Rico's fiscal crisis could have a material adverse effect on our business and the trading price of our common stock.

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, approximately 80% and 82%, respectively, of our total revenues were
generated from our operations in Puerto Rico. Some revenues that are generated from our operations outside Puerto Rico are
dependent upon our operations in Puerto Rico. As a result, our financial condition and results of operations are highly
dependent on the economic and political conditions in Puerto Rico, and could be significantly impacted by adverse economic or
political developments in Puerto Rico, including adverse effects on the trading price of our common stock, our customer base,
general consumer spending and the timeliness of the Government's payments, thus increasing our Government accounts
receivable, and potentially impairing the collectability of those accounts receivable. As of December 31, 2021, we had net
receivables of $14.1 million from the Government and certain public corporations.

A protracted government shutdown could negatively affect our financial condition

During any protracted federal government shutdown, the federal government may reduce or cut funding for certain welfare and
disaster relief programs. Beneficiaries of certain federal programs, such as the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
(SNAP), obtain their benefits through electronic benefits transfer (EBT) accounts. A temporary or permanent reduction in
federal welfare and relief programs could lead to a decrease in electronic benefit card volume. The effect of a protracted
government shutdown now or in the future may materially and adversely affect our revenues, profitability, and cash flows.

Puerto Rico's economy, including its financial crisis and the effects of potential natural disasters, could have a prolonged
negative impact on the countries in which we operate and a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations.

Puerto Rico's location in the Caribbean exposes the island to increased risk of hurricanes and other severe tropical weather
conditions and natural disasters. Hurricanes and other natural disasters including earthquakes, and their potential aftermaths,
such as widespread power outages in Puerto Rico, damage to infrastructure and communications networks, and the temporary
cessation and slow pace of reestablishment of regular day-to-day commerce, may severely impact the economies of Puerto Rico
and the Caribbean. Any such events could further accelerate the ongoing emigration trend of Puerto Rico residents to the United
States. Any prolonged delay in the repairs to the island's infrastructures, decline in business volumes, insufficient federal
recovery and rebuilding assistance and any other economic declines due to hurricanes and their aftermaths may impact demand
for our services and could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

As a result of Puerto Rico's high cost of electricity and governmental financial crisis, businesses may be reluctant to establish or
expand their operations in Puerto Rico and the Caribbean, or might consider closing operations currently in such locations. If
companies in the financial services and related industries decide not to commence new operations or not to expand their
existing operations in Puerto Rico, or consider closing operations in Puerto Rico, the demand for our services could be
negatively affected.

We are exposed to risks associated with our presence in international markets, including political or economic instability.

Our financial performance and results of operations may be adversely affected by general economic, political, and social
conditions and uncertainty in the emerging markets in which we operate. Many countries in Latin America have suffered
significant economic, political, and social crises in the past, including most recently as a result of the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic and the related restrictions imposed to mitigate its impact, and these events may occur again in the future. Instability
in Latin America has been caused by many different factors, including (i) exposure to foreign exchange variation, (ii)
significant governmental influence over local economies; (iii) substantial fluctuations in economic growth; (iv) high inflation
levels or domestic interest rates; (v) wage, price or exchange controls, or restrictions on expatriation of earnings; (vi) changes in
governmental economic or tax policies or unexpected changes in regulation which may restrict the movement of funds or
results in the deprivation of contract or property rights; (vii) imposition of trade barriers; (viii) terrorist attacks and other acts of
violence or war; and (ix) overall political, social, and economic instability. Any of these events in the markets in which we
operate could result in a material adverse impact on our business.

Failure to protect our intellectual property rights and defend ourselves from potential intellectual property infringement
claims may diminish our competitive advantages or restrict us from delivering our services, which could result in a material
and adverse impact on our business operations.

Our trademarks, proprietary software, and other intellectual property, including technology/software licenses, are important to

our future success. Limitations or restrictions on our ability to use such marks or a diminution in the perceived quality
associated therewith could have an adverse impact on the growth of our businesses. We also rely on proprietary software and
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technology, including third party software that is used under licenses. It is possible that others will independently develop the
same or similar software or technology, which would permit them to compete with us more efficiently. If any of the third-party
software or technology licenses are terminated or otherwise determined to be unenforceable, then we would have to obtain a
comparable license, which may involve increased license fees and other costs.

Unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or misappropriate certain aspects of our services, infringe upon our rights, or to
obtain and use information that we regard as proprietary. Policing such unauthorized use of our proprietary rights is often very
difficult, and therefore, we are unable to guarantee that the steps we have taken will prevent misappropriation of our proprietary
software/technology or that the agreements entered into for that purpose will be effective or enforceable in all instances.
Misappropriation of our intellectual property or potential litigation concerning such matters could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations or financial condition. Our registrations and/or applications for trademarks, copyrights, and patents
could be challenged, invalidated, or circumvented by others and may not be of sufficient scope or strength to provide us with
maximum protection or meaningful advantage. Managing any such challenges, even if they lack merit, could: (i) be expensive
and time-consuming to defend; (ii) cause us to cease making, licensing, or using software or applications that incorporate the
challenged intellectual property; (iii) require us to redesign our software or applications, if feasible; (iv) divert management’s
attention and resources; and (v) require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements in order to obtain the right to use
necessary technologies. The laws of certain foreign countries in which we do business or contemplate doing business in the
future may not protect intellectual property rights to the same extent as do the laws of the United States or Puerto Rico. Adverse
determinations in judicial or administrative proceedings related to intellectual property or licenses could prevent us from selling
our services and products or prevent us from preventing others from selling competing services, impose liability costs on us, or
result in a non-favorable settlement, all of which could result in a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

If EVERTEC Group does not comply with the terms of its preferential tax exemption grant, it may be subject to reduction of
the benefits of the grant, tax penalties, other payment obligations or full revocation of the grant, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and our stock price.

EVERTEC Group has a tax exemption grant under the Tax Incentive Act No. 73 of 2008 from the Government of Puerto Rico.
Under this grant, EVERTEC Group will benefit from a preferential income tax rate of 4% on industrial development income, as
well as from tax exemptions with respect to its municipal and property tax obligations for certain activities derived from its data
processing operations in Puerto Rico. The grant has a term of 15 years effective as of January 1, 2012 with respect to income
tax obligations and July 1, 2013 and January 1, 2013 with respect to municipal and property tax obligations, respectively.

The grant contains customary commitments, conditions, and representations that EVERTEC Group is required to comply with
in order to maintain the grant. The more significant commitments include: (i) maintaining at least 750 employees in EVERTEC
Group’s Puerto Rico data processing operations during 2012 and at least 700 employees for the remaining years of the grant,
(ii) investing at least $200.0 million in building, machinery, equipment or computer programs to be used in Puerto Rico during
the effective term of the grant (to be made over four year capital investment cycles in $50.0 million increments), (iii) an
additional best efforts capital investments requirement of $75.0 million by December 31, 2026 (to be made over four year
capital investment cycles in $20.0 million the first three increments and $15.0 million the last increment); and (iv) 80% of
EVERTEC Group employees must be residents of Puerto Rico. Failure to meet the requirements could result, among other
things, in reductions in the benefits of the grant, tax penalties, other payment obligations or revocation of the grant in its
entirety, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Our Securities, Corporate Structure and Governance

Future sales or the possibility of future sales of a substantial amount of our common stock may depress the price of shares
of our common stock

We may sell additional shares of common stock in subsequent public offerings or otherwise, including financing acquisitions.
Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation authorizes us to issue 206,000,000 shares of common stock, of which
71,969,856 are outstanding as of December 31, 2021. All of these shares, other than the 11,654,803 shares held by Popular and
the shares held by our officers and directors, are freely transferable without restriction or further registration under the
Securities Act. We cannot predict the size of future issuances of our common stock or the effect, if any that future issuances and
sales of our common stock will have on the market price of our common stock. Sales of substantial amounts of our common
stock (including any shares issued in connection with an acquisition), or the perception that such sales could occur, may
adversely affect prevailing market prices for our common stock.
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We are a holding company and rely on dividends and other payments, advances, and transfers of funds from our
subsidiaries to meet our obligations and pay any dividends.

We have no direct operations or significant assets other than the ownership of 100% of the membership interest of Holdings,
which in turn has no significant assets other than ownership of 100% of the membership interest of EVERTEC Group. Because
we conduct our operations through our subsidiaries, we depend on those entities for dividends and other payments to generate
the funds necessary to meet our financial obligations, and to pay any dividends with respect to our common stock. Legal and
contractual restrictions in our existing secured credit facilities and other agreements which may govern future indebtedness of
our subsidiaries, as well as the financial condition and operating requirements of our subsidiaries, may limit our ability to obtain
cash from our subsidiaries. We are prohibited from paying any cash dividend on our common stock unless we satisfy certain
conditions. The secured credit facilities also include limitations on the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends to us. The
earnings from, or other available assets of, our subsidiaries may not be sufficient to pay dividends or make distributions or loans
or enable us to pay any dividends on our common stock or other obligations.

The interests of Popular may conflict with or differ from your interests as a stockholder.

Popular has the right to nominate two members of our Board and, therefore, may be able to influence our decisions. The
interests of Popular could conflict with your interests as a holder of shares of our common stock. For example, the
concentration of ownership held by Popular, the terms of the Stockholder Agreement and our organizational documents
(including Popular’s quorum rights and consent rights over amendments to our bylaws) and Popular’s right to terminate certain
of its agreements with us in certain situations upon a change of control of EVERTEC Group, could delay, defer or prevent
certain significant corporate actions that you as a stockholder may otherwise view favorably, including a change of control of us
(whether by merger, takeover or other business combination). See “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions” in
our proxy statement for a description of the circumstances under which Popular may terminate certain of its agreements with us.
A sale of a substantial number of shares of stock in the future by Popular could cause our stock price to decline.

Our organizational documents and Stockholder Agreement may impede or discourage a takeover, which could deprive our
investors of the opportunity to receive a premium for their shares.

Provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws and the Stockholder
Agreement may make it more difficult for, or prevent a third party from, acquiring control of us without the approval of our
Board and/or Popular. These provisions include:

* avoting agreement pursuant to which Popular agreed to vote its shares in favor of the Popular director nominees
(which, constitute the right to appoint two of our nine directors), directors nominated by a committee of our Board in
accordance with the Stockholder Agreement and the management director and to remove and replace any such directors
in accordance with the terms of the Stockholder Agreement and applicable law and an agreement by us to take all actions
within our control necessary and desirable to cause the election, removal and replacement of such directors in accordance
with the Stockholder Agreement and applicable law;

* requiring that a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board (other than a reconvened meeting
with the same agenda as the originally adjourned meeting) consist of (1) a majority of the total number of directors then
serving on the Board and (2) at least one director nominated by Popular, for so long as it owns, together with its
affiliates, 5% or more of our outstanding common stock;

+ prohibiting cumulative voting in the election of directors;

+ authorizing the issuance of “blank check” preferred stock without any need for action by stockholders other than
Popular (as further described below);

* prohibiting stockholders from acting by written consent unless the action is taken by unanimous written consent; and

* establishing advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our Board or for proposing matters that can be
acted on by stockholders at stockholder meetings, which advance notice requirements are not applicable to any directors
nominated in accordance with the terms of the Stockholder Agreement.

Our issuance of shares of preferred stock could delay or prevent a change in control of us. Our Board has authority to issue
shares of preferred stock, subject to the approval of at least one director nominated by Popular for so long as Popular, together
with its respective affiliates, owns at least 10% of our outstanding common stock. Our Board may issue preferred stock in one
or more series, designate the number of shares constituting any series, and fix the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions
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thereof, including dividend rights, voting rights, rights and terms of redemption, redemption price or prices and liquidation
preferences of such series. Popular, under and subject to the Stockholder Agreement and our organizational documents, will
retain significant influence over matters requiring board or stockholder approval, including the election of directors. Together,
our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, bylaws and Stockholder Agreement could make the removal of
management more difficult and may discourage transactions that otherwise could involve payment of a premium over
prevailing market prices for our common stock. The existence of the foregoing provisions, as well as the significant percentage
of shares of our outstanding common stock owned by Popular and its individual right to nominate a specified number of
directors in certain circumstances, could limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our
common stock. They could also deter potential acquirers of us, thereby reducing the likelihood that you could receive a
premium for your common stock in an acquisition.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness

Our substantial leverage could adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital, limit our ability to react to changes in
the economy or our industry, expose us to interest rate risk and prevent us from meeting our obligations with respect to our
substantial indebtedness, and we and our subsidiaries may be able to incur significant additional indebtedness, which could
further increase such risks.

We are highly leveraged. As of December 31, 2021, the total principal amount of our indebtedness was approximately $467.5
million. Our high degree of leverage could have a significant impact on us, including (i) increasing our vulnerability to adverse
economic, industry or competitive developments; (ii) requiring a substantial portion of cash flow from operations to be
dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on our indebtedness, reducing our ability to use our cash flow for other
purposes, including for our operations, capital expenditures and future business opportunities; (iii) exposing us to the risk of
increased interest rates because our borrowings are predominantly at variable rates of interest; (iv) making it difficult for us to
satisfy our indebtedness obligations generally, including complying with restrictive covenants and borrowing conditions, our
noncompliance with which could result in an event of default under the agreements setting forth the terms of other
indebtedness; (V) restricting us from making strategic acquisitions or causing us to make non-strategic divestitures; (vi) limiting
our ability to obtain additional debt or equity financing for working capital, capital expenditures, business development, debt
service requirements, acquisitions and general corporate or other purposes; and (vii) limiting our flexibility in planning for, or
reacting to, changes in our business or market conditions and placing us at a competitive disadvantage to competitors who may
be less highly leveraged.

We and our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future, some of which may be secured.
In addition to the $119.1 million which was available for borrowing under our revolving credit facility as of December 31,
2021, the terms of the secured credit facilities enable us to increase the amount available under the term loan and/or revolving
credit facilities if we are able to obtain loan commitments from banks and satisfy certain other conditions. If new debt is added
to our and our subsidiaries’ existing debt levels, the related risks that we face would increase.

If we are unable to comply with covenants in our debt instruments that limit our flexibility in operating our business or
obligate us to take action such as deliver financial reports, we may default under our debt instruments and our indebtedness
may become due.

The agreement setting forth the terms of the secured credit facilities contain, and any future indebtedness we incur may contain,
various covenants that limit our ability to engage in specified types of transactions. These covenants limit our ability and our
restricted subsidiaries’ ability to (i) incur additional indebtedness or issue certain preferred shares; (ii) pay dividends on,
repurchase or make distributions in respect of our capital stock or make other restricted payments; (iii) make certain
investments; (iv) sell certain assets; (v) grant liens; (vi) consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of
our assets; (vii) enter into certain transactions with our affiliates; and (viii) designate our subsidiaries as unrestricted
subsidiaries.

As a result of these covenants, we are limited in the manner in which we conduct our business, and we may be unable to engage
in favorable business activities or finance future operations or capital needs. The covenants in the secured credit facilities
require us to maintain a maximum total secured net leverage ratio. A breach of any of these covenants could result in a default
under one or more of these agreements, including as a result of cross default provisions and, in the case of our revolving credit
facility, permit the lenders to cease making loans to us. Upon the occurrence of an event of default under the secured credit
facilities, the lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstanding under the secured credit facilities to be immediately due and
payable and terminate all commitments to extend further credit. Such actions by those lenders could cause cross defaults under
our other indebtedness. If we were unable to repay those amounts, the lenders under our secured credit facilities could proceed
against the collateral granted to them to secure that indebtedness. We have pledged a significant portion of our assets as
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collateral under the secured credit facilities. If the lenders under the secured credit facilities accelerate the repayment of
borrowings, the proceeds from the sale or foreclosure upon such assets will first be used to repay debt under our secured credit
facilities and we may not have sufficient assets to repay our unsecured indebtedness thereafter. As a result, our common stock
could become worthless.

Discontinuation, reform or replacement of LIBOR and other benchmark rates, or uncertainty related to the potential for any
of the foregoing, may adversely affect our business.

At December 31, 2021, we had $467.5 million of borrowings under our secured credit facilities bearing interest at Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus an applicable margin. In July 2017, the U.K. Financial Conduct Authority announced its intention
to phase out LIBOR by the end of 2021. However, for U.S. dollar-denominated (“USD”) LIBOR, only one-week and two-
month USD LIBOR have ceased to be published after 2021, and all remaining USD LIBOR tenors will continue being
published until June 2023. It is not possible to predict the effect of any changes in the methods by which LIBOR is determined
or regulatory activity related to LIBOR's phaseout. Any of these developments could cause LIBOR to perform differently than
in the past or cease to exist. If a published U.S. dollar LIBOR rate is unavailable, the interest rates on our debt indexed to
LIBOR will be determined using various alternative methods set forth in our existing secured credit facilities, any of which
could result in interest obligations that are more than or that do not otherwise correlate over time with the payments that would
have been made on this debt if U.S. dollar LIBOR were available in its current form. Any of these proposals or consequences
could have a material adverse effect on our financing costs. We may choose in the future to pursue amendments to our secured
credit facilities to provide for a comparable or successor rate, but we can give no assurance that we will be able to reach
agreement with our lenders on any such amendments.

At December 31, 2021, we also had an interest rate swap agreement which is designed to protect us from changes in interest
rates. If LIBOR becomes unavailable and market quotations for specified inter-bank lending are not available, it is unclear how
payments under such agreement would be calculated, which could cause these agreements to no longer offer us the protection
we expect.

Risks Related to the Popular Transaction

The Popular Transaction is contingent upon the satisfaction of a number of conditions, and the transaction may not be
consummated on the terms or timeline currently contemplated, or at all.

On February 24, 2022, we entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Popular, Inc. and Banco Popular, pursuant to which
we will sell certain assets that are currently used to provide services to Banco Popular under the MSA, and, in connection with
the closing of which, we and Banco Popular agreed to enter into certain other agreements and to amend and extend the duration
of certain existing commercial agreements (collectively, the “Popular Transaction™).

The consummation of the Popular Transaction is subject to certain conditions, including (i) satisfaction of certain regulatory
requirements, including under the Hart-Scott Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act and the Bank Holding Company Act, (ii)
completion of certain actions required in order to operate the acquired assets under Banco Popular ownership (iii) the absence
of any injunction or other order from a governmental authority that prevents the closing of the Popular Transaction, and (iv)
subject to certain exceptions, the accuracy of the representations and warranties of, and compliance with covenants by, the other
party. There can be no assurances that such conditions will be satisfied.

The proposed transaction may result in disruptions to relationships with customers and other business partners or may not
achieve the intended results and may increase the risk of a change of control of the Company.

If we complete the Popular Transaction, there can be no assurance that we will be able to realize the intended benefits of the
transaction. Specifically, the Popular Transaction could cause disruptions in our remaining businesses or otherwise limiting the
ability to compete for or perform certain contracts or services. Any of the foregoing could adversely affect our remaining
businesses, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Banco Popular has agreed that, following the closing of the Popular Transaction, it will seek to sell common stock in an amount
sufficient to reduce its shareholding below 5% and if it has not done so within 90 days, subject to the satisfaction of certain
requirements by the Company, then it will exchange any shares it holds above 4.5% for newly issued non-voting convertible
preferred stock of the Company that will convert automatically into common stock upon a qualified transfer by Banco Popular
to an unaffiliated third party.
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The limited voting stake to be held by Banco Popular, as well as the corresponding reduction in Banco Popular’s right to
nominate directors to the Company’s board of directors, may increase the likelihood of a change of control of the Company.

The actions required to implement the Popular Transaction will take significant management time and attention

The Popular Transaction will require significant amounts of management’s time and resources, which will be in addition to and
may divert management’s time and attention from the operation of our remaining businesses and the execution of our other
strategic initiatives. Additionally, we will incur costs in connection with the Popular Transaction. These costs must be paid
regardless of whether the Popular Transaction is consummated.

The Popular Transaction will result in an immediate reduction to our revenues and income and will not provide any cash at
closing.

While the term of certain commercial agreements between the Company and Popular will be extended at closing, the Popular
Transaction will result in a reduction of revenues to the Company from Banco Popular under the MSA (and related costs) that

will primarily impact our Business Services segment. Because the consideration for the asset sale will be shares of common
stock that are currently owned by Banco Popular, we will not receive a cash payment at closing. A reduction in the revenues

and profitability of our Business Services segment may increase leverage ratios under our existing credit agreement that could
impact our indebtedness levels in the future.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties
Our principal operations are conducted in Puerto Rico. Our principal executive offices are leased and located at Cupey Center
Building, Road 176, Kilometer 1.3, San Juan, Puerto Rico 00926.

We own one property in Costa Rica, in the province of San Jose, which is used by our Costa Rican subsidiary for its payment
services business. We also lease space in 14 other locations across Latin America and the Caribbean, including various data
centers and office facilities to meet our sales and operating needs. We believe that our properties are in good operating
condition and adequately serve our current business operations. We also anticipate that suitable additional or alternative space,
including those under lease options, will be available at commercially reasonable terms for future expansion.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are defendants in various lawsuits or arbitration proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. Management
believes, based on the opinion of legal counsel and other factors, that the aggregated liabilities, if any, arising from such actions
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of operations and the cash flows of the Company.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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Part 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Market Information for Common Stock
Our common stock trades on the NYSE under the symbol "EVTC".

Holders of Record

As of February 18, 2022, there were 405 registered holders of our common stock. Given that many of our shares of common
stock are held in “street name” by brokers and other institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are unable to estimate the total
number of stockholders represented by these record holders.

Dividends

The Company has a history of paying cash dividends. Any declaration and payment of future dividends to holders of our
common stock will be at the discretion of our Board and will depend on many factors, including our financial condition,
earnings, available cash, business opportunities, legal requirements, restrictions in our debt agreements and other contracts,
capital requirements, level of indebtedness and other factors that our Board deems relevant. The covenants of our secured credit
facilities may limit our ability to pay dividends on our common stock and limit the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends
to us if we do not meet required performance metrics contained in our debt agreements. See “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Financial Obligations.”

We are a holding company and have no direct operations. We will only be able to pay dividends from our available cash on
hand and funds received from our subsidiaries, Holdings and EVERTEC Group, whose ability to make any payments to us will
depend upon many factors, including their operating results and cash flows. In addition, the secured credit facilities limit
EVERTEC Inc.’s ability to pay distributions on its equity interests. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Financial Obligations.”

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

In connection with our initial public offering, we adopted the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2013 Plan”) and reserved
5,956,882 shares of our Common Stock for issuance upon exercise and grants of stock options, restricted stock and other equity
awards. We have filed a Form S-8 under the Securities Act covering such shares of our common stock reserved for issuance

under the 2013 Plan.

The following table summarizes equity compensation plans approved by security holders and equity compensation plans that
were not approved by security holders as of December 31, 2021:

Number of securities remaining

Number of securities to Weighted average available for future issuance
be issued upon exercise exercise price of under equity compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities reflected
warrants and rights warrants and rights in column (A))
Plan Category (A) (B)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders " 1,086,329 $0.00 1,414,664
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders N/A N/A N/A

1) The Company's 2013 Plan was approved by the two sole stockholders prior to the Company's initial public offering,
Popular and a fund managed by Apollo Global Management, LLC.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph shall not be deemed incorporated by reference and shall not constitute soliciting material or
otherwise considered filed under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act.

The following graph shows a comparison of the cumulative total return for our common stock, the S&P 500 Index and the S&P
Technology Index for the five years ended December 31, 2021. The graph assumes that $100 was invested on December 31,
2016 in our common stock and each index and that all dividends were reinvested.

Note that historical stock price performance is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.

Five-year cumulative total return of EVERTEC Inc.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A ") focuses on
discussion of our 2021 results as compared to our 2020 results. For discussion of our 2020 results as compared to our 2019
results, see "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" within our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 filed with the SEC on March 1, 2021. See Note 1 of the
Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about the Company and the basis of
presentation of our financial statements. You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with the
financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere herein. This MD&A contains forward-looking statements that
involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ from those indicated in the forward-looking statements. See
“Forward-Looking Statements” for a discussion of the risks, uncertainties and assumptions associated with these statements.

Overview

EVERTEC is a leading full-service transaction-processing business in Puerto Rico, the Caribbean and Latin America, providing
a broad range of merchant acquiring, payment services and business process management services. We believe that we are one
of the largest merchant acquirers in Latin America based on total number of transactions and the largest merchant acquirer in
the Caribbean. We serve 26 countries in the region out of 11 offices, including our headquarters in Puerto Rico. We own and
operate the ATH network, which we believe is one of the leading personal identification number (“PIN”) debit networks in
Latin America. We manage a system of electronic payment networks and offer a comprehensive suite of services for core
banking, cash processing, and fulfillment in Puerto Rico, that process approximately three billion transactions annually.
Additionally, we offer technology outsourcing in all the regions we serve. We serve a diversified customer base of leading
financial institutions, merchants, corporations, and government agencies with “mission-critical” technology solutions that
enable them to issue, process and accept transactions securely. We believe our business is well-positioned to continue to expand
across the fast-growing Latin American region.

We are differentiated, in part, by our diversified business model, which enables us to provide our varied customer base with a
broad range of transaction-processing services from a single source across numerous channels and geographic markets. We
believe this capability provides several competitive advantages that will enable us to continue to penetrate our existing customer
base with complementary new services, win new customers, develop new sales channels, and enter new markets. We believe
these competitive advantages include:

*  Our ability to provide competitive products;

*  Our ability to provide in one package a range of services that traditionally had to be sourced from different vendors;

*  Our ability to serve customers with disparate operations in several geographies with technology solutions that enable
them to manage their business as one enterprise; and

*  Our ability to capture and analyze data across the transaction-processing value chain and use that data to provide
value-added services that are differentiated from those offered by pure-play vendors that serve only one portion of the
transaction-processing value chain (such as only merchant acquiring or payment services).

Our broad suite of services spans the entire transaction processing value chain and includes a range of front-end customer-
facing solutions such as the electronic capture and authorization of transactions at the point-of-sale for both card present
transactions and card not present transactions, as well as back-end support services such as the clearing and settlement of
transactions and account reconciliation for card issuers. These include: (i) merchant acquiring services, which enable point of
sales (“POS”) and e-commerce merchants to accept and process electronic methods of payment such as debit, credit, prepaid
and electronic benefit transfer (“EBT”) cards; (ii) payment processing services, which enable financial institutions and other
issuers to manage, support and facilitate the processing for credit, debit, prepaid, automated teller machines (“ATM”) and EBT
card programs; and (iii) business process management solutions, which provide “mission-critical” technology solutions such as
core bank processing, as well as IT outsourcing and cash management services to financial institutions, corporations and
governments. We provide these services through scalable, end-to-end technology platforms that we manage and operate in-
house and that generates significant operating efficiencies that enable us to maximize profitability.

We sell and distribute our services primarily through a proprietary direct sales force with established customer relationships.
We continue to pursue joint ventures and merchant acquiring alliances. We benefit from an attractive business model, the
hallmarks of which are recurring revenue, scalability, significant operating margins and moderate capital expenditure
requirements. Our revenue is predominantly recurring in nature because of the mission-critical and embedded nature of the
services we provide. In addition, we generally negotiate multi-year contracts with our customers. We believe our business
model should enable us to continue to grow our business organically in the primary markets we serve without significant
incremental capital expenditures.
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Relationship with Popular

On September 30, 2010, EVERTEC Group entered into a 15-year MSA, and several related agreements with Popular. Under
the terms of the MSA, Popular agreed to use EVERTEC services on an ongoing exclusive basis for the duration of the
agreement. Additionally, Popular granted us a right of first refusal on the development of certain new financial technology
products and services for the duration of the MSA. As of December 31, 2021, Popular retained a 16.2% interest in EVERTEC
and was our largest shareholder.

On February 24, 2022, we entered into an agreement with Popular to modify and extend the main commercial agreements
which had an initial term ending in 2025. These include a 10-year extension of the Merchant Acquiring Independent Sales
Organization Agreement (the “ISO Agreement”), a 5-year extension of the ATH Network Participation Agreement, and a 3-
year extension of the Master Services Agreement (the “MSA”). The ISO Agreement will now include revenue sharing
provisions with BPPR. The MSA modifications include the elimination of the exclusivity requirement, the inclusion of annual
MSA minimums through 2028, and adjustments to the existing CPI pricing escalator clause.

Additionally, the Company signed a definitive agreement to sell BPPR certain assets at a price of approximately $197 million
(the “APA”). BPPR will pay the purchase price in Evertec stock. The management of infrastructure, information security and
communications will continue to be supported by Evertec through its Managed Service Provider (MSP) business offering
pursuant to the MSA.

Popular has agreed to take certain actions after closing to ensure that Evertec is no longer deemed a “subsidiary” of Popular for
purposes of the Bank Holding Company Act, including selling shares over the subsequent three months in the open market or
converting the shares into non-voting stock to reduce their voting interest to under 4.5%.

The transaction is expected to close during the second quarter of 2022 and is subject to customary closing conditions.

For 2021, we derived approximately 42% of our revenue from our relationship with Popular, which makes the MSA our most
significant client contract. “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business—OQOur services to Popular account for a
significant portion of our revenues, and we expect that our services to Popular will continue to represent a significant portion
of our revenues for the foreseeable future.”

2021 Developments

The Company's Board of Directors approved regular quarterly dividends of $0.05 per common share in February, April, July
and October of 2021. The Board anticipates declaring this dividend in future quarters on a regular basis; however future
declarations of dividends are subject to the Board’s approval and may be adjusted as business needs or market conditions
change.

Factors and Trends Affecting the Results of Our Operations

The ongoing migration from cash and paper methods of payment to electronic payments continues to benefit the transaction-
processing industry globally. We believe that the penetration of electronic payments in the markets in which we operate is
significantly lower relative to the U.S. market, and that this ongoing shift will continue to generate growth opportunities for our
business. For example, currently the adoption of banking products, including electronic payments, in the Latin American and
Caribbean region is lower relative to the mature U.S. and European markets. We believe that the unbanked and underbanked
population in our markets will continue to shrink, and therefore drive incremental penetration and growth of electronic
payments in Puerto Rico and other Latin American regions. We also benefit from the outsourcing of technology systems and
processes trend for financial institutions and government. Many medium- and small-size institutions in the Latin American
markets in which we operate have outdated computer systems and updating these IT legacy systems is financially and
logistically challenging, which presents a business opportunity for us.

Finally, our financial condition and results of operations are, in part, dependent on the economic and general conditions of the
geographies in which we operate.

The government of Puerto Rico has experienced a prolonged debt crisis, the resolution of which has progressed but has yet to

be fully resolved. Given this situation, the Company carefully monitors our receivables with the government as well as general
economic trends to understand the impact the crisis has on the economy of Puerto Rico and our card payment volumes. To date
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our receivables with the government of Puerto Rico and overall payment transaction volumes have not been significantly
affected by the debt crisis; however, we remain cautious.

Consumer preference for digital payment solutions accelerated in connection with the COVID-19 pandemic and the Company
has benefited from an increase in transaction volumes from these types of payment solutions as a result. The acceleration of
contactless and card-not-present transactions has driven innovation and focus towards our digital channels such as, ATH Movil
and ATH Business, where we have introduced new technologies for contactless payment such as QR codes. In Latin America
we have expanded the reach of our payment gateway product by localizing into our other geographies to further capitalize on
the acceleration of e-commerce and digital payments. In addition, during 2021, the Company benefited from the inflow of
Federal Stimulus funds granted as a result of the pandemic, most of which represented direct payments to individuals,
increasing disposable income and positively impacting transactional volumes for the Company.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. In connection with the preparation of our
financial statements, we are required to make estimates and assumptions about future events and apply judgments that affect the
reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities, and in some instances, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the period.

We base our assumptions, estimates, and judgments on historical experience, current events, and other factors that management
believes to be relevant at the time our consolidated financial statements are prepared. However, because future events are
inherently uncertain and their effects cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could differ from our assumptions and
estimates, and such differences could be material. A summary of significant accounting policies is included in Note 1 of the
Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We believe that
the following accounting estimates are the most critical; require the most difficult, subjective, or complex judgments; and thus,
result in estimates that are inherently uncertain.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue recognition policy follows the guidance from Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 606,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which provide guidance on the recognition, presentation, and disclosure of revenue in
consolidated financial statements. Application of this policy requires us to make certain judgements and estimates.

Complex arrangements with nonstandard terms and conditions may require significant contract interpretation to determine the
appropriate accounting. Specifically, when another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the Company
evaluates, for each performance obligation, whether it is providing the goods or services itself (i.e., as principal), or if it is only
arranging on behalf of the other party. Changes in judgement with respect to assumptions and estimates in revenue recognition
could impact the amount of revenue recognized.

Valuation of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
The valuation of goodwill and intangible assets for impairment require the use of significant estimates and assumptions.

The Company may test for goodwill impairment using a qualitative or a quantitative analysis. In a qualitative analysis, the
Company assesses whether it is "more likely than not" that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. In
the quantitative analysis, the Company compares the estimated fair value of the reporting units to their carrying values,
including goodwill. The estimated fair value of the reporting units is computed using a combination of an income approach and
a market approach. The income approach involves projecting the cash flows that the reporting unit is expected to generate and
converting these cash flows into a present value equivalent through discounting. Significant estimates and assumptions used in
the cash flow projection include, among others, earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA")
margins, and the selection of discount rates. Internal projections are based on the Company’s historical experience and
estimated future business performance. The discount rate used is based on the weighted-average cost of capital, which reflects
the rate of return expected to be earned by market participants and the estimated cost to obtain long-term debt financing. The
market approach estimates the value of a reporting unit by using multiples of revenue and EBITDA based on the guidelines of
publicly traded companies. Valuation using the market approach requires management to make assumptions related to EBITDA
multiples. Comparable businesses are selected based on the market in which the reporting units operate, considering size,
profitability and growth.
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Other identifiable intangible assets with definitive useful lives are evaluated periodically for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. In this assessment, we consider relevant
events and conditions, including, but not limited to macroeconomic trends, industry and market conditions, overall financial
performance, regulatory and legal factors, and company-specific events.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a description of recent accounting standards, see Note 2 of the Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings per common share, as presented in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, are supplemental measures of our performance that are not required by or presented in accordance with
GAAP. They are not measurements of our financial performance under GAAP and should not be considered as alternatives to
total revenues, net income or any other performance measures derived in accordance with GAAP or as alternatives to cash
flows from operating activities as measures of our liquidity. Adjusted EBITDA at the segment level is reported to the chief
operating decision maker for purposes of making decisions about allocating resources to the segments and assessing their
performance. For this reason, Adjusted EBITDA, as it relates to our segments, is presented in conformity with ASC 280,
Segment Reporting, and is excluded from the definition of non-GAAP financial measures under the Securities and Exchange
Commission's Regulation G and Item 10(e) of Regulation S-K.

For more information regarding EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings per common share,
including a quantitative reconciliation of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings per
common share to the most directly comparable GAAP financial performance measure, which is net income, see “—Net Income
Reconciliation to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings per common share” and “—
Covenant Compliance” below.

Results of Operations

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020 Variance

Revenues $ 589,796 $ 510,588 $ 79,208 16 %

Operating costs and expenses

Cost of revenues, exclusive of depreciation and amortization

shown below 250,164 226,370 23,294 10 %
Selling, general and administrative expenses 68,048 70,808 (2,760) @)%
Depreciation and amortization 75,070 71,518 3,552 5 %
Total operating costs and expenses 393,282 369,196 24,086 7 %
Income from operations $ 196,514 §$ 141,392 § 55,122 39 %
Revenues

Total revenues in 2021 increased by $79.2 million or 16% to $589.8 million when compared to the prior year. Revenue
increased across all of the Company's segments. The increase in Puerto Rico was primarily driven by transactional revenue
growth which was positively impacted by the inflow of federal funds and the continuous adoption of the Company's digital
solutions, mainly ATH Movil and ATH Business and the expansion of the relationship with FirstBank of Puerto Rico
("FirstBank"). Latin America revenue growth was mainly driven by new business and projects that went into production during
2021, such as Santander in Chile and Mercado Libre in Mexico, as well as organic growth from existing clients and the
expansion of the payment gateway Place to Pay. Prior year results were also negatively impacted by COVID-19 stay-at-home
orders in all of the regions in which the Company operates

Cost of revenues

Cost of revenues in 2021 increased by $23.3 million or 10% when compared to prior year. The increase is primarily driven by
an increase in personnel costs, increases in technology services, higher professional services, and an increase in costs of sales.
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Selling, general and administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses in 2021 decreased by $2.8 million or 4% when compared to prior year. The
decrease is almost entirely related to a decrease in professional services as prior year includes higher expenses related to
corporate initiatives, partially offset by an increase in personnel costs.

Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $3.6 million in 2021 compared to prior year. Increased expense during the
year is driven by software amortization due to key projects that have gone into production, as well as increased capital

expenditures.

Non-operating income (expenses)

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020 Variance

Interest income $ 1,889 1,502 $ 387 26 %
Interest expense (22,810) (25,074) 2,264 9%
Earnings of equity method investment 1,713 1,136 577 51 %
Other income (expenses) 4,399 4,897 (498) (10)%
Total non-operating expenses $ (14,809) $ (17,539) $ 2,730 (16)%

Non-operating expenses in 2021 decreased by $2.7 million or 16% to $14.8 million when compared to prior year. The decrease
is mainly related to a $2.3 million decrease in interest expense, resulting from the scheduled amortization of debt and a
reduction in interest rates.

Income tax expense

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020 Variance
Income tax expense $ 20,562 $ 19,002 $ 1,560 8 %

Income tax expense in 2021 amounted to $20.6 million, an increase of $1.6 million when compared to prior year. The effective
tax rate for the period was 11.3%, compared with 15.3% in the prior year. The decrease in the effective tax rate primarily
reflects the impact from the reversal of a liability for uncertain tax positions as a result of the expiration of the statute of
limitation in 2021, while the prior year was impacted by the revenue mix towards higher taxed businesses.

Segment Results of Operations

The Company operates in four business segments: Payment Services - Puerto Rico & Caribbean, Payment Services - Latin
America (collectively "Payment Services segments"), Merchant Acquiring, and Business Solutions.

The Payment Services - Puerto Rico & Caribbean segment revenues are comprised of revenues related to providing access to
the ATH debit network and other card networks to financial institutions, including related services such as authorization,
processing, management and recording of ATM and point of sale ("POS") transactions, ATM management and monitoring,
ATH Movil and ATH Business. The segment revenues also include revenues from card processing services (such as credit and
debit card processing, authorization and settlement and fraud monitoring and control to debit or credit issuers), payment
processing services (such as payment and billing products for merchants, businesses, and financial institutions) and EBT (which
principally consist of services to the government of Puerto Rico for the delivery of benefits to participants). For ATH debit
network and processing services, revenues are primarily driven by the number of transactions processed. Revenues are derived
primarily from network fees, transaction switching and processing fees, and the leasing of POS devices. For card issuer
processing, revenues are primarily dependent upon the number of cardholder accounts on file, transactions and authorizations
processed, the number of cards embossed and other processing services. For EBT services, revenues are primarily derived from
the number of beneficiaries on file.
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The Payment Services - Latin America segment revenues consist of revenues related to providing access to the ATH network of
ATMs and other card networks to financial institutions, including related services such as authorization, processing,
management and recording of ATM and POS transactions, and ATM management and monitoring. The segment revenues also
include revenues from card processing services (such as credit and debit card processing, authorization and settlement and fraud
monitoring and control to debit or credit issuers), payment processing services (such as payment and billing products for
merchants, businesses, and financial institutions), as well as licensed software solutions for risk and fraud management and card
payment processing. For network and processing services, revenues are primarily driven by the number of transactions
processed. Revenues are derived primarily from network fees, transaction switching and processing fees, and the leasing of
POS devices. For card issuer processing, revenues are primarily dependent upon the number of cardholder accounts on file,
transactions and authorizations processed, the number of cards embossed, and other processing services.

The Merchant Acquiring segment consists of revenues from services that allow merchants to accept electronic methods of
payment. In the Merchant Acquiring segment, revenues include a discount fee and membership fees charged to merchants, debit
network fees, fees from payment and collection platforms, and rental fees from POS devices and other equipment, net of credit
card interchange and assessment fees charged by credit cards associations (such as VISA or MasterCard) or payment networks.
The discount fee is generally a percentage of the transaction value. EVERTEC also charges merchants for other services that
are unrelated to the number of transactions or the transaction value.

The Business Solutions segment consists of revenues from a full suite of business process management solutions in various
product areas such as core bank processing, network hosting and management, IT professional services, business process
outsourcing, item processing, cash processing, and fulfillment. Core bank processing and network services revenues are derived
in part from a recurrent fixed fee, from fees based on the number of accounts on file (i.e., savings or checking accounts, loans,
etc.), or computer resources utilized. Revenues from other processing services within the Business Solutions segment are
generally volume-based and depend on factors such as the number of accounts processed. In addition, EVERTEC is a reseller
of hardware and software products and these resale transactions are generally non-recurring.

In addition to the four operating segments described above, management identified certain functional cost areas that operate
independently and do not constitute businesses in themselves. These areas could neither be concluded as operating segments
nor could they be combined with any other operating segments. Therefore, these areas are aggregated and presented as
“Corporate and Other” category in the financial statements alongside the operating segments. The Corporate and Other category
consists of corporate overhead expenses, intersegment eliminations, certain leveraged activities and other non-operating and
miscellaneous expenses that are not included in the operating segments. The overhead and leveraged costs relate to activities
such as:

+  marketing,

*  corporate finance and accounting,

e human resources,

e legal,

+ risk management functions,

¢ internal audit,

e corporate debt related costs,

* non-operating depreciation and amortization expenses generated as a result of merger and acquisition activity,

* intersegment revenues and expenses, and

e other non-recurring fees and expenses that are not considered when management evaluates financial performance at a
segment level.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") reviews the operating segments separate financial information to assess
performance and to allocate resources. Management evaluates the operating results of each of its operating segments based
upon revenues and Adjusted Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization ("Adjusted EBITDA"). Adjusted
EBITDA is defined as EBITDA further adjusted to exclude unusual items and other adjustments. Adjusted EBITDA, as it
relates to operating segments, is presented in conformity with ASC 280, Segment Reporting, given that it is reported to the
CODM for purposes of allocating resources. Segment asset disclosure is not used by the CODM as a measure of segment
performance since the segment evaluation is driven by revenues and adjusted EBITDA. As such, segment assets are not
disclosed in the notes to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

See Note 24 of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
reconciliation of EBITDA to consolidated net income.
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The following tables set forth information about the Company’s operations by its four business segments for the periods
indicated below.

Payment Services - Puerto Rico & Caribbean

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020
Revenues $155,392 $124,771
Adjusted EBITDA 89,939 66,947
Adjusted EBITDA margin 57.9 % 53.7 %

Payment Services - Puerto Rico & Caribbean segment revenues in 2021 grew by $30.6 million to $155.4 million when
compared to prior year. The increase was driven by higher transactional revenue when compared to the prior year which was
impacted by a decline in transaction volumes due to the impact of COVID-19, while the current year is benefiting from
incremental federal stimulus and increased consumer demand. Revenue during the year has also benefited from an incremental
$6.3 million recognized from ATH Movil and ATH Business, as well as an increase in transaction processing and monitoring
revenue recognized for services provided to the Payment Services - Latin America Segment. Adjusted EBITDA increased by
$23.0 million to $89.9 million primarily due to the increase in revenue, partially offset by higher operating expenses driven by
higher equipment expenses.

Payment Services - Latin America
Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020
Revenues $105,963 $84.,641
Adjusted EBITDA 42,502 32,778
Adjusted EBITDA margin 40.1 % 38.7 %

Payment Services - Latin America segment revenues increased by $21.3 million when compared to prior year mainly due to
revenues generated from new client implementations that went into production in early 2021, organic growth from existing
clients, cross selling with existing clients and the continued expansion of Place to Pay our e-commerce gateway into new
geographies. Adjusted EBITDA increased $9.7 million when compared to prior year primarily due to the increase in revenues,
partially offset by an increase in expenses coming from the Payment Services - Puerto Rico & Caribbean segment to support the
new client implementations in the region.

Merchant Acquiring
Years ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2021 2020
Revenues $143,965 $109,788
Adjusted EBITDA 73,872 55,106
Adjusted EBITDA margin 51.3 % 50.2 %

Merchant acquiring segment revenue increased $34.2 million to $144.0 million in 2021 primarily driven by an increase in
transactional revenue due to higher sales volume, as the Company continues to benefit from the impact of COVID-19 related
federal stimulus, and revenue generated from the expanded relationship with FirstBank. Adjusted EBITDA increased $18.8
million driven by the increase in revenues, partially offset by an increase in operating expenses driven by the increased
transaction volume.
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Business Solutions

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020

Revenues $243,807 $234,965
Adjusted EBITDA 116,488 114,802
Adjusted EBITDA margin 47.8 % 48.9 %

Business Solutions segment revenues increased $8.8 million to $243.8 million when compared to prior year. Revenue growth in
the segment was a result of an increase in core banking revenues and an increase in IT consulting services revenue, as we
continue to benefit from the shift towards digital services and several one-time hardware and software sales amounting to $3.0
million, partially offset by revenue recognized in the prior year for a one-time contract with the Puerto Rico Department of
Education that amounted to $4.4 million. Adjusted EBITDA increased $1.7 million to $116.5 million compared to prior year as
a result of higher revenues, partially offset by an increase in costs of sales.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

Our principal source of liquidity is cash generated from operations, and our primary liquidity requirements are the funding of
working capital needs, capital expenditures, and acquisitions. We also have a $125.0 million Revolving Facility, of which
$119.1 million was available for borrowing as of December 31, 2021. The Company issues letters of credit against our
Revolving Facility which reduce our availability of funds to be drawn.

As of December 31, 2021, we had cash and cash equivalents of $266.4 million, of which $96.3 million resides in our
subsidiaries located outside of Puerto Rico for purposes of (i) funding the respective subsidiary’s current business operations
and (ii) funding potential future investment outside of Puerto Rico. We intend to indefinitely reinvest these funds outside of
Puerto Rico, and based on our liquidity forecast, we will not need to repatriate this cash to fund the Puerto Rico operations or to
meet debt-service obligations. However, if in the future we determine that we no longer need to maintain cash balances within
our foreign subsidiaries, we may elect to distribute such cash to the Company in Puerto Rico. Distributions from the foreign
subsidiaries to Puerto Rico may be subject to tax withholding and other tax consequences. Additionally, our credit agreement
imposes certain restrictions on the distribution of dividends from subsidiaries.

Our primary use of cash is for operating expenses, working capital requirements, capital expenditures, acquisitions, dividend
payments, share repurchases, debt service, and other transactions as opportunities present themselves.

Based on our current level of operations, we believe our cash flows from operations and the available secured Revolving
Facility will be adequate to meet our liquidity needs for the next twelve months. However, our ability to fund future operating
expenses, dividend payments, capital expenditures, mergers and acquisitions, and our ability to make scheduled payments of
interest, to pay principal on or refinance our indebtedness and to satisfy any other of our present or future debt obligations will
depend on our future operating performance, which may be affected by general economic, financial, and other factors beyond
our control, including the impact of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.

Comparison of the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

The following table presents our cash flows from operations for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020

Cash provided by operating activities $ 228,420 $ 199,089
Cash used in investing activities (83,820) (48,634)
Cash used in financing activities (81,285) (62,617)
Effect of foreign exchange rate on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 1,497 2,146
Increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 64,812 § 89,984
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Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $228.4 million, an increase of $29.3
million compared to 2020. The increase was primarily driven by the increase in net income and a decrease in cash used for
prepaid software maintenance contracts.

Net cash used in investing activities increased $35.2 million to $83.8 million. The increase is primarily attributable to the
acquisition of a $14.8 million customer relationship, an increase in additions to software of $10.2 million, an increase in
additions to property, plant, and equipment of $8.0 million and the purchase of $3.0 million in available-for-sale debt securities
during the period.

Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $81.3 million, compared to $62.6 million in
prior year. The $18.7 million increase is mainly attributable to a $17.1 million increase in cash used to repurchase common
stock.

Capital Resources

Our principal capital expenditures are for software (purchased and internally developed), additions to property and equipment
in the form of hardware and technology infrastructure, and acquisitions. We invested approximately $66.9 million, $48.6
million, and $59.9 million, for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Generally, we fund capital
expenditures with cash flow generated from operations and, if necessary, borrowings under our Revolving Facility.

Dividend Payments
The Company pays a regular quarterly dividend on common stock, subject to the declaration thereof by our Board each quarter.
Any declaration and payment of future dividends to holders of our common stock will be at the discretion of our Board and will

depend on many factors, including our financial condition, earnings, available cash, business opportunities, legal requirements,
restrictions in our debt agreements and other contracts, capital requirements, level of indebtedness and other factors that our

Board deems relevant. Refer to the table below for details regarding our dividends in 2021 and 2020:

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Dividend per share

February 20, 2020 March 4, 2020 April 3, 2020 $0.05

April 21, 2020 May 4, 2020 June 5, 2020 0.05

July 24, 2020 August 3, 2020 September 4, 2020 0.05

October 20, 2020 November 2, 2020 December 4, 2020 0.05

February 18, 2021 March 1, 2021 March 26, 2021 0.05

April 22,2021 May 3, 2021 June 4, 2021 0.05

July 22,2021 August 2, 2021 September 3, 2021 0.05

October 21, 2021 November 1, 2021 December 3, 2021 0.05

Stock Repurchase

During 2021, the Company repurchased 614,288 shares of the Company’s common stock at a cost of $24.4 million. The
Company funded such repurchase with cash on hand. On February 24, 2022, the Company announced an increase to the share
repurchase authorization to an aggregate $150 million expiring on December 31, 2023. Prior to this increase, the share
repurchase program had approximately $76 million remaining.

Repurchases may be accomplished through open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions, accelerated share
repurchase programs and other means.

Financial Obligations
Secured Credit Facilities
On November 27, 2018, EVERTEC and EVERTEC Group (“Borrower”) entered into a credit agreement providing for the

secured credit facilities, consisting of a $220.0 million term loan A facility that matures on November 27, 2023 ("2023 Term A
Loan"), a $325.0 million term loan B facility that matures on November 27, 2024 ("2024 Term B Loan") and a $125.0 million
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revolving credit facility (the "Revolving Facility") that matures on November 27, 2023, with a syndicate of lenders and Bank of
America, N.A. (“Bank of America”), as administrative agent, collateral agent, swingline lender and line of credit issuer
(collectively the “2018 Credit Agreement”). The material terms and conditions of the secured credit facilities are summarized
below.

Scheduled Amortization Payments

The 2023 Term A Loan provides for amortization in the amount of 1.25% of the original principal amount of the 2023 Term A
Loan during each of the first twelve quarters starting from the quarter ending March 31, 2019, 1.875% during each of the four
subsequent quarters and 2.50% during each of the final three quarters, with the balance payable on the final maturity date.

The 2024 Term B Loan provides for quarterly amortization payments totaling 1.00% per annum of the original principal
amount of the 2024 Term B Loan, with the balance payable on the final maturity date.

Voluntary Prepayments and Reduction and Termination of Commitments

The 2018 Credit Agreement allows EVERTEC Group to prepay loans and permanently reduce the loan commitments under the
secured credit facilities at any time, subject to the payment of customary LIBOR breakage costs, if any, provided that, in
connection with certain refinancing or repricing of the 2024 Term B on or prior to the date which is six months after the closing
date of the 2018 Credit Agreement, a prepayment premium of 1.00% will be required.

Additionally, the 2018 Credit Agreement requires mandatory repayment of outstanding principal balances based on a
percentage of excess cash flow provided that no such prepayment shall be due if the resulting amount of the excess cash flows
multiplied by the applicable percentage is less than $10 million. On March 8, 2021 and March 5, 2020, in connection with this
mandatory repayment clause, the Company repaid $17.8 million and $17.0 million, respectively, as a result of the excess cash
flow calculation performed for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Interest

The interest rates under the 2023 Term A Loan and revolving credit facility are based on, at EVERTEC Group’s option, (a)
adjusted LIBOR plus an interest margin of 2.25% or (b) the greater of (i) Bank of America’s “prime rate,” (ii) the Federal
Funds Effective Rate plus 0.5% and (iii) adjusted LIBOR plus 1.0% (“ABR?”) plus an interest margin of 1.25%. The interest
rates under the 2024 Term B Loan are based on, at EVERTEC Group’s option, (a) adjusted LIBOR plus an interest margin of
3.50% or (b) ABR plus an interest margin of 2.50%. The interest margins under the 2023 Term A Loan and Revolving Facility

are subject to reduction based on achievement of specified total secured net leverage ratio.
Guarantees and Collateral

EVERTEC Group’s obligations under the secured credit facilities and under any cash management, interest rate protection or
other hedging arrangements entered into with a lender, or any affiliate thereof are guaranteed by EVERTEC and each of
EVERTEC’s existing wholly owned subsidiaries (other than EVERTEC Group) and subsequently acquired or organized
subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions.

Subject to certain exceptions, the secured credit facilities are secured to the extent legally permissible by substantially all of the
assets of (1) EVERTEC, including a perfected pledge of all of the limited liability company interests of EVERTEC
Intermediate Holdings, LLC (“Holdings”), (2) Holdings, including a perfected pledge of all of the limited liability company
interests of EVERTEC Group and (3) EVERTEC Group and the subsidiary guarantors, including but not limited to: (a) a pledge
of substantially all capital stock held by EVERTEC Group or any guarantor and (b) a perfected security interest in substantially
all tangible and intangible assets of EVERTEC Group and each guarantor.

Covenants
The secured credit facilities contain affirmative and negative covenants that the Company believes are usual and customary for
a secured credit agreement. The negative covenants in the secured credit facilities include, among other things, limitations
(subject to exceptions) on the ability of EVERTEC and its restricted subsidiaries to:

¢ declare dividends and make other distributions;

+ redeem or repurchase capital stock;
e grant liens;
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* make loans or investments (including acquisitions);

* merge or enter into acquisitions;

e sell assets;

* enter into any sale or lease-back transactions;

e incur additional indebtedness;

e prepay, redeem or repurchase certain indebtedness;

*  modify the terms of certain debt;

e restrict dividends from subsidiaries;

+ change the business of EVERTEC or its subsidiaries; and
e enter into transactions with their affiliates.

In addition, the 2023 Term A Loan and the Revolving Facility require EVERTEC to maintain a maximum total secured net
leverage ratio of 4.25 to 1.00 for any quarter that ended on or prior to September 30, 2020. Beginning with the quarter ended
December 31, 2020 and for fiscal quarters ending thereafter, 4.00 to 1.00.

The unpaid principal balance at December 31, 2021 of the 2023 Term A Loan and the 2024 Term B Loan was $171.6 million,
and $295.8 million, respectively. The additional borrowing capacity for the Revolving Facility at December 31, 2021 was
$119.1 million. The Company issues letters of credit against the Revolving Facility which reduce the additional borrowing
capacity of the Revolving Facility.

Events of Default

The events of default under the secured credit facilities include, without limitation, nonpayment, material misrepresentation,
breach of covenants, insolvency, bankruptcy, certain judgments, change of control (as defined in the 2018 Credit Agreement)
and cross-events of default on material indebtedness.

Notes payable

In December 2019, EVERTEC Group entered into two non interest-bearing financing agreements amounting to $2.4 million to
purchase software and maintenance. As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the outstanding principal balance of
the notes payable was $0.8 million and $1.5 million, respectively. These notes are included in accounts payable in the
Company's consolidated balance sheets.

Interest Rate Swaps

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has an interest rate swap agreement, entered into in December 2018, which converts a
portion of the interest rate payments on the Company's 2024 Term B Loan from variable to fixed:

Swap Agreement Effective date Maturity Date Notional Amount Variable Rate Fixed Rate
2018 Swap April 2020 November 2024 $250 million 1-month LIBOR 2.89%

The Company has accounted for this agreement as a cash flow hedge.

Additionally, the Company had an interest rate swap agreement that matured in April 2020, with a notional amount of $200
million and a fixed rate of 1.9225%. The Company accounted for this swap as a cash flow hedge from inception to maturity.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount of the derivatives included on the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet was $13.4 million and $25.6 million, respectively. The fair value of these derivatives is estimated using Level 2 inputs in
the fair value hierarchy on a recurring basis.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company reclassified losses of $7.1 million from accumulated other comprehensive loss into
interest expense. Based on current LIBOR rates, the Company expects to reclassify losses of $7.0 million from accumulated
other comprehensive loss into interest expense over the next 12 months. Refer to Note 14 for tabular disclosure of the fair value

of derivatives and to Note 16 for tabular disclosure of gains (losses) recorded on cash flow hedging activities.

At December 31, 2021, the cash flow hedge is considered highly effective.
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Leases

The Company has operating leases for certain office facilities, buildings, telecommunications and other equipment; and finance
leases for certain equipment. The Company’s lease contracts have remaining terms ranging from 1 year to 8 years, some of
which may include options to extend the leases for up to 5 years, and some which may include the option to terminate the lease
within 1 year.

The following table presents the balance of operating lease obligations:

December 31,
(In thousands) 2021 2020
Operating lease liability - current 5,580 5,830
Operating lease liability - long-term 16,456 22,402
Total operating lease liabilities $ 22,036 $ 28,232

See Note 23 of the Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding operating lease
obligations.

Covenant Compliance

As of December 31, 2021, the total secured net leverage ratio was 1.4 to 1.00. As of the date of filing of this Form 10-K, no
event has occurred that constitutes an Event of Default or Default.

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we refer to the term “Adjusted EBITDA” to mean EBITDA as so defined and calculated
for purposes of determining compliance with the total secured net leverage ratio based on the financial information for the last
twelve months at the end of each quarter.

Net Income Reconciliation to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings per common share
(Non-GAAP Measures)

We define “EBITDA” as earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. We define “Adjusted EBITDA” as
EBITDA further adjusted to exclude unusual items and other adjustments described below. Adjusted EBITDA by segment is
reported to the chief operating decision maker for purposes of making decisions about allocating resources to the segments and
assessing their performance. For this reason, Adjusted EBITDA, as it relates to our segments, is presented in conformity with
Accounting Standards Codification 280, Segment Reporting, and is excluded from the definition of non-GAAP financial
measures under the Securities and Exchange Commission's Regulation G and Item 10(e) of Regulation S-K. We define
“Adjusted Net Income” as net income adjusted to exclude unusual items and other adjustments described below. We define
“Adjusted Earnings per common share” as Adjusted Net Income divided by diluted shares outstanding.

We present EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA because we consider them important supplemental measures of our performance
and believe they are frequently used by securities analysts, investors, and other interested parties in the evaluation of ourselves
and other companies in our industry. In addition, our presentation of Adjusted EBITDA is substantially consistent with the
equivalent measurements that are contained in the secured credit facilities in testing EVERTEC Group’s compliance with
covenants therein such as the total secured net leverage ratio. We use Adjusted Net Income to measure our overall profitability
because we believe it better reflects our comparable operating performance by excluding the impact of the non-cash
amortization and depreciation that was created as a result of merger and acquisition activity. In addition, in evaluating EBITDA,
Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings per common share, you should be aware that in the future we
may incur expenses such as those excluded in calculating them. Further, our presentation of these measures should not be
construed as an inference that our future operating results will not be affected by unusual or nonrecurring items.

Some of the limitations of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted earnings per common share are as
follows:

» they do not reflect cash outlays for capital expenditures or future contractual commitments;

* they do not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, working capital;

» although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized will often
have to be replaced in the future, and EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect cash requirements for such
replacements;
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in the case of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, they do not reflect interest expense, or the cash requirements necessary
to service interest, or principal payments, on indebtedness;

in the case of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, they do not reflect income tax expense or the cash necessary to pay
income taxes; and

other companies, including other companies in our industry, may not use EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net
Income, and Adjusted Earnings per common share or may calculate EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net
Income and Adjusted Earnings per common share differently than as presented in this Report, limiting their usefulness
as a comparative measure.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings per common share are not measurements of
liquidity or financial performance under GAAP. You should not consider EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income
and Adjusted Earnings per common share as alternatives to cash flows from operating activities or any other performance
measures determined in accordance with GAAP, as an indicator of cash flows, as a measure of liquidity or as an alternative to
operating or net income determined in accordance with GAAP.

A reconciliation of net income to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings per common share
is provided below:

Year Ended December 31, 2021

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Net income $ 161,143
Income tax expense 20,562
Interest expense, net 20,921
Depreciation and amortization 75,070

EBITDA 277,696
Equity income " (395)
Compensation and benefits 15,144
Transaction, refinancing and other fees 2,373

Adjusted EBITDA 294,818
Operating depreciation and amortization (43,438)
Cash interest expense, net (19,804)
Income tax expense (31,684)
Non-controlling interest 7 (161)

Adjusted net income $ 199,731
Net income per common share (GAAP):

Diluted $ 2.21
Adjusted Earnings per common share (Non-GAAP):

Diluted $ 2.74
Shares used in computing adjusted earnings per common share:

Diluted 72,870,585

1)
2)
3)
4)

5)

Represents the elimination of non-cash equity earnings from our 19.99% equity investment in Dominican Republic,
Consorcio de Tarjetas Dominicanas, S.A. (“CONTADO”), net of cash dividends received.

Primarily represents share-based compensation and severance payments.

Represents fees and expenses associated with corporate transactions as defined in the 2018 Credit Agreement,
recorded as part of selling, general and administrative expenses, a software impairment charge, and a gain from sale of
assets.

Represents operating depreciation and amortization expense, which excludes amounts generated as a result of the
merger and acquisition activity.

Represents interest expense, less interest income, as they appear on our consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income, adjusted to exclude non-cash amortization of the debt issue costs, premium and accretion of
discount.
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6) Represents income tax expense calculated on adjusted pre-tax income using the applicable GAAP tax rate, adjusted for
certain discrete items.

7) Represents the 35% non-controlling equity interest in Evertec Colombia, net of amortization for intangibles created as
part of the purchase.

Seasonality

Our payment businesses generally experience moderate increased activity during the traditional holiday shopping periods and
around other nationally recognized holidays, which follow consumer spending patterns.

Effect of Inflation

While inflationary increases in certain input costs, such as occupancy, labor and benefits, and general administrative costs, have
an impact on our operating results, inflation has had minimal net impact on our operating results during the last three years as
overall inflation has been partially offset by increased margins on incremental revenue and cost reduction actions. We cannot
assure you, however, that we will not be affected by general inflation in the future.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to market risks arising from our normal business activities. These market risks principally involve the
possibility of change in interest rates that will adversely affect the value of our financial assets and liabilities or future cash
flows and earnings, and foreign exchange risk that may result in unfavorable foreign currency translation adjustments. Market
risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices.

Interest rate risks

We issued floating-rate debt which is subject to fluctuations in interest rates. Our secured credit facilities accrue interest at
variable rates and only the Term B Loan is subject to floors or minimum rates. A 100 basis point increase in interest rates over
our floor(s) on our debt balances outstanding as of December 31, 2021, under the secured credit facilities would increase our
annual interest expense by approximately $4.7 million. The impact on future interest expense as a result of future changes in
interest rates will depend largely on the gross amount of our borrowings at that time.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has an interest rate swap agreement, entered into in December 2018, which converts a
portion of our outstanding variable rate debt to fixed.

The interest rate swap exposes us to credit risk in the event that the counterparty to the swap agreement does not or cannot meet
its obligations. The notional amount is used to measure interest to be paid or received and does not represent the amount of
exposure to credit loss. The loss would be limited to the amount that would have been received, if any, over the remaining life
of the swap. The counterparty to the swap is a major US based financial institution and we expect the counterparty to be able to
perform its obligations under the swap. We use derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes only and not for trading or
speculative purposes

See Note 13 of the Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K for additional information related to the secured credit facilities.

Foreign currency exchange risk

We conduct business in certain countries in Latin America. Some of this business is conducted in the countries’ local
currencies. The resulting foreign currency translation adjustments, from operations for which the functional currency is other
than the U.S. dollar, are reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss in the audited consolidated balance sheets, except
for highly inflationary environments in which the effects would be included in other operating income in the consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. At December 31, 2021, the Company had $36.0 million in an unfavorable
foreign currency translation adjustment as part of accumulated other comprehensive loss compared to an unfavorable foreign
currency translation adjustment of $24.8 million at December 31, 2020.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, together with EVERTEC’s independent registered public accounting firms
reports, are included herein beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)) as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. Based upon their evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that as of
December 31, 2021, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2021 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as such term is
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and Rule 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act).

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework

set forth in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the “COSO criteria”).

Based on our evaluation under the framework set forth in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013), our management
concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021 was effective.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the consolidated financial statements as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, included in this Form 10-K and, as part of the audit, has issued a report, included
as part of Item 8 of this Form 10-K, on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2021.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections

Not applicable.
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Part 111
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Code of Ethics
Our Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Ethics applicable to all officers, directors, and employees, including our principal
executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions.

A copy of our Code of Ethics is available at the Investor Relations section of our website, located at ir.evertecinc.com under
“Governance Documents.” We intend to make all disclosures required by law or the NYSE regarding any amendments to, or
waivers from, any provisions of the code at the same location of our website. Our website is not incorporated by reference into
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and you should not consider information on our website to be part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Other Information

The remaining information required by Item 10 will be included in EVERTEC's proxy statement, to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14 A within 120 days after the end of the 2021 fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 will be included in EVERTEC's proxy statement, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14 A
within 120 days after the end of the 2021 fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by Item 12 will be included in EVERTEC's proxy statement, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14 A
within 120 days after the end of the 2021 fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 will be included in EVERTEC's proxy statement, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14 A
within 120 days after the end of the 2021 fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 will be included in EVERTEC's proxy statement, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14 A
within 120 days after the end of the 2021 fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) (1) Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of EVERTEC, Inc. together with the Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm, are included in Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data:

. Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

. Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020

. Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2021,
2020 and 2019

. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020
and 2019

. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019

. Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule [—Parent Company Only Financial Statements

(3) Exhibits
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Exhibit No.

Description

3.1

32

4.1%
4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of EVERTEC, Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 23, 2013,
File No. 001-35872)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of EVERTEC, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of
EVERTEC, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 23, 2013, File No. 001-35872)

Form of common stock certificate of EVERTEC, Inc.

Stockholder Agreement, dated April 17, 2012, by and among EVERTEC, Inc. and the holders party
thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on February 27, 2020, File No. 001-35872)

First Amendment to the Stockholder Agreement, dated March 27, 2013, by and among EVERTEC, Inc.
and the holders party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s
Amendment No. 3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on April 2, 2013, File No.
333-186487)

Second Amendment to the Stockholder Agreement, dated June 30, 2013, by and among EVERTEC,
Inc. and the holders party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 14, 2013, File No. 001-35872)

Third Amendment to the Stockholder Agreement, dated November 13, 2013, by and among EVERTEC,
Inc. and the holders party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed on March 17, 2014, File No. 001-35872)

Description of Registrant’s Securities (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2020, File No. 001-35872)

Master Lease Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2004, by and between EVERTEC Group, LLC and Banco
Popular de Puerto Rico (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.55 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed on February 6, 2013, File No. 333-186487)

First Amendment to Master Lease Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and between EVERTEC
Group, LLC and Banco Popular de Puerto Rico (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.56 of
EVERTEC, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on February 6, 2013, File No. 333-186487)

Second Amendment to Master Lease Agreement, dated as of April 23, 2010, by and between
EVERTEC Group, LLC and Banco Popular de Puerto Rico (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.57
of EVERTEC, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on February 6, 2013, File No.
333-186487)

Third Amendment to Master Lease Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2010, by and between
EVERTEC Group, LLC and Banco Popular de Puerto Rico (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.58
of EVERTEC, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on February 6, 2013, File No.
333-186487)

Amended and Restated Master Service Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2010, by and among
Popular, Inc. Banco Popular de Puerto Rico and EVERTEC Group, LLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2020, File No.
001-35872)

Technology Agreement, made and entered into as of September 30, 2010, by and between Popular, Inc.
and EVERTEC Group, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2020, File No. 001-35872)

Amended and Restated Independent Sales Organization Sponsorship and Services Agreement, dated as
of September 30, 2010, by and between Banco Popular de Puerto Rico and EVERTEC Group, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on
February 27, 2020, File No. 001-35872)

Amended and Restated ATH Network Participation Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2010, by and
between Banco Popular de Puerto Rico and EVERTEC Group, LLC and service riders related thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on
February 27, 2020, File No. 001-35872)

ATH Support Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2010, by and between Banco Popular de Puerto

Rico and EVERTEC Group, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2020, File No. 001-35872)
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10.10+

10.11*

10.12

10.13

10.14+

10.15+

10.16+

10.17+

10.18*+
10.19+

10.20+

EVERTEC, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.61 to EVERTEC,
Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on March 14, 2013, File No.
333-186487)

Credit Agreement, dated November 27, 2018, among EVERTEC, Inc., EVERTEC Group, LLC, the
lenders party thereto from time to time, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, collateral
agent, swingline lender and L/C issuer, Bank of America, N.A. (solely with respect to the Term B
Facility), Merrill Lynch Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (or any other registered broker-dealer
wholly-owned by Bank of America Corporation to which all or substantially all of Bank of America
Corporation’s or any of its subsidiaries’ investment banking, commercial lending services or related
businesses may be transferred following the date of this Credit Agreement) (solely with respect to the
Term A Facility and the Revolving Credit Facility), SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., Citigroup
Global Markets Inc., Goldman Sachs Bank USA and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as joint lead
arrangers, Bank of America, N.A. (solely with respect to the Term B Facility), Merrill Lynch Pierce,
Fenner & Smith Incorporated (or any other registered broker-dealer wholly-owned by Bank of America
Corporation to which all or substantially all of Bank of America Corporation’s or any of its
subsidiaries’ investment banking, commercial lending services or related businesses may be transferred
following the date of this Credit Agreement) (solely with respect to the Term A Facility and the
Revolving Credit Facility), SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., Citigroup Global Markets Inc.,
Goldman Sachs Bank USA, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as joint
bookrunners, Goldman Sachs Bank USA, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated,
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and FirstBank Puerto Rico and Scotiabank de Puerto Rico as co-
syndication agents

Collateral Agreement, dated as of November 27, 2018, among EVERTEC, Inc., EVERTEC Group,
LLC, each subsidiary loan party identified therein and Bank of America, N.A., as collateral agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of EVERTEC, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on
February 27, 2020, File No. 001-35872)

Guarantee Agreement, dated as of November 27, 2018, by and among EVERTEC, Inc., EVERTEC
Group, LLC, the loan parties identified on the signature pages thereof and Bank of America, N.A., as
administrative agent and collateral agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of EVERTEC,
Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2020, File No. 001-35872)

Employment Agreement, dated as of November 8, 2018, by and between EVERTEC Group, LLC and
Morgan M. Schuessler, Jr. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to EVERTEC, Inc.’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed on February 26, 2019, File No. 001-35872)

Restricted Stock Award Agreement for grant of restricted stock units to executive officers under the
EVERTEC, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, dated February 22, 2019, by and between EVERTEC, Inc.
and the executive (applicable to Morgan M. Schuessler, Jr., Joaquin A. Castrillo, Guillermo Rospigliosi,
Luis A. Rodriguez, Miguel Vizcarrondo and Paola Pérez) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
EVERTEC, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 3, 2019, File No. 001-35872)

Form of EVERTEC Group, LLC Executive Severance Policy (applicable to Joaquin A. Castrillo, Diego
Viglianco, Guillermo Rospigliosi, Luis A. Rodriguez, Miguel Vizcarrondo, Paola Pérez, and Rodrigo
Del Castillo) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to EVERTEC, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form
10-K filed on February 26, 2019, File No. 001-35872)

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for grant of restricted stock units under the EVERTEC, Inc.
2013 Equity Incentive Plan, dated August 7, 2019, by and between EVERTEC, Inc. and Rodrigo Del
Castillo (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to EVERTEC, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on March 1, 2021, File No. 001-35872)

Form of Indemnification Agreement by and among EVERTEC, Inc. and its directors

Amended Employment Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2019, by and between Evertec Chile SPA and
Rodrigo Del Castillo (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to EVERTEC, Inc.'s Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed on March 1, 2021, File No. 001-35872)

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for grant of restricted stock units to executive officers under
the EVERTEC, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, dated February 27, 2020, by and between EVERTEC,
Inc. and the executive (applicable to Morgan M. Schuessler, Jr., Joaquin A. Castrillo, Guillermo
Rospigliosi, Luis. A. Rodriguez, Miguel Vizcarrondo, Paola Pérez, and Rodrigo Del Castillo)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to EVERTEC, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on
March 1, 2021, File No. 001-35872)
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10.21+

10.22+

10.23+

10.24+

21.1%*
23.1%
31.1%

31.2%

32.1°%*

32.2%%*

101.INS XBRL**

101.SCH XBRL**

101.CAL XBRL**

101.DEF XBRL**

101.LAB XBRL**

101.PRE XBRL**

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for grant of restricted stock units to executive officers under
the EVERTEC, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan and the executive, dated March 2, 2021 (applicable to
Morgan M. Schuessler, Jr., Joaquin A. Castrillo, Guillermo Rospigliosi, Luis A. Rodriguez, Miguel
Vizcarrondo, Paola Pérez, and Rodrigo Del Castillo) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
EVERTEC, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on April 30, 2021, File No. 001-35872)

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for grant of restricted stock units to directors under the
EVERTEC, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, dated June 1, 2021 by and between EVERTEC, Inc. and
the director (applicable to Frank G. D'Angelo, Alan. H. Schumacher, Aldo J. Polak, Brian J. Smith, Ivan
Pagan, Jorge A. Junquera, Kelly Barrett, and Olga Botero (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
EVERTEC, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 4, 2021, File No. 001-35872)

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for grant of restricted stock units under the EVERTEC, Inc.
2013 Equity Incentive Plan, dated June 7, 2021, by and between EVERTEC, Inc. and Diego Viglianco
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to EVERTEC, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on
August 4, 2021, File No. 001-35872)

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for grant of restricted stock units under the EVERTEC, Inc.
2013 Equity Incentive Plan, for executive recruitment, dated June 7, 2021, by and between EVERTEC,
Inc. and Diego Viglianco (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to EVERTEC, Inc.'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 4, 2021, File No. 001-35872)

Subsidiaries of EVERTEC, Inc.
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent registered public accountants

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Inline XBRL Instance document— the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File
because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

104%* Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)
* Filed herewith.
*ok Furnished herewith.
+ This exhibit is a management contract or a compensatory plan or arrangement.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,

EVERTEC, Inc.
Date: February 25, 2022 By: /s/ Morgan M. Schuessler, Jr.

Morgan M. Schuessler, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Morgan M. Schuessler, Jr. Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive February 25, 2022
Morgan M. Schuessler, Jr. Officer)
/s/ Joaquin A. Castrillo-Salgado Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and February 25, 2022
Joaquin A. Castrillo-Salgado Accounting Officer)
/s/ Frank G. D’ Angelo Chairman of the Board February 25, 2022

Frank G. D’Angelo

/s/ Ivan Pagan Director February 25, 2022
Ivan Pagéan
/s/ Alan H. Schumacher Director February 25, 2022

Alan H. Schumacher

/s/ Kelly Barrett Director February 25, 2022
Kelly Barrett

/s/ Jorge A. Junquera Director February 25, 2022

Jorge A. Junquera

/s/ Aldo Polak Director February 25, 2022
Aldo Polak
/s/ Olga M. Botero Director February 25, 2022

Olga M. Botero

/s/ Brian J. Smith Director February 25, 2022
Brian J. Smith
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the stockholders and the Board of Directors of EVERTEC, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of EVERTEC, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in
stockholders' equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes
and the schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and
2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated February 25, 2022, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's internal control over
financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that
was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and
we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the
accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Goodwill - Refer to Notes 1 and 10 to the financial statements
Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company tests goodwill for impairment on an annual basis as of August 31, or more often if events or changes in
circumstances indicate there may be impairment. The Company's annual impairment review for goodwill as of August 31,
2021, consisted of performing a qualitative assessment to determine whether it was more likely than not that a reporting unit’s
fair value was less than its carrying amount. The Company determines the fair value of its reporting units using the discounted
cash flow model and the market approach. The determination of the fair value requires management to make significant
estimates and assumptions related to profitability projections, including earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and
amortization (“EBITDA”) margins and selection of the discount rate. The Company’s goodwill balance was $393.3 million as
of December 31, 2021, of which $48.4 million was allocated to the Payment Services — Latin America reporting unit.



We identified goodwill for the Payment Services - Latin America reporting unit as a critical audit matter because of the
significant estimates and assumptions management makes to estimate its fair value, and the difference between its fair value and
its carrying amount. This required a high degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the need to
involve our fair value specialists, when performing audit procedures to evaluate the reasonableness of management’s estimates
and assumptions related to forecasts of EBITDA margins as well as discount rate.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to forecasts of EBITDA margin as well as the discount rate for the Payment Services - Latin
America reporting unit included the following, among others:

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of controls over management’s goodwill impairment evaluation,
including those over the evaluation of events and circumstances that affect the EBITDA margin and discount rate.

We evaluated management’s ability to accurately forecast EBITDA margin by comparing actual results to management’s
historical forecasts.

We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s EBITDA margin forecasts to the historical and projected average
EBITDA margins of companies in its peer group.

With the assistance of our fair value specialists, we developed a range of independent estimates of discount rate and
compared it to management’s selected discount rate.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

San Juan, Puerto Rico
February 25, 2022
Stamp No. E478957
affixed to original.

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2015.



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the stockholders and the Board of Directors of EVERTEC, Inc.
Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of EVERTEC, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, of the Company and our
report dated February 25, 2022, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche
San Juan, Puerto Rico
February 25, 2022

Stamp No. E478958
affixed to original.



EVERTEC, Inc. Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share data)

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets
Debt securities available-for-sale, at fair value
Investment in equity investee
Property and equipment, net
Operating lease right-of-use asset
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Deferred tax asset
Net investment in lease
Other long-term assets
Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current Liabilities:

Accrued liabilities

Accounts payable

Contract liability

Income tax payable

Current portion of long-term debt

Current portion of operating lease liability

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred tax liability
Contract liability - long term
Operating lease liability - long-term
Derivative liability
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 23)
Stockholders’ equity

Preferred stock, par value $0.01; 2,000,000 shares authorized; none issued

Common stock, par value $0.01; 206,000,000 shares authorized; 71,969,856 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 (December 31, 2020 - 72,137,678)

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Total EVERTEC, Inc. stockholders’ equity
Non-controlling interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
266,351 202,649
19,566 18,456
113,285 95,727
37,148 42,214
436,350 359,046
3,041 —
12,054 12,835
48,533 43,538
21,229 27,538
393,318 397,670
213,288 219,909
6,910 5,730
107 301
9,926 6,012
1,144,756 1,072,579
74,540 58,033
28,484 43,348
17,398 24,958
7,132 6,573
19,750 14,250
5,580 5,830
152,884 152,992
444,785 481,041
2,369 2,748
36,258 31,336
16,456 22,402
13,392 25,578
8,344 14,053
674,488 730,150
719 721
7,565 5,340
506,051 379,934
(48,123) (48,254)
466,212 337,741
4,056 4,688
470,268 342,429
1,144,756 § 1,072,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements.
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EVERTEC, Inc. Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Revenues (affiliates Note 22)

Operating costs and expenses

Cost of revenues, exclusive of depreciation and amortization shown
below

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating costs and expenses
Income from operations
Non-operating income (expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense
Earnings of equity method investment
Other income (expenses)

Total non-operating expenses

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income

Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interest

Net income attributable to EVERTEC, Inc.’s common
stockholders

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax of $1,153, $792 and
$1,070

Foreign currency translation adjustments
Gain (loss) on cash flow hedges

Unrealized gain on change in fair value of debt securities
available-for-sale

Total comprehensive income attributable to EVERTEC, Inc.’s

common stockholders

Net income per common share - basic attributable to EVERTEC,
Inc.’s common stockholders

Net income per common share - diluted attributable to
EVERTEC, Inc.’s common stockholders

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019
$ 589,796 $ 510,588 $ 487,374
250,164 226,870 213,379
68,048 70,808 61,411
75,070 71,518 68,082
393,282 369,196 342,872
196,514 141,392 144,502
1,889 1,502 1,217
(22,810) (25,074) (28,811)
1,713 1,136 936
4,399 4,897 (1,169)
(14,809) (17,539) (27,827)
181,705 123,853 116,675
20,562 19,002 12,975
161,143 104,851 103,700
13 415 231
161,130 104,436 103,469
(11,129) (7,970) 4,754
11,151 (10,275) (10,974)
109 — —
$ 161,261 S 86,191 $ 97,249
$ 224 3 145 $ 1.44
$ 221 $ 143 $ 1.41

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements.



EVERTEC, Inc. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated
Number of Additional Other Non- Total
Shares of Common Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive  Controlling Stockholders’
Common Stock Stock Capital Earnings Loss Interest Equity

Balance at December 31, 2018 72,378,710 $ 723 $§ 57783 § 228,742 § (23,789) $§ 4,147 $§ 215,606

Share-based compensation o . 13,570 o o . 13,570

recognized

Repurchase of common stock (1,104,389) (11)  (10,496) (21,315) — — (31,822)

Restricted stock units delivered 725,940 8 (8,857) — — — (8,849)

Net income — — — 103,469 — 231 103,700

Cash dividends declared on

common stock, $0.20 per share o o o (14,420) o o (14,420)

Other comprehensive loss — — — — (6,220) 58 (6,162)
Balance at December 31, 2019 72,000,261 720 — 296,476 (30,009) 4,436 271,623

Share-based compensation . o 14,253 _ . - 14,253

recognized

Repurchase of common stock (336,022) 3) (775) (6,522) — — (7,300)

Restricted stock units delivered 473,439 4 (8,138) — — — (8,134)

Net income — — — 104,436 — 415 104,851

Cash dividends declared on . . . (14,382) . . (14,382)

common stock, $0.20 per share
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (18,245) (163) (18,408)

Cumulative adjustment from
the implementation of
Current Expected Credit Loss

model — — — (74) — _ (74)
Balance at December 31, 2020 72,137,678 721 5,340 379,934 (48,254) 4,688 342,429
rsglcag;r—ll:i);:gd compensation . . 14,799 . . . 14,799

Repurchase of common stock (614,288) 6) (5,080) (19,302) — — (24,388)

Restricted stock units delivered 446,466 4 (7,494) (1,302) — — (8,792)
Net income — — — 161,130 — 13 161,143

Cash dividends declared on

common stock, $0.20 per share - - - (14,409) - - (14,409)
Other comprehensive loss — — — — 131 (645) (514)
Balance at December 31, 2021 71,969,856 $ 719 $§ 7,565 $ 506,051 $ (48,123) $ 4,056 $ 470,268

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements.



eSEVERTEC, Inc. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 161,143  $ 104,851 $ 103,700
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 75,070 71,518 68,082
Amortization of debt issue costs and accretion of discount 1,877 1,987 2,988
Operating lease amortization 5,860 5,877 6,161
Provision for doubtful accounts and sundry losses 1,859 1,726 3,939
Deferred tax benefit (2,826) (3,905) (6,391)
Share-based compensation 14,799 14,253 13,570
Gain from sale of assets (778) — —
Loss on disposition of property and equipment and other intangibles 1,694 807 893
Earnings of equity method investment (1,713) (1,136) (936)
Dividend received from equity method investment 1,183 — 485
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (18,521) 8,397 (7,851)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 4,322 (4,158) (8,770)
Other long-term assets (3,519) 611) (1,750)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (394) (4,032) (215)
Income tax payable (359) 195 (596)
Unearned income (1,738) 6,891 11,504
Operating lease liabilities (4,869) (5,936) (6,055)
Other long-term liabilities (4,670) 2,365 1,191
Total adjustments 67,277 94,238 76,249
Net cash provided by operating activities 228,420 199,089 179,949
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to software (41,804) (31,558) (36,871)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (14,750) — (5,585)
Property and equipment acquired (25,103) (17,082) (23,002)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 805 6 111
Acquisition of available-for-sale debt securities (2,968) —_ —_
Net cash used in investing activities (83,820) (48,634) (65,347)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of borrowings for purchase of equipment and software (1,651) (1,553) (886)
Dividends paid (14,409) (14,382) (14,420)
Withholding taxes paid on share-based compensation (8,793) (8,134) (8,849)
Repurchase of common stock (24,388) (7,300) (31,822)
Repayment of long-term debt (32,044) (31,248) (14,250)
Net cash used in financing activities (81,285) (62,617) (70,227)
Effect of foreign exchange rate on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 1,497 2,146 —
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 64,812 89,984 44,375
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of the period 221,105 131,121 86,746
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of the period $ 285917 $ 221,105 $ 131,121
Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents $ 266,351 $ 202,649 $ 111,030
Restricted cash 19,566 18,456 20,091
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 285917 $ 221,105 § 131,121
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 21,695 § 23,787 $ 28,233
Cash paid for income taxes 25,724 22,668 18,703
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activities:
Esgs}:}:ed due to vendor related to property and equipment and software $ 757§ 1561 $ 2,622

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements.
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EVERTEC, Inc. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1—The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Company

EVERTEC, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Company” or “EVERTEC”) is a leading full-service transaction
processing business in Latin America and the Caribbean. The Company is based in Puerto Rico and provides a broad range of
merchant acquiring, payment processing and business process management services. The Company provides services across 26
countries in the region. EVERTEC owns and operates the ATH network, one of the leading automated teller machine (“ATM”)
and personal identification number (“PIN”) debit networks in the Caribbean and Latin America. In addition, EVERTEC
provides a comprehensive suite of services for core bank processing and cash processing in Puerto Rico and technology
outsourcing in the regions the Company serves. EVERTEC serves a broad and diversified customer base of leading financial
institutions, merchants, corporations, and government agencies with solutions that are essential to their operations, enabling
them to issue, process and accept transactions securely.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of EVERTEC have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). In the opinion of management, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, prepared in accordance with GAAP, contain all adjustments, all of which are normal and recurring in nature,
necessary for a fair presentation.

A summary of the most significant accounting policies used in preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements is
as follows:

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts and operations of the Company, which are presented
in accordance with GAAP. The Company consolidates all wholly owned subsidiaries and subsidiaries that are majority owned.
Intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue recognition policy follows the guidance from Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 606,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which provide guidance on the recognition, presentation, and disclosure of revenue in
consolidated financial statements.

The Company recognizes revenue when (or as) control of goods or services are transferred to a customer. The transfer of
control occurs when the customer can direct the use of and receive substantially all the benefits from the transferred good or
service. Therefore, revenue is recognized over time (typically for services) or at a point in time (typically for goods).

The assessment of revenue recognition is performed by the Company based on the five-step model established in ASC 606, as
follows: Step 1: Identify the contract with customer; Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract; Step 3:
Determine the transaction price; Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and Step
5: Recognize revenue when or as the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

At contract inception, the Company evaluates whether the contract (i) is legally enforceable; (ii) approved by both parties; (iii)
properly defines rights and obligations of the parties, including payment terms; (iv) has commercial substance; and (v)
collection of substantially all consideration entitled is probable, before proceeding with the assessment of revenue recognition.
If any of these requirements is not met, the contract does not exist for purposes of the model and any consideration received is
recorded as a liability. A reassessment may be performed in a later date upon change in facts and circumstances. The Company



EVERTEC, Inc. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

also evaluates within this step if contracts issued within a period of 6 months with the same customer should be accounted for
as a single contract. The Company’s contracts with customers may be modified through amendments, change requests or
waivers. Upon receipt, modifications of contracts with customers are evaluated to determine if these must be accounted for: (i)
as a separate contract, (ii) a cumulative catch-up, or (iii) as a termination and creation of a new contract. Contract modifications
must also comply with the requirements to determine if a contract with a customer exists for accounting purposes.

To identify performance obligations within contracts with customers, the Company first identifies all the promises in the
contract (i.e., explicit and implicit). This includes the customer’s options to acquire additional goods or services for free or at a
discount in exchange for an upfront payment. The Company then assesses if each material good or service (or bundle of goods
or services) is distinct in nature (i.e., the customer can benefit from the good or service on its own or together with other readily
available resources) and is capable of being distinct in the context of the contract (i.e., the promise to transfer the good or
service is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract). A distinct good or service (or bundle of goods or
services) constitutes a performance obligation.

The Company also applies the series guidance to distinct goods or services (either with a specified quantity of goods or services
or a stand-ready service), with an over time revenue recognition, to determine whether they should be accounted for as a single
performance obligation. These distinct goods or services are recognized as a single performance obligation when their nature
and timely increments are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer (i.e., the distinct goods or
services within the series use the same method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction). To determine if a
performance obligation should be recognized over time, one or more of the following criteria must be met: (1) the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as the Company performs (i.e., routine or recurring services); (2) the
customer controls the asset as the entity creates or enhances it (i.e., asset on customer’s site); or (3) the Company’s performance
does not create an asset for which the Company has an alternative use and there is a right to payment for performance to date
(i.e., asset built to order). Performance obligations that do not meet the over time criteria are recognized at a point in time.

In addition, in Step 2 of the model, the Company evaluates whether the practical expedient of right-to-invoice applies. If
this practical expedient is applicable, steps 3, 4 and 5 are waived. For this practical expedient to apply, the right to
consideration must correspond directly with the value received by the customer for the Company’s performance to date, no
significant up-front payments or retroactive adjustments must exist, and specified minimums must be deemed non-
substantive at the contract level. If the contract with the customer has multiple performance obligations and the practical
expedient of right-to-invoice does not apply, the Company proceeds to determine the transaction price and allocate it on a
standalone selling price basis among the different performance obligations identified in the Step 2.

The Company generally applies the expected cost plus margin approach to determine the standalone selling price at the
performance obligation level. In addition, for performance obligations that are satisfied over time and the right to invoice
practical expedient is not available, the Company determines a method to measure progress (i.e., input or output method) based
on current facts and circumstances. When these performance obligations have variable consideration within its transaction price
and are part of a series, the Company allocates the variable consideration to each time increment.

As part of the revenue recognition analysis, when another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the
Company evaluates, for each performance obligation, whether it is providing the goods or services itself (i.e., as principal), or if
it is only arranging on behalf of the other party. The Company acts as principal if it controls the specified good or service before
that good or service is transferred to a customer. To determine if the Company acts as an agent, the Company considers
indicators, such as: (i) the responsibility to fulfill a promise; (ii) the inventory risk; and (iii) the price determination.

The Company may also generate revenues from payments received under collaborative arrangements. Management analyzes its
collaborative arrangements to assess whether such arrangements, or transactions between arrangement participants, involve
joint operating activities performed by parties that are both active participants in the activities and exposed to significant risks
and rewards dependent on the commercial success of such activities or are more akin to a vendor-customer relationship. In
making this assessment, management considers whether the activities in the collaborative arrangement are considered to be
distinct and deemed within the scope of ASC 808, Collaborative Arrangements and those that are more reflective of a vendor-
customer relationship and, therefore, within the scope of ASC 606. This assessment is performed throughout the life of the
arrangement based on changes in the responsibilities of all parties in the arrangement.
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Investment in Equity Investee

The Company accounts for investments using the equity method of accounting if the investment provides the Company the
ability to exercise significant influence, but not control, over an investee. Significant influence is generally deemed to exist if
the Company has an ownership interest in the voting stock of an investor of between 20 percent and 50 percent, although other
factors are considered in determining whether the equity method of accounting is appropriate. Under this method, the
investment, originally recorded at cost, is adjusted to recognize the Company’s share of net income or losses as they occur. The
Company’s share of investee earnings or losses is recorded, net of taxes, within earnings (losses) of equity method investment
caption in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company’s consolidated revenues include
fees for services provided to an investee accounted for under the equity method. Additionally, the Company’s interest in the net
assets of its equity method investee is reflected in the consolidated balance sheets. On the acquisition of the investment, any
difference between the cost of the investment and the amount of the underlying equity in net assets of an investee is required to
be accounted as if the investee were a consolidated subsidiary. If the difference is assigned to depreciable or amortizable assets
or liabilities, then the difference should be amortized or accreted in connection with the equity earnings based on the
Company’s proportionate share of the investee’s net income or loss. If the investor is unable to relate the difference to specific
accounts of the investee, the difference should be considered goodwill.

The Company considers whether the fair value of its equity method investment has declined below its carrying value whenever
adverse events or changes in circumstances indicate that recorded values may not be recoverable. If the Company considered
any such decline to be other than temporary (based on various factors, including historical financial results, product
development activities and the overall health of the investee’s industry), then the Company would record a write-down to
estimated fair value.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation of property and
equipment is computed using the straight-line method and expensed over their estimated useful lives. Amortization of leasehold
improvements is computed over the terms of the respective leases, including renewal options considered by management to be
reasonably assured of being exercised, or the estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter. Costs of
maintenance and repairs which do not improve or extend the life of the respective assets are expensed as incurred.

Leases

The Company’s leases accounting policy follows the guidance from ASC 842, Leases, which provides guidance on the
recognition, presentation, and disclosure of leases in consolidated financial statements.

The Company determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception. Operating leases are included in operating lease
right-of-use (“ROU”) assets, operating lease payable, and operating lease liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. Finance
leases are included in property and equipment and accrued liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

ROU assets and lease liabilities are recognized based on the present value of future minimum lease payments over the lease
term at commencement date. As most of the Company’s leases do not provide an implicit rate, Management uses the
Company’s collateralized incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) based on the information available at commencement date in
determining the present value of future payments. The lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it
is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised. We monitor events or changes in circumstances that change the timing or
amount of future lease payments which results in the remeasurement of a lease liability, with a corresponding adjustment to the
ROU asset. The lease payment terms may include fixed payment terms and variable payments. Fixed payment terms and
variable payments that depend on an index (i.e., Consumer Price Index or “CPI”) or rate are considered in the determination of
the operating lease liabilities. While lease liabilities are not remeasured because of changes to the CPI, changes are treated as
variable lease payments and recognized in the period in which the obligation for those payments was incurred. Variable
payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the lease liabilities determination. Rather, these payments
are recognized as variable lease expense when incurred. Variable lease payments are included within operating costs and
expenses in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. For operating leases, lease expense for
minimum lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. For finance leases, lease expense is
composed of interest expense and amortization expense. The lease liability of these leases is measured using the interest rate
method. The ROU asset from financing leases is amortized on a straight-line basis, and is presented as part of Property and
Equipment, net.
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The Company has lease agreements with lease and non-lease components, which are accounted for as a single lease component.
The Company elected the practical expedient of not separating lease and related non-lease components for all classes of
underlying assets (i.e., building and equipment). The Company also elected as an accounting policy to not recognize lease
liabilities and ROU assets for any future short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less).

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets to be held and used, and long-lived assets to be disposed of, are evaluated for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

Capitalization of Software

The Company develops software that is used in providing processing services to customers. Capitalized software includes
purchased software and internally developed software and is recognized as software packages within the other intangible assets
line item in the consolidated balance sheets. Capitalization of internally developed software occurs only after the preliminary
project stage is complete, management with applicable authority approves funding of the project, it is probable that the project
will be completed, and the software will be used to perform the intended function. Tasks that are generally capitalized are as
follows: (a) system design of a chosen path including software configuration and software interfaces; (b) employee costs
directly associated with the internal-use computer software project; (c) software development (coding) and software and system
testing and verification; (d) system installation; and (¢) enhancements that add function and are considered permanent. These
tasks are capitalized and amortized using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life, which range from three to ten
years and is included in depreciation and amortization in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

The Company capitalizes interest costs incurred in the development of software. The amount of interest capitalized is an
allocation of the interest cost incurred during the period required to substantially complete the asset. The interest rate for
capitalization purposes is based on a weighted average rate on the Company’s outstanding borrowing. For the years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, interest cost capitalized amounted to approximately $0.8 million, $0.7 million, and $1.1
million, respectively.

Software and Maintenance Contracts

Software and maintenance contracts are recorded at cost. The cost is recognized as prepaid expenses and amortized over the
term of the related contract. The unamortized balance is included within prepaid expenses and other assets or other long-term
assets depending on their remaining useful lives. Amortization of software and maintenance contracts is computed using the
straight-line method and their estimated useful lives range from one to five years and are recognized in cost of revenues in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price and related costs over the value assigned to net assets acquired. Goodwill
is not amortized, but is tested for impairment at least annually, or more often if events or circumstances indicate there may be
impairment.

The Company first assesses qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to perform the quantitative impairment test.
If determined to be necessary, the quantitative impairment test shall be used to identify goodwill impairment and measure the
amount of a goodwill impairment loss to be recognized (if any). The Company may assess qualitative factors to determine
whether it is more likely than not, that is, a likelihood of more than 50 percent that the fair value of the reporting unit is less
than its carrying amount, including goodwill. The Company has an unconditional option to bypass the qualitative assessment
for any reporting unit in any period and proceed directly to performing the quantitative goodwill impairment test. The Company
may resume performing the qualitative assessment in any subsequent period. The quantitative goodwill impairment test, used to
identify both the existence of impairment and the amount of impairment loss, compares the fair value of a reporting unit with its
carrying amount, including goodwill. If the Company determines to perform a quantitative impairment test, a third-party
valuator may be engaged to prepare an independent valuation of each reporting unit. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds
its carrying amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is considered not impaired. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds
its fair value, an impairment loss shall be recognized in an amount equal to that excess, limited to the total amount of goodwill
allocated to that reporting unit. Additionally, the Company shall consider the income tax effect from any tax-deductible
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goodwill on the carrying amount of the reporting unit, if applicable, when measuring the goodwill impairment loss. For the
years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, no impairment losses associated with goodwill were recognized.

Other identifiable intangible assets with definitive useful lives are amortized using the straight-line method or accelerated
methods. These intangibles are evaluated periodically for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Other identifiable intangible assets with definitive useful lives include customer relationships, trademarks, software packages
and a non-compete agreement. Customer relationships were valued using the excess earnings method under the income
approach. Trademark assets were valued using the relief-from-royalty method under the income approach. Internally developed
software packages, which include capitalized software development costs, are recorded at cost, while software packages
acquired as part of a business combination were valued using the relief-from-royalty method under the income approach. The
non-compete agreement was valued based on the estimated impact that theoretical competition would have on revenues and
expenses.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to enhance its ability to manage its exposure to certain financial and market
risks. On the date the derivative instrument contract is entered into, the Company may designate the derivative as (1) a hedge of
the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment (“fair value” hedge), (2) a hedge of a
forecasted transaction or of the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (“cash
flow” hedge), or (3) as a “standalone” derivative instrument, including economic hedges that the Company has not formally
documented as a fair value or cash flow hedge. Changes in the fair value of a derivative that qualifies for cash flow hedge
accounting are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss). Amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income
(loss) are reclassified to earnings when the related cash outflow affects earnings. Changes in the fair value of a derivative
instrument that is highly effective and that is designated and qualifies as a fair value hedge, along with changes in the fair value
of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk (including gains or losses on firm commitments), are
recorded in current-period earnings. Similarly, the changes in the fair value of stand-alone derivative instruments or derivatives
not qualifying or designated for hedge accounting are reported in current-period earnings. The Company recognizes all
derivative financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheets as assets or liabilities at fair value. The Company presents
derivative assets and derivative liabilities separately in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company does not enter into
derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Income Tax

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. A temporary difference refers to a difference between the
tax basis of an asset or liability, determined based on recognition and measurement requirements for tax positions, and its
reported amount in the financial statements that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in future years when the reported
amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled, respectively. Deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future effects
on income taxes that result from temporary differences and carryforwards that exist at the end of a period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates and provisions of the enacted tax law and are not discounted to reflect the
time-value of money. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income in the period that includes the enactment date. A deferred tax valuation
allowance is established if it is considered more likely than not that all or a portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The Company recognizes the benefit of uncertain tax positions only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be
sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the
financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement or disposition of the underlying issue with the taxing authority.
Accordingly, the amount of benefit recognized in the consolidated financial statements may differ from the amount taken or
expected to be taken in the tax return resulting in unrecognized tax benefits (“UTBs”). The Company recognizes the interest
and penalties associated with UTBs as part of the provision for income taxes on its consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. Accrued interest and penalties are included on the related tax liability line in the consolidated balance
sheets.

All companies within EVERTEC are legal entities that file separate income tax returns.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents consist of certificates of deposits with original maturities of three
months or less.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents cash received on deposits from participating institutions of the ATH network that has been
segregated for the development of the ATH brand and cash maintained as collateral for a credit facility with Popular. Also,
restricted cash includes a reserve account for payment and transaction processing services to merchants. Prior to the sale in
2021 of assets related to the Ticketpop business and subsequent exit from this business, restricted cash also included cash
collected from the Ticketpop business. The restrictions of these accounts are based on contractual provisions entered into with
third parties. This cash is maintained in separate accounts at a financial institution in Puerto Rico.

Debt Securities

Debt securities available-for-sale are accounted for under the provisions of the Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 320
Investments — Debt and Equity Securities, which requires that debt securities available-for-sale ("AFS") be carried at fair value
on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets with unrealized gains (losses) generally recorded through other comprehensive
income (“OCI”). Debt securities in an unrealized loss position which the Company intends to sell or for which it is more likely
than not that the Company will be required to sell before recovery of the amortized cost basis, are written down to fair value
through income.

Quarterly, for debt securities in an unrealized loss position that the Company does not intend or will, more likely than not, not
be required to sell, the Company evaluates if the decline in fair value has resulted from credit losses or other factors. If it is
determined that the decline in fair value is related to credit losses, the Company records an allowance for credit losses, limited
to the amount by which the fair value is less than the amortized cost basis. If the Company determines that the decline in value
is related to factors other than credit, the Company recognizes the impairment through OCI.

Allowance for Current Expected Credit Losses

The Company monitors trade receivable balances and estimates the allowance for current expected credit losses based on
historical loss rates adjusted by macroeconomic factors. Receivables are considered past due if full payment is not received by
the contractual date. Past due accounts are generally written off against the allowance for current expected credit losses, only
after all collection attempts have been exhausted.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to U.S. dollars using prevailing rates of exchange at the
end of the period. Revenues, expenses, gains and losses are translated using weighted average rates for the period. The resulting
foreign currency translation adjustment from operations for which the functional currency is other than the U.S. dollar is
reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss. Gains and losses on transactions denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies are included in determining net income for the period in which exchange rates change.

Share-based Compensation

The Company estimates the fair value of stock-based awards, on a contemporaneous basis, at the date they are granted using the
Monte Carlo simulation analysis for market based restricted stock units (“RSUs”) using the following assumptions: (1) stock
price; (2) risk-free rate; (3) expected volatility; (4) expected annual dividend yield and (5) expected term. The risk-free rate is
based on the U.S. Constant Maturities Treasury Interest Rate as of the grant date or the yield of a 2-year or 3-year Treasury
bond, as applicable. The expected volatility is based on a combination of historical volatility and implied volatility from
publicly traded companies in the Company’s industry. The expected annual dividend yield is based on management’s
expectations of future dividends as of the grant date and, in certain cases, assumes that those dividends will be reinvested over
the performance period. Performance and time based RSUs and restricted stock are valued based on the market price of the
Company’s stock at the grant date.
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Upon restricted stock or RSUs release, participants may elect to “net share settle”. Rather than requiring the participant to
deliver cash to satisfy the tax withholdings, the Company withholds a sufficient number of shares to cover these amounts and
delivers the net shares to the participant.

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is determined by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the period.

Diluted net income per common share assumes the issuance of all potentially dilutive share equivalents using the treasury stock
method. For restricted stock and RSUs it is assumed that the proceeds will be used to buy back shares. For unvested restricted
share units, the proceeds equal the average unrecognized compensation.

Note 2—Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Recently adopted accounting pronouncements

In December 2019, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued updated guidance for Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) Topic 740, Income Taxes, as part of its initiative to reduce complexity in accounting standards. The
amendments in this update simplify the accounting for income taxes by removing certain exceptions to the general principles
set out in ASC Topic 740. The amendments also improve consistent application of and simplify GAAP for other areas of ASC
Topic 740 by clarifying and amending existing guidance. The adoption of these amendments did not have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Recently issued accounting pronouncements not yet adopted

In October 2021, the FASB issued ASC 805, Business Combinations, to require that an entity (acquirer) recognize and measure
contract assets and contract liabilities acquired in a business combination in accordance with Topic 606. At the acquisition date,
an acquirer should account for the related revenue contracts in accordance with Topic 606 as if it had originated the contracts.
The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods
within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company will apply this guidance to business combinations once
applicable.

In March 2020, the FASB issued guidance under ASC Topic 848, Reference Rate Reform, to provide optional expedients and
exceptions for applying GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships, and other transactions affected by reference rate reform if
certain criteria are met for a limited period of time in order to ease the potential burden in accounting for (or recognizing the
effects of reference rate reform on financial reporting. The amendments in this update are elective and apply only to contracts,
hedging relationships, and other transactions that reference LIBOR or another reference rate expected to be discontinued
because of reference rate reform. The expedients and exceptions provided by the amendments do not apply to contract
modifications made and hedging relationships entered into or evaluated after December 31, 2022, except for hedging
relationships existing as of December 31, 2022, that an entity has elected certain optional expedients for and that are retained
through the end of the hedging relationship. The amendments to this update are effective for all entities as of March 12, 2020
through December 31, 2022. The adoption of this guidance will not have an impact on the Company's consolidated financial
statements.

Note 3— Revenues
Summary of Revenue Recognition Accounting Policy

The Company's revenue recognition policy follows ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which provides
guidance on the recognition, presentation, and disclosure of revenue from contracts with customers in consolidated financial
statements.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. Once the Company determines a
contract's performance obligations and the transaction price, including an estimate of any variable consideration, the Company
allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in the contract using a standalone selling price ("SSP"). The
Company recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a product or service to a
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customer. Revenue is recognized net of any taxes collected from customers, which are subsequently remitted to governmental
authorities.

Nature of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Company assesses the goods and services promised in the contract with a customer and identifies a
performance obligation for each promise to transfer to the customer a good or service (or bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct. To identify the performance obligations, the Company considers all the goods or services promised in the contract
regardless of whether they are explicitly stated or implied. Payment for the Company’s contracts with customers are typically
due in full within 30 days of invoice date.

The following is a description of the Company's principal revenue generating activities, including the separate performance
obligations by operating segment.

The Payment Services - Puerto Rico & Caribbean segment provides financial institutions, government entities and other issuers
services to process credit, debit and prepaid cards; automated teller machines and electronic benefit transfer (“EBT”’) card
programs (which principally consist of services to the government of Puerto Rico for the delivery of benefits to participants).
Revenue is principally derived from fixed fees per transaction and time and material basis billing for professional services
provided to enhance the existing hosted platforms. Professional services in these contracts are primarily considered non-distinct
from the transactional services and accounted for as a single performance obligation. Revenue for these contracts is recognized
over time for the amount which the Company has right to consideration.

The Payment Services - Latin America segment provides financial institutions, government entities and other issuers services to
process credit, debit and prepaid cards, for which revenue is recognized in the same manner as described above, as well as
licensed software solutions for risk and fraud management and card payment processing. Licensed software solutions are
provided mainly as Software as a Service ("SaaS") and on-premise perpetual licenses. Set-up fees related to SaaS are
considered non-distinct from the license and accounted for as a single performance obligation. SaaS revenues are recognized
over time while the customer benefits from the software. On-premises perpetual licenses require significant customization and
development. Professional services provided for significant customizations and development are non-distinct from the license
and accounted for as a single performance obligation, recognized over time during the development of the license. Revenue is
recognized based on the Company's efforts or inputs, measured in labor hours expended, relative to the total expected inputs to
satisfy the performance obligation. Maintenance or support services are considered distinct and recognized over time in the
amount in which the Company has right to consideration.

The Merchant Acquiring segment provides customers with the ability to accept and process debit and credit cards. Revenue is
derived from fixed or identifiable fees charged to individual merchants per transaction, set-up fees, monthly membership fees
and rental of point-of-sale ("POS") terminals. Set-up fees are considered non-distinct from the transaction processing services
and accounted for as a single performance obligation. Revenue for these contracts is recognized over time in the amount in
which the Company has right to consideration.

The Business Solutions segment consists of revenues from a full suite of business process management solutions. Revenue
derived from core bank processing and other processing and transaction-based services are generally recognized over time in
the amount in which the Company has right to consideration. Hosting services generally represent a series of distinct monthly
increments that are substantially the same and has the same pattern of transfer. Professional services to enhance EVERTEC's
platforms are generally considered non-distinct from the hosting service and accounted for as a single performance obligation.
Hosting services are generally recognized over time once in production during the remaining term of the contract. Maintenance
or support services are usually considered distinct and recognized over time in the amount in which the Company has right to
consideration. Hardware and software sales are recognized at a point in time when the control of the asset is transferred to the
customer. Indicators of transfer of control include the Company's right to payment, or as the customer has legal title or physical
possession of the asset. The Company may also provide professional services to enhance customer's platforms or as IT
consulting services by arranging for other parties to transfer the services (i.e., acting as an agent). For these contracts, revenue is
recognized on a net basis.

The Company’s service contracts may include service level arrangements (“SLA”) generally allowing the customer to receive a
credit for part of the service fee when the Company has not provided the agreed level of services. If triggered, the SLA is
deemed a consideration payable that may impact the transaction price of the contract, thus SLA performance is monitored and
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assessed for compliance with arrangements on a monthly basis, including determination and accounting for its economic
impact, if any.

The Company enters into collaborative arrangements aimed at growing the Company’s merchant relationships. These
arrangements are accounted for under ASC 606 as required by ASC 808 Collaborative Arrangements and are included as part
of the Company’s Merchant Acquiring segment and Payment Processing — Latin America segment. For the years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company recognized revenue amounting to $23.9 million, $9.9 million, and

$9.8 million, respectively, for these arrangements.

Refer to Note 24 - Segment Information for further information, including revenue by products and services the Company
provides and the geographic regions in which the Company operates.

Significant Judgments

Determining a measure of progress for performance obligations satisfied over time requires management to make judgments
that affect the timing of revenue to be recognized. The Company exercises judgment in identifying a suitable method that
depicts the entity’s performance in transferring control of these performance obligations, on a contract-by-contract basis. The
principal criteria used for determining the measure of progress is the availability of reliable information that can be obtained
without incurring undue cost, which generally results in the application of an input method since, in most cases, the outputs
used to reasonably measure progress are not directly observable. Usually, the input method based on labor hours incurred, with
respect to total expected labor hours to satisfy the performance obligation is applied. For performance obligations satisfied at a
point in time, the Company determines that the customer is able to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the benefits
from, the products at the time the products are delivered, the customer has legal title of the products or the Company’s has the
right to payment.

The Company mainly uses the expected cost-plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price in contracts with multiple
performance obligations. To determine the SSP, the Company periodically performs an assessment to determine the margin of
goods or services with the assistance of the different business areas. This assessment is performed considering past transactions
and/or reasonably available information, including market conditions, trends or other company or customer specific factors,
among others.

Disaggregation of revenue

The Company disaggregates revenue from contract with customers into the primary geographical markets, nature of products
and services, and timing of transfer of goods and services. The Company's operating segments are determined by the nature of
the products and services that the Company provides and the primary geographical markets in which the Company operates.
Revenue disaggregated by segment is discussed in Note 24, Segment Information.

In the following table, revenue for each segment, excluding intersegment revenues, is disaggregated by timing of revenue
recognition for the periods indicated.

Year ended on December 31, 2021

Payment
Services - Puerto Payment

Rico & Services - Latin Merchant Business
(In thousands) Caribbean America Acquiring, net Solutions Total
Timing of revenue recognition
Products and services transferred at a
point in time $ 168 $ 2,045 % — 3 8,882 $ 11,095
Products and services transferred over
time 104,624 95,187 143,965 234,925 578,701

$ 104,792 § 97,232 § 143965 $§ 243807 S 589,796
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Year ended on December 31, 2020

Payment
Services - Puerto Payment
Rico & Services - Latin Merchant Business
(In thousands) Caribbean America Acquiring, net Solutions Total
Timing of revenue recognition
Products and services transferred at a
point in time $ 134 $ 1,448 $ — 3 0482 § 11,064
Products and services transferred
over time 88,138 76,115 109,788 225,483 499,524
$ 88,272 § 77,563 $ 109,788  § 234,965 § 510,588
Year ended on December 31, 2019
Payment
Services - Puerto Payment
Rico & Services - Latin Merchant Business
(In thousands) Caribbean America Acquiring, net Solutions Total
Timing of revenue recognition
Products and services transferred at a
point in time $ 3,041 $ 3,811 $ — 3 10421 $ 17,273
Products and services transferred over
time 82,487 74,985 106,388 206,241 470,101

$ 85,528 § 78,796  § 106,388  § 216,662 § 487,374

Contract balances

The following table provides information about contract assets from contracts with customers.

December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020

Balance at beginning of period $ 2,796 § 1,191
Services transferred to customers 5,374 3,934
Transfers to accounts receivable (6,455) (2,329)

Balance at end of period $ 1,715  $ 2,796

Contract assets of the Company arise when the Company has a contract with a customer for which revenue has been recognized
(i.e., goods or services have been transferred), but the customer payment is subject to a future event (i.e., satisfaction of
additional performance obligations). Contract assets are considered a receivable when the rights to consideration of the
Company become unconditional (i.e., the Company has a present right to payment). The current portion of contract assets is
recorded as part of prepaid expenses and other assets, and the long-term portion is included in other long-term assets in the
consolidated balance sheets.

Accounts receivable, net at December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to $113.3 million and $95.7 million, respectively. Contract
liability and Contract liability- Long term, at December 31, 2021 amounted to $17.4 million and $36.3 million, respectively.
Contract liability and Contract liability- Long term amounted to $25.0 million and $31.3 million at December 31, 2020,
respectively. Contract liability is mainly comprised of upfront fees for implementation or set up activities, including fees
charged in pre-production periods in connection with hosting services. Contract liability may also arise when consideration is
received or due in advance from costumers prior to performance. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company
recognized revenue of $25.7 million that was included in contract liability, at December 31, 2020. During the year ended
December 31, 2020, the Company recognized revenue of $16.3 million that was included in unearned income at December 31,

2019.
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Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

Revenues from recurring transaction-based and processing services represent the majority of the Company's total revenue. The
Company recognizes revenues from recurring transaction-based and processing services over time at the amounts in which the
Company has right to invoice, which corresponds directly to the value to the customer of the Company’s performance
completed to date. Therefore, the Company has elected to apply the practical expedient in paragraph 606-10-50-14. Under this
practical expedient, the Company is not required to disclose information about remaining performance obligations if the
performance obligation is part of a contract with an original expected duration of one year or less or if the Company recognizes
revenue at the amount to which it has a right to invoice.

The Company also applies the practical expedient in paragraph 606-10-50-14A and does not disclose the information about
remaining performance obligations for variable consideration when the variable consideration is allocated entirely to a wholly
unsatisfied performance obligation or to a wholly unsatisfied promise to transfer a distinct good or service that forms part of a
single performance obligation in accordance with paragraph 606-10-25-14(b).

For contracts excluded from the application of the practical expedients noted above, the estimated aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially satisfied at December 31, 2021 is $254.5
million. This amount primarily consists of professional service fees for implementation or set up activities related to managed
services and maintenance services, typically recognized over the life of the contract, which varies from 2 to 5 years. It also
includes professional service fees for customizations or development of on-premise licensing agreements, which are recognized
over time based on inputs relative to the total expected inputs to satisfy a performance obligation.

Note 4—Cash and cash equivalents

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to $266.4 million and $202.6 million,
respectively, which are deposited in deposit accounts within financial institutions. Of the total cash balance at December 31,
2021 and 2020, $96.3 million and $80.0 million, respectively, reside in subsidiaries located outside of Puerto Rico. Cash
deposited in an affiliate financial institution amounted to $173.9 million and $116.0 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Note 5 — Debt Securities
Debt securities were purchased close to the final trading day of the quarter ended March 31, 2021 and are held by a trust in the
Costa Rica National Bank as a collateral requirement for settlement activities. The Company may substitute securities as needed

but must maintain certain levels of collateral based on transaction volumes.

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses recorded in OCI, and estimated fair value as of December 31, 2021 were
as follows:

December 31, 2021

(In thousands) Gross unrealized

Amortized cost Gains Losses Fair Value

Costa Rica Government Obligations
After 1 to 5 years $ 2,963 § 78 S — 3 3,041

No debt securities were sold during the year ended December 31, 2021. A provision for credit losses was not required for the
period presented above. Refer to Note 14 for disclosure requirements related to the fair value hierarchy.
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Note 6—Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Current Expected Credit Losses

Accounts receivable, net consisted of the following:

December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020

Trade $ 66,255 $ 58,701

Due from affiliates, net 38,120 28,419

Settlement assets 11,417 10,641

Other 16 367
Less: allowance for current expected credit losses (2,523) (2,401)
Accounts receivable, net $ 113,285 $ 95,727

The Company records settlement assets that result from timing differences in the Company’s settlement processes with
merchants, financial institutions, and credit card associations related to merchant and card transaction processing. The amounts
are generally collected or paid the following business day.

Allowance for Current Expected Credit Losses

Trade receivables from contracts with customers are financial assets analyzed by the Company under the expected credit loss
model. To measure expected credit losses, trade receivables are grouped based on shared risk characteristics (i.e., the relevant
industry sector and customer's geographical location) and days past due (i.e., delinquency status), while considering the
following:

*  Customers in the same geographical location share similar risk characteristics associated with the macroeconomic
environment of their country.

e The Company has two main industry sectors: private and governmental. The private pool is comprised mainly of
leading financial institutions, merchants, and corporations, while the governmental pool is comprised by government
agencies. The governmental customers possess different risk characteristics than private customers because although
all invoices are due 30 days after issuance, governmental customers usually pay within 60 to 90 days after issuance
(i.e., between 30 to 60 more days than private customers). The Company provides to its customers a broad range of
merchant acquiring, payment services and business process management services, which constitute mission-critical
technology solutions enabling customers to issue, process and accept transactions securely.

*  The expected credit loss rate is likely to increase as receivables move to older aging buckets. The Company used the
following aging categories to estimate the risk of delinquency status: (i) 0 days past due; (ii) 1-30 days past due; (iii)
31-60 days past due; (iv) 61-90 days past due; and (v) over 90 days past due.

The credit losses of the Company’s trade receivables have been historically low, and most balances are collected within one
year. Therefore, the Company determined that the expected loss rates should be calculated using the historical loss rates
adjusted by macroeconomic factors. The historical rates are calculated for each of the aging categories used for pooling trade
receivables. To determine the collected portion of each bucket, the collection time of each trade receivable is identified, to
estimate the proportion of outstanding balances per aging bucket that ultimately will not be collected. This is used to determine
the expectation of losses based on the history of uncollected trade receivables once the specific past due period is surpassed.
The historical rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of customers to settle the receivables by applying a country risk premium as the forward-looking macroeconomic factor.
Specific reserves are established for certain customers for which collection is doubtful.

Rollforward of the Allowance for Current Expected Credit Losses

The activity in the allowance for current expected credit losses on trade receivables were as follows:
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(In thousands) December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the period $ 2,401 $ 3,460
Current period provision for expected credit losses 819 832
Write-offs (698) (1,894)
Recoveries of amounts previously written-off 1 3

Balance at the end of the period $ 2,523 $ 2,401

The Company does not have a delinquency threshold for writing-off trade receivables. The Company has a formal process for
the review and approval of write-offs.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net impairment losses within cost of revenue, exclusive of depreciation
and amortization in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written-off are credited against the allowance for expected current credit losses within accounts receivable, net on
the consolidated balance sheets.

Note 7—Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

Prepaid expenses and other assets consisted of the following:

December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020
Software maintenance contracts $ 11,629 $ 10,745
Deferred project costs 4,927 11,614
Prepaid cloud computing arrangement fees 4,453 2,145
Prepaid income taxes 4,080 3,757
Taxes other than on income 2,405 2,390
Insurance 2,286 2,335
Postage 2,078 1,906
Contract assets 1,677 2,661
Guarantee deposits 850 2,648
Other 2,763 2,013

Prepaid expenses and other assets $ 37,148 § 42,214

Note 8—Investment in Equity Investee

Consorcio de Tarjetas Dominicanas, S.A. (“CONTADO”) is the largest merchant acquirer and ATM network in the Dominican
Republic. The Company uses the equity method of accounting to account for its equity interest in CONTADO. As a result of
the acquisition in 2011 of CONTADO’s 19.99% equity interest, the Company calculated an excess cost of the investment in
CONTADO over the amount of underlying equity in net assets of approximately $9.0 million, which was mainly attributed to
customer relationships, trademark, and goodwill intangibles. The Company’s excess basis allocated to amortizable assets is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lives of the appropriate intangibles. Amortization expense for each of the years
ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 amounted to approximately $0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively,
and was recorded within earnings of equity method investment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income. The Company recognized $1.7 million, $1.1 million, and $0.9 million as equity in CONTADO’s net income, net of
amortization, in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2021,
2020 and 2019, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2019, the Company received $1.2 million, and $0.5
million, respectively, in dividends from CONTADO. No dividends were received in 2020.

CONTADO fiscal year ends December 31 and is reported in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income
for the period subsequent to the acquisition date on a one-month lag. No significant events occurred in CONTADO’s operations
subsequent to November 30, 2021 that would have materially affected the Company’s reported results.
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Note 9—Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net consisted of the following:

Useful life December 31,
(Dollar amounts in thousands) in years 2021 2020
Buildings 30 $ 1,359 § 1,437
Data processing equipment 3-5 141,359 124,897
Furniture and equipment 3-20 7,718 6,691
Leasehold improvements 5-10 3,277 3,098
153,713 136,123
Less—accumulated depreciation and amortization (106,365) (93,826)
Depreciable assets, net 47,348 42,297
Land 1,185 1,241
Property and equipment, net $ 48,533 $ 43,538

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment was $17.4 million, $17.4 million, and $16.6 million
for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Note 10—Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, allocated by reporting unit, were as follows:

Payment
Services - Payment
Puerto Rico & Services - Merchant Business
(In thousands) Caribbean Latin America  Acquiring, net Solutions Total
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 160,972 § 54,571 $ 138,121 § 45,823 $ 399,487
Foreign currency translation adjustments — (1,817) — — (1,817)
Balance at December 31, 2020 160,972 52,754 138,121 45,823 397,670
Foreign currency translation adjustments — (4,352) — — (4,352)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 160,972 $ 48402 $ 138,121 $ 45,823 $ 393318

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis as of August 31, or more often if events or changes in circumstances
indicate there may be impairment. The Company may test for goodwill impairment using a qualitative or a quantitative
analysis. In a qualitative analysis, the Company assesses whether it is "more likely than not" that the fair value of a reporting
unit is less than its carrying amount. In the quantitative analysis, the Company compares the estimated fair value of the
reporting units to their carrying values, including goodwill.

The estimated fair value of the reporting units is computed using a combination of an income approach and a market approach.
The income approach involves projecting the cash flows that the reporting unit is expected to generate and converting these
cash flows into a present value equivalent through discounting. Significant estimates and assumptions used in the cash flow
projection include, among others, earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization ("EBITDA") margins, and the
selection of discount rates. Internal projections are based on the Company’s historical experience and estimated future business
performance. The discount rate used is based on the weighted-average cost of capital, which reflects the rate of return expected
to be earned by market participants and the estimated cost to obtain long-term debt financing. The market approach estimates
the value of a reporting unit by using multiples of revenue and EBITDA based on guideline of publicly traded companies.
Valuation using the market approach requires management to make assumptions related to EBITDA multiples. Comparable
businesses are selected based on the market in which the reporting units operate, considering size, profitability, and growth. If
the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is not considered impaired. If the
fair value does not exceed the carrying value, an impairment loss equaling the excess amount is recorded, limited to the
recorded balance of goodwill. The Company performed a qualitative assessment or step zero process as of August 31, 2021.
Using this process, the Company first assesses whether it is "more likely than not" that the fair value of a reporting unit is less
than its carrying amount. No impairment losses were recorded in 2021, 2020 or 2019. Based on the results of this qualitative
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assessment, EVERTEC believes the fair value of goodwill for each of the Company's reporting units continues to exceed its

respective carrying amount.

Note 11—Other Intangible Assets, Net

The carrying amount of other intangible assets consisted of the following:

(In thousands)

Customer relationships
Trademark

Software packages
Non-compete agreement

Other intangible assets, net

(In thousands)

Customer relationships
Trademark

Software packages
Non-compete agreement

Other intangible assets, net

December 31, 2021

Gross Accumulated Net carrying
Useful life in years amount amortization amount
8-14 357,991 $ (272,732) $ 85,259
2-15 41,901 (36,684) 5,217
3-10 326,320 (217,643) 108,677
15 56,539 (42,404) 14,135
782,751 $ (569,463) $ 213,288
December 31, 2020
Gross Accumulated Net carrying
Useful life in years amount amortization amount
8-14 343981 $ (246,088) $ 97,893
2-15 42,036 (35,467) 6,569
3-10 289,205 (191,662) 97,543
15 56,539 (38,635) 17,904
731,761 $ (511,852) $ 219,909

Amortization expense related to intangibles, including software packages, was $57.6 million, $54.1 million, and $51.5 million
for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Amortization expense related to software packages was
$26.0 million, $21.7 million, and $18.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The
estimated amortization expense of balances outstanding at December 31, 2021 for the next five years are as follows:

(In thousands)
2022

2023
2024
2025
2026

Note 12—Other Long-Term Assets

$ 52,534
47,157

35,139

12,074

5,607

As of December 31, 2021, other long-term assets included $0.7 million related to deferred debt-issuance costs related to the
revolving credit facility, $4.9 million related to the long-term portion of certain software maintenance contracts, and $4.3
million related to the long-term portion of deferred costs.

As of December 31, 2020, other long-term assets included $1.0 million related to deferred debt-issuance costs related to the
revolving credit facility, $4.8 million related to the long-term portion of certain software maintenance contracts, and $0.1
million related to the long-term portion of contract assets.



EVERTEC, Inc. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 13—Debt and Short-Term Borrowings

Total debt was as

follows:
December 31,
(In thousands) 2021 2020
2023 Term A Loan bearing interest at a variable interest rate (LIBOR plus
applicable margin’®) $ 170,875 $ 188,788
2024 Term B Loan bearing interest at a variable interest rate (LIBOR plus
applicable margin’®) 293,660 306,503
Notes Payable due on January 1, 2022" 758 1,443
Total debt $ 465,293 $ 496,734

(1) Net of unaccreted discount and unamortized debt issue costs, as applicable.

(2) Applicable margin of 1.75% at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

(3) Subject to a minimum rate (“LIBOR floor”) of 0.00% plus applicable margin of 3.50% at December 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020.

The following table presents contractual principal payments for the next years:
(In thousands)

2022 $ 19,750
2023 158,364
2024 289,344
Thereafter -

Secured Credit Facilities

On November 27, 2018, EVERTEC and EVERTEC Group (“Borrower”) entered into a credit agreement providing for the
secured credit facilities, consisting of a $220.0 million term loan A facility that matures on November 27, 2023 ("2023 Term A
Loan"), a $325.0 million term loan B facility that matures on November 27, 2024 ("2024 Term B Loan") and a $125.0 million
revolving credit facility (the "Revolving Facility") that matures on November 27, 2023, with a syndicate of lenders and Bank of
America, N.A. (“Bank of America”), as administrative agent, collateral agent, swingline lender and line of credit issuer
(collectively the “2018 Credit Agreement”). The material terms and conditions of the secured credit facilities are summarized
below.

Scheduled Amortization Payments

The 2023 Term A Loan provides for amortization in the amount of 1.25% of the original principal amount of the 2023 Term A
Loan during each of the first twelve quarters starting from the quarter ending March 31, 2019, 1.875% during each of the four
subsequent quarters and 2.50% during each of the final three quarters, with the balance payable on the final maturity date.

The 2024 Term B Loan provides for quarterly amortization payments totaling 1.00% per annum of the original principal
amount of the 2024 Term B Loan, with the balance payable on the final maturity date.

Voluntary Prepayments and Reduction and Termination of Commitments

The 2018 Credit Agreement allows EVERTEC Group to prepay loans and permanently reduce the loan commitments under the
secured credit facilities at any time, subject to the payment of customary LIBOR breakage costs, if any, provided that, in
connection with certain refinancing or repricing of the 2024 Term B Loan on or prior to the date which is six months after the
closing date of the 2018 Credit Agreement, a prepayment premium of 1.00% will be required.

Additionally, the 2018 Credit Agreement requires mandatory repayment of outstanding principal balances based on a
percentage of excess cash flow provided that no such prepayment shall be due if the resulting amount of the excess cash flow
multiplied by the applicable percentage is less than $10 million. On March 8, 2021 and March 5, 2020, in connection with this
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mandatory repayment clause, the Company repaid $17.8 million and $17.0 million, respectively, as a result of excess cash flow
calculation performed for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Interest

The interest rates under the 2023 Term A Loan and revolving credit facility are based on, at EVERTEC Group’s option, (a)
adjusted LIBOR plus an interest margin of 2.25% or (b) the greater of (i) Bank of America’s “prime rate,” (ii) the Federal
Funds Effective Rate plus 0.5% and (iii) adjusted LIBOR plus 1.0% (“ABR”) plus an interest margin of 1.25%. The interest
rates under the 2024 Term B Loan are based on, at EVERTEC Group’s option, (a) adjusted LIBOR plus an interest margin of
3.50% or (b) ABR plus an interest margin of 2.50%. The interest margins under the 2023 Term A Loan and Revolving Facility

are subject to reduction based on achievement of specified total secured net leverage ratio.
Guarantees and Collateral

EVERTEC Group’s obligations under the secured credit facilities and under any cash management, interest rate protection or
other hedging arrangements entered into with a lender, or any affiliate thereof are guaranteed by EVERTEC and each of
EVERTEC’s existing wholly-owned subsidiaries (other than EVERTEC Group) and subsequently acquired or organized
subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions.

Subject to certain exceptions, the secured credit facilities are secured to the extent legally permissible by substantially all of the
assets of (1) EVERTEC, including a perfected pledge of all of the limited liability company interests of EVERTEC
Intermediate Holdings, LLC (“Holdings”), (2) Holdings, including a perfected pledge of all of the limited liability company
interests of EVERTEC Group and (3) EVERTEC Group and the subsidiary guarantors, including but not limited to: (a) a pledge
of substantially all capital stock held by EVERTEC Group or any guarantor and (b) a perfected security interest in substantially
all tangible and intangible assets of EVERTEC Group and each guarantor.

Covenants

The secured credit facilities contain affirmative and negative covenants that the Company believes are usual and customary for
a secured credit agreement. The negative covenants in the secured credit facilities include, among other things, limitations
(subject to exceptions) on the ability of EVERTEC and its restricted subsidiaries to:

e declare dividends and make other distributions;

+ redeem or repurchase capital stock;

e grant liens;

*  make loans or investments (including acquisitions);
e merge or enter into acquisitions;

e sell assets;

* enter into any sale or lease-back transactions;

e incur additional indebtedness;

*  prepay, redeem or repurchase certain indebtedness;
*  modify the terms of certain debt;

e restrict dividends from subsidiaries;

*  change the business of EVERTEC or its subsidiaries; and
* enter into transactions with their affiliates.

In addition, the 2023 Term A Loan and the Revolving Facility require EVERTEC to maintain a maximum total secured net
leverage ratio of 4.25 to 1.00 for any quarter that ended on or prior to September 30, 2020. Beginning with the quarter ended
December 31, 2020 and for fiscal quarters ending thereafter, 4.00 to 1.00.

The unpaid principal balance at December 31, 2021 of the 2023 Term A Loan and the 2024 Term B Loan was $171.6 million,
and $295.8 million, respectively. The additional borrowing capacity for the Revolving Facility at December 31, 2021 was
$119.1 million. The Company issues letters of credit against the Revolving Facility which reduce the additional borrowing
capacity of the Revolving Facility.
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Events of Default

The events of default under the secured credit facilities include, without limitation, nonpayment, material misrepresentation,
breach of covenants, insolvency, bankruptcy, certain judgments, change of control (as defined in the 2018 Credit Agreement)
and cross-events of default on material indebtedness.

Notes payable

In December 2019, EVERTEC Group entered into two non interest-bearing financing agreements amounting to $2.4 million to
purchase software and maintenance. As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the outstanding principal balance of
the notes payable was $0.8 million and $1.5 million, respectively. These notes are included in accounts payable in the
Company's consolidated balance sheets.

Interest Rate Swaps

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has an interest rate swap agreement, entered into in December 2018, which converts a
portion of the interest rate payments on the Company's 2024 Term B Loan from variable to fixed:

Swap Agreement Effective date Maturity Date Notional Amount Variable Rate Fixed Rate
2018 Swap April 2020 November 2024 $250 million 1-month LIBOR 2.89%

The Company has accounted for this agreement as a cash flow hedge.

Additionally, the Company had an interest rate swap agreement that matured in April 2020, with a notional amount of
$200 million and a fixed rate of 1.9225%. The Company accounted for this swap as a cash flow hedge from inception to
maturity.

As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the carrying amount of the derivatives included on the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets was $13.4 million and $25.6 million, respectively. The fair value of these derivatives is estimated using Level 2 inputs in
the fair value hierarchy on a recurring basis.

During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company reclassified losses of $7.1 million, losses of $5.1
million and gains of $0.7 million, respectively, from accumulated other comprehensive loss into interest expense. Based on
current LIBOR rates, the Company expects to reclassify losses of $7.0 million from accumulated other comprehensive loss into
interest expense over the next 12 months. Refer to Note 14 for tabular disclosure of the fair value of derivatives and to Note 16
for tabular disclosure of gains (losses) recorded on cash flow hedging activities.

At December 31, 2021, the cash flow hedge is considered highly effective.
Note 14—Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements
Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Fair value measurement provisions establish a fair value hierarchy that requires an entity to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. These provisions describe three levels of input
that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, which are observable for the asset or liability through
corroboration with market data at the measurement date.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date.

The Company uses observable inputs when available. Fair value is based upon quoted market prices when available. If market

prices are not available, the Company may employ models that mostly use market-based inputs including yield curves, interest
rates, volatilities, and credit curves, among others. The Company limits valuation adjustments to those deemed necessary to
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ensure that the financial instrument’s fair value adequately represents the price that would be received or paid in the
marketplace. Valuation adjustments may include consideration of counterparty credit quality and liquidity as well as other
criteria. The estimated fair value amounts are subjective in nature and may involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgment for certain financial instruments. Changes in the underlying assumptions used in estimating fair value could affect the
results. The fair value measurement levels are not indicative of risk of investment.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time based on the type of financial instrument and relevant market information. Many of these estimates involve various
assumptions and may vary significantly from amounts that could be realized in actual transactions.

The following table summarizes fair value measurements by level at December 31, 2021 and 2020, for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2021
Financial asset:

Costa Rica Government Obligations $ — 3 3,041 $ — 3 3,041
Financial liability:

Interest rate swap $ — 3 13,392 $ — 3 13,392
December 31, 2020
Financial liability:

Interest rate swap $ — 3 25,578  $ — 3 25,578

Debt Securities

The fair value of the debt securities is determined by a third-party service provider and it is based on the value of trading
securities in the local Costa Rica market.

Derivative Instruments

The fair value of the Company’s derivative instrument is determined using a standard valuation model. The significant inputs
used in these models are readily available in public markets, or can be derived from observable market transactions, and
therefore have been classified as Level 2. Inputs used in these standard valuation models for derivative instruments include the
applicable forward rates and discount rates. The discount rates are based on the historical LIBOR Swap rates.

The following table presents the carrying value, as applicable, and estimated fair values for financial instruments at
December 31, 2021 and 2020:

December 31,
2021 2020
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

(In thousands) Amount Value Amount Value
Financial asset:
Costa Rica Government Obligations $ 3,041 $ 3,041 $ — 3 —
Financial liabilities:

Interest rate swap $ 13,392 § 13,392 § 25,578 $ 25,578

2023 Term A Loan 170,875 168,610 188,788 186,678

2024 Term B Loan 293,660 294,735 306,503 308,336

The fair values of the term loans at December 31, 2021 and 2020 were obtained using the prices provided by third party service
providers. Their pricing is based on various inputs such as market quotes, recent trading activity in a non-active market or
imputed prices. These inputs are considered Level 3 inputs under the fair value hierarchy. Also, the pricing may include the use
of an algorithm that could take into account movement in the general high yield market, among other variants. The secured term
loans are not measured at fair value in the balance sheets.
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There were no transfers in or out of Level 3 during the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019.
Note 15—Other Long-Term Liabilities

As of December 31, 2021, other long-term liabilities mainly consist of an unrecognized tax benefit liability of $5.6 million, and
other long-term liabilities of $2.7 million.

As of December 31, 2020, other long-term liabilities mainly consist of an unrecognized tax benefit liability of $8.7 million, and
long-term portion of notes payable and long-term liabilities others of $5.3 million.

Note 16—Equity

The Company is authorized to issue up to 206,000,000 shares of common stock of $0.01 par value. At December 31, 2021 and
2020, the Company had 71,969,856 and 72,137,678 shares outstanding, respectively. The Company is also authorized to issue
2,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value preferred stock. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, no shares of preferred stock have been
issued.

Stock Repurchase

In 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company repurchased a total of 0.6 million, 0.3 million, and 1.1 million shares, respectively, at a
cost of $24.4 million, $7.3 million and $31.8 million. The Company funded such repurchases with cash on hand and borrowings
to the existing revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the repurchased shares were permanently
retired.

Dividends

The Company pays a regular quarterly dividend on common stock, subject to the declaration thereof by the Board of Directors
("Board") each quarter. Any declaration and payment of future dividends to holders of the common stock will be at the
discretion of the Board and will depend on many factors, including the financial condition, earnings, available cash, business
opportunities, legal requirements, restrictions in our debt agreements and other contracts, capital requirements, level of
indebtedness and other factors that the Board deems relevant. The Company’s dividend activity in 2021 and 2020 was as
follows:

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Dividend per share
February 20, 2020 March 4, 2020 April 3, 2020 0.05
April 21, 2020 May 4, 2020 June 5, 2020 0.05
July 24, 2020 August 3, 2020 September 4, 2020 0.05
October 20, 2020 November 2, 2020 December 4, 2020 0.05
February 18, 2021 March 1, 2021 March 26, 2021 0.05
April 22,2021 May 3, 2021 June 4, 2021 0.05
July 22, 2021 August 2, 2021 September 3, 2021 0.05
October 21, 2021 November 1, 2021 December 3, 2021 0.05
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following table provides a summary of the changes in the balances comprising accumulated other comprehensive loss for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Foreign Currency Unrealized Gains

Translation on Debt

Adjustments Cash Flow Hedge Securities AFS Total
Balance - December 31, 2019, net of tax $ (16,872) $ (13,137) — 3 (30,009)
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications (7,970) (15,341) — (23,311)
Effective portion reclassified to net income — 5,066 — 5,066
Balance - December 31, 2020, net of tax (24,842) (23,412) — (48,254)
Other comprehensive (loss) income before
reclassifications (11,129) 4,086 109 (6,934)
Effective portion reclassified to net income — 7,065 — 7,065
Balance - December 31, 2021, net of tax $ (35,971) $ (12,261) $ 109 $ (48,123)

Note 17—Share-based Compensation
Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP")

During the three months ended March 31, 2019, 2020 and 2021, the Compensation Committee of the Company's Board
approved grants of restricted stock units (“RSUs”) to executives and certain employees pursuant to the 2019 LTIP, 2020 LTIP
and 2021 LTIP, respectively, all under the terms of the Company's 2013 Equity Incentive Plan. Under the LTIPs, the Company
granted RSUs to eligible participants as time-based awards and/or performance-based awards.

The vesting of the RSUs is dependent upon service and/or performance conditions as defined in the grants. Employees that
received time-based awards with service conditions are entitled to receive a specific number of shares of the Company’s
common stock on the vesting date if the employee is providing services to the Company through the vesting date. Time-based
awards vest over a period of three years in substantially equal installments commencing on the grant date and ending on
February 22 of each year for the 2019 LTIP, February 27 of each year for the 2020 LTIP, and March 2 of each year for the 2021
LTIP.

For the performance-based awards under the 2019 LTIP, 2020 LTIP, and 2021 LTIP, the Compensation Committee established
adjusted earnings before income taxes, depreciation, and amortization ("Adjusted EBITDA") as the primary performance
measure while maintaining focus on total shareholder return through the use of a market-based total shareholder return ("TSR")
performance modifier. The TSR modifier adjusts the shares earned based on the core Adjusted EBITDA performance upwards
or downwards (+/- 25%) based on the Company’s relative TSR at the end of the three-year performance period as compared to
the companies in the Russell 2000 Index. The Adjusted EBITDA performance measure will be calculated for the one-year
period commencing on January 1 of the year of the grant and ending on December 31 of the same year, relative to the goals set
by the Compensation Committee for this same period. The shares earned will be subject to an additional two-year service
vesting period and will vest on February 22, 2022 for the 2019 LTIP, February 27, 2023 for the 2020 LTIP, and March 2, 2024
for the 2021 LTIP. Unless otherwise specified in the award agreement, or in an employment agreement, awards are forfeited if
the employee voluntarily ceases to be employed by the Company prior to vesting.
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The following table summarizes the nonvested restricted shares and RSUs activity for the years ended December 31, 2021,
2020 and 2019:

Weighted average

Nonvested restricted shares and RSUs Shares grant date fair value
Nonvested at December 31, 2018 2,036,163 $ 15.09
Granted 517,153 30.84
Vested (931,389) 29.32
Forfeited (29,172) 16.52
Nonvested at December 31, 2019 1,592,755 20.71
Granted 413,733 31.62
Vested (762,194) 16.65
Forfeited (150,779) 19.22
Nonvested at December 31, 2020 1,093,515 27.88
Granted 705,970 31.93
Vested (683,706) 20.95
Forfeited (29,450) 33.36
Nonvested at December 31, 2021 1,086,329 $ 34,73

Share-based compensation recognized was as follows:
Years ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019

Share-based compensation recognized, net
Restricted shares and RSUs $ 14,799 $ 14253  § 13,570

The maximum unrecognized cost for restricted stock units was $19.1 million as of December 31, 2021. The cost is expected to
be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.7 years.

Note 18—Employee Benefit Plan

EVERTEC, Inc. Puerto Rico Savings and Investment plan (“the EVERTEC Savings Plan”) was established in 2010, as a
defined contribution savings plan qualified under section 1165(e) of the Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code. Investments in the
plan are participant directed, and employer matching contributions are determined based on specific provisions of the
EVERTEC Savings Plan. Employees are fully vested in the employer’s contributions after five years of service. For the years
ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the costs incurred under the plan amounted to approximately $1.0 million, $0.9
million and $0.8 million, respectively.

Note 19—Total Other Income (Expenses)

For the year ended December 31, 2021, other income (expenses) is primarily comprised of $3.3 million in foreign currency
transaction gains and $0.8 million for a gain on sale of assets from Ticketpop.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, other income (expenses) is primarily comprised of $4.4 million in foreign currency
transaction gains.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, other income (expenses) is primarily comprised of $1.7 million in foreign currency
transaction losses.

Note 20—Income Tax

EVERTEC Group and Holdings are Puerto Rico limited liability companies that are treated as partnerships that are pass-
through entities for Puerto Rico tax purposes, therefore, taxable income flows through to EVERTEC, Inc.
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EVERTEC Group, Holdings and EVERTEC, Inc. entered into a Tax Payment Agreement pursuant to which EVERTEC Group
is required to make certain payments to Holdings or EVERTEC, Inc. for taxable periods or portions thereof occurring on or
after April 17, 2012 (the “Effective Date”). Under the Tax Payment Agreement, EVERTEC Group will make payments with
respect to any and all taxes (including estimated taxes) imposed under the laws of Puerto Rico, the United States of America
and any other jurisdiction or any political (including municipal) subdivision or authority or agency in Puerto Rico, the United
States of America or such other jurisdiction, that would have been imposed on EVERTEC Group if EVERTEC Group had been
a corporation for tax purposes of that jurisdiction, together with all interest and penalties with respect thereto (“Taxes”),
reduced by taking into account any applicable net operating losses or other tax attributes of Holdings or EVERTEC, Inc. that
reduce Holdings’ or EVERTEC, Inc.’s taxes in such period. The Tax Payment Agreement provides that the payments
thereunder shall not exceed the net amount of Taxes that Holdings and EVERTEC, Inc. actually owe to the appropriate taxing
authority for a taxable period. Further, the Tax Payment Agreement provides that if Holdings or EVERTEC, Inc. receives a tax
refund attributable to any taxable period or portion thereof occurring on or after the Effective Date, EVERTEC, Inc. shall be
required to recalculate the payment for such period required to be made by EVERTEC Group to Holdings or EVERTEC, Inc. If
the payment, as recalculated, is less than the amount of the payment EVERTEC Group already made to Holdings or
EVERTEQC, Inc. in respect of such period, Holdings or EVERTEC, Inc. shall promptly make a payment to EVERTEC Group in
the amount of such difference.

The components of income tax expense consisted of the following:

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019

Current tax provision $ 23,388 $ 22,907 $ 19,366

Deferred tax benefit (2,826) (3,905) (6,391)
Income tax expense $ 20,562 $ 19,002 $ 12,975

The Company conducts operations in Puerto Rico and certain countries in Latin America. As a result, the income tax expense
includes the effect of taxes paid to the government of Puerto Rico as well as foreign jurisdictions. The following table presents
the components of income tax expense and its segregation based on location of operations:

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Income before income tax provision
Puerto Rico $ 148,331 $ 98,608 $ 89,667
United States 622 3,953 4,047
Foreign countries 32,752 21,292 22,961
Total income before income tax provision $ 181,705 $ 123,853 $ 116,675
Current tax provision
Puerto Rico $ 6,792 $ 7,260 $ 7,550
United States 137 612 339
Foreign countries 16,459 15,035 11,477
Total current tax provision $ 23,388 $ 22,907 $ 19,366
Deferred tax (benefit) provision
Puerto Rico $ (2,428) $ (2,087) $ (4,109)
United States 109 1,041 (216)
Foreign countries (507) (2,859) (2,066)
Total deferred tax benefit $ (2,826) $ (3,905) $ (6,391)

Taxes payable to foreign countries by EVERTEC’s subsidiaries will be paid by such subsidiary and the corresponding liability
and expense will be presented in EVERTEC’s consolidated financial statements.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had $99.1 million and $80.2 million of unremitted earnings from foreign
subsidiaries, respectively. The Company has not recognized a deferred tax liability on undistributed earnings for the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries because these earnings are intended to be indefinitely reinvested. The amount of the unrecognized deferred
tax liability depends on judgment required to analyze the withholding tax due, the applicable tax law and factual circumstances
in effect at the time of any such distributions. EVERTEC believes it is not practicable at this time to reliably determine the
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amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability related to the Company’s undistributed earnings. If circumstances change and it
becomes apparent that some or all of the undistributed earnings of a subsidiary will be remitted, and income taxes have not been
recognized by the parent entity, the parent entity shall accrue as an expense of the current period income taxes attributable to
that remittance.

On October 19, 2012, EVERTEC Group was granted a tax exemption under the Tax Incentive Act No. 73 of 2008. Under this
grant, EVERTEC Group will benefit from a preferential income tax rate on industrial development income, as well as from tax
exemptions with respect to its municipal and property tax obligations for certain activities derived from its data processing
operations in Puerto Rico. The grant has a term of 15 years effective as of January 1, 2012 with respect to income tax
obligations and January 1, 2013 with respect to municipal and property tax obligations. Industrial development income under
this grant is subject to a preferential rate of 4%.

The grant contains customary commitments, conditions, and representations that EVERTEC Group will be required to comply
with in order to maintain the grant. The more significant commitments include: (i) maintaining at least 700 employees in
EVERTEC Group's Puerto Rico data processing operations, (ii) investing at least $200.0 million in building, machinery,
equipment or computer programs to be used in Puerto Rico during the effective term of the grant (to be made over four-year
capital investment cycles in $50.0 million increments); and (iii) 80% of EVERTEC Group employees must be residents of
Puerto Rico. Failure to meet the requirements could result, among other things, in reductions of the benefits of the grant or
revocation of the grant in its entirety, which could result in EVERTEC, Inc. paying additional taxes or other payments relative
to what would be required to pay to other municipal agencies if the full benefits of the grant are not available.

On October 11, 2011, Evertec Group was granted a tax exemption under Tax Incentive Law No. 73 of 2008, retroactively to
December 1, 2009. Under this grant, activities derived from consulting and data processing services provided outside Puerto
Rico are subject to a preferred rate that declines gradually from 7% to 4% by December 1, 2013. After this date, the rate
remains at 4% until its expiration on November 30, 2024.

In addition, in August 2018, the Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company approved the requested extension of a grant
under Tax Incentive Law No. 135 of 1997 for EVERTEC Group. Under this grant, activities derived from certain development
and installation service in excess of a determined income are subject to a fixed tax rate of 10% for a 10-year period from
January 1, 2018.
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The following table presents the components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities:
December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020
Deferred tax assets (“DTA”)
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 175 $ 223
Unearned income 10,475 11,058
Lease liability 2,655 3,410
Share-based compensation 1,181 1,163
Debt issuance costs 132 189
Accrued liabilities 3,263 1,828
Derivative liability 1,036 2,070
Accrual of contract maintenance cost 84 110
Impairment of asset 290 310
Other 1,596 1,649
Total gross deferred tax assets 20,887 22,010
Deferred tax liabilities (“DTL”)
Capitalized salaries 2,193 2,095
Difference between the assigned values and the tax basis of assets and liabilities
recognized in business combinations 7,978 10,507
Right of use asset 2,707 3,340
Other 3,468 3,086
Total gross deferred tax liabilities 16,346 19,028
Deferred tax asset (liability), net $ 4,541 $ 2,982

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the net deferred tax asset amounted to $5.9 million and $3.9 million, respectively, with a
valuation allowance of approximately $1.4 million and $0.9 million, respectively, included as part of other deferred tax assets,
for a net deferred tax asset after valuation allowance of approximately $4.5 million and $3.0 million, respectively.

Pursuant to the provision of the PR Code, net operating losses (“NOL”) can be carried forward for a period of seven, ten or
twelve taxable years, depending on the taxable year generated. Act 72 of May 29, 2015, limited the amount of NOLs deduction
to 80% for regular tax and 70% for alternative minimum tax (“AMT”) for taxable years commencing after December 31, 2014.
However, Act 257 of 2018 limits the deduction of NOLs to 90% for regular tax for tax years commencing after December 31,
2018. At December 31, 2021, the Company has $6.8 million, $0.6 million and $4.0 million in NOL carryforwards related to
Puerto Rico industrial development income, United States and foreign countries, respectively, available to offset future eligible
income. The NOL balance as of December 31, 2021 expires as follows:

(In thousands)

2026 $ 51
2028 688
2029 1,558
2030 4,112
2031 3,737
2033 178
Indefinitely 1,072

The Company recognizes the benefit of uncertain tax positions ("UTPs") only if it is more likely than not that the tax position
will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized
in the financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement.
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The following is a tabular reconciliation of the total amounts of UTPs:

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Balance, beginning of year $ 5,908 $ 9,146 $ 9,238
Gross increases—tax positions in prior period 431 1,335 —
Gross decreases—tax positions in prior period (101) (192) 92)
Lapse of statute of limitations (2,287) (4,381) —
Balance, end of year $ 3,951 $ 5,908 $ 9,146

As of December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, approximately $4.0 million, $5.9 million and $9.1 million, respectively, would have
affected the Company’s effective income tax rate, if recognized.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to UTB as part of income tax expense. During the years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company recognized an income tax expense of $0.4 million, $0.3 million and $0.4
million, respectively, related to interest and penalties. The amount accrued for interest and penalties at December 31, 2021 and
2020 was $1.6 million and $2.6 million, respectively. The Company estimates that it is reasonably possible that the Puerto Rico
liability for uncertain tax position relating to the net operating loss created by transaction cost will decrease by approximately
$3.6 million in the next 12 months as a result of the statute of limitations. The Company believes it has sufficient accruals for
contingent tax liabilities.

In connection with tax return examinations, contingencies can arise that generally result from different interpretations of tax
laws and regulations as they pertain to the amount, timing or inclusion of revenues and expenses in taxable income, or the
ability to utilize tax credits to reduce income taxes payable. While it is probable, based on the potential outcome of the
Company’s Puerto Rico and foreign tax examinations or the statute of limitations for specific jurisdictions, that the liability for
UTBs may increase or decrease within the next twelve months, the Company does not expect any such change would have a
material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flow.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to Puerto Rico income tax as well as income tax of multiple foreign jurisdictions.
A significant majority of the income tax is from Puerto Rico and Costa Rica. The income tax returns for 2017, 2018, 2019, and
2020 are currently open for examination for both jurisdictions, while 2014 and 2015 are also open for examination for Costa
Rica.

The income tax expense differs from the amount computed by applying the Puerto Rico statutory income tax rate of 37.5% to
the income before income taxes as a result of the following:

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Computed income tax at statutory rates $ 68,139 §$ 46,445 $ 43,753
Differences in tax rates due to multiple jurisdictions 2,003 839 1,058
Excess tax benefits on share-based compensation (1,023) (1,094) (1,779)
Effect of income subject to tax-exemption grant (46,762) (31,347) (31,424)
Unrecognized tax (benefit) expense (3,388) 1,322 32)
Other, net 1,593 2,837 1,399
Income tax expense $ 20,562 $ 19,002 $ 12,975
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Note 21—Net Income Per Common Share

The reconciliation of the numerator and the denominator of the earnings per common share is as follows:

Years ended December 31,

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 2021 2020 2019

Net income attributable to EVERTEC, Inc.’s common

stockholders $ 161,130 $ 104,436 $ 103,469
Less: non-forfeitable dividends on restricted stock — — 3

Net income available to EVERTEC, Inc.'s common shareholders $ 161,130 $ 104,436 $ 103,466

Weighted average common shares outstanding 72,053,795 71,943,965 72,099,755

Weighted average potential dilutive common shares ¢ 816,790 1,107,240 1,376,008

Weighted average common shares outstanding—assuming

dilution 72,870,585 73,051,205 73,475,763

Net income per common share—basic $ 224 % 145 §$ 1.44

Net income per common share—diluted $ 221 § 143 § 1.41

€)) Potential common shares consist of common stock issuable under RSUs awards using the treasury stock method.

Refer to Note 16 for a detail of dividends declared and paid during 2021 and 2020.

Note 22—Related Party Transactions

The following table presents the Company’s transactions with related parties for each of the periods presented below:

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Total revenues '@ $ 245613 $ 226,074 $ 209,053
Cost of revenues $ 2,610 $ 4317 $ 5,094
Rent and other fees $ 7,487 $ 8320 $ 8,519
Interest earned from an affiliate

Interest income $ 647 $ 391 % 161

(N Popular, Inc. ("Popular") revenues as a percentage of total revenues were 42%, 44% and 43%, respectively, for each of
the periods presented above.

2) Includes revenues generated from investee accounted for under the equity method of $0.3 million, $0.6 million and $1.1
million for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, EVERTEC had the following balances arising from transactions with related parties:

December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020

Cash and restricted cash deposits in affiliated bank $ 187,602 $ 126,189

Other due/to from affiliate

Accounts receivable $ 38,120 $ 28,419
Prepaid expenses and other assets $ 1,763 $ 4,678
Operating lease right-of use assets $ 13,533 $ 17,099
Other long-term assets $ 2,853 § —
Accounts payable $ 5,601 $ 4,607
Unearned income $ 40,982 $ 35,807
Operating lease liabilities $ 14,019 $ 17,781

The balance of cash and restricted cash deposits in an affiliated bank was included within the cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash line items in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Due from affiliates mainly included the amounts

F-36
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outstanding related to processing and information technology services billed to Popular subsidiaries according to the terms of
the MSA under which EVERTEC Group has a contract to provide such services for at least 15 years on an exclusive basis for
the duration of the agreement on commercial terms consistent with historical pricing practices among the parties. This amount
was included in the accounts receivable, net in the consolidated balance sheets.

Note 23—Commitments and Contingencies

EVERTEC is a defendant in a number of legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. Based on the opinion of
legal counsel, management believes that the final disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the
business, results of operations or financial condition of the Company. The Company has identified certain claims in which a
loss may be incurred, but in the aggregate the loss would be minimal. For other claims, where the proceedings are in an initial
phase, the Company is unable to estimate the range of possible loss for such legal proceedings. However, the Company at this
time believes that any loss related to these latter claims will not be material.

Leases

The Company has operating leases for certain office facilities, buildings, telecommunications and other equipment; and finance
leases for certain equipment. The Company’s lease contracts have remaining terms ranging from 1 year to 8 years, some of
which may include options to extend the leases for up to 5 years, and some which may include the option to terminate the lease
within 1 year.

Total lease cost consisted of the following:

Years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2021 2020
Operating lease cost $ 6,948 $ 7,025
Variable lease cost 2,472 3,182

Total lease costs 9,420 $ 10,207
Other Balance Sheet information related to operating leases was as follows:
December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for operating lease obligations 178 $ 3,496
Weighted average remaining lease term, in years 4 5
Weighted Average Discount Rate 2.3% 2.8%
The following table presents the balance of Operating lease obligations:

December 31,
(In thousands) 2021 2020
Operating lease liability - current 5,580 5,830
Operating lease liability - long-term 16,456 22,402
Total operating lease liabilities 22,036 $ 28,232
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Future minimum operating lease payments at December 31, 2021 were as follows:
(In thousands)

2022 6,387
2023 6,036
2024 5,123
2025 4,072
2026 871
Thereafter 1,617
Total future minimum lease payments 24,106
Less: imputed interest (2,070)
Total $ 22,036

Note 24—Segment Information

The Company operates in four business segments: Payment Services - Puerto Rico & Caribbean, Payment Services - Latin
America (collectively "Payment Services segments"), Merchant Acquiring, and Business Solutions.

The Payment Services - Puerto Rico & Caribbean segment revenues are comprised of revenues related to providing access to
the ATH debit network and other card networks to financial institutions, including related services such as authorization,
processing, management and recording of ATM and point of sale ("POS") transactions, ATM management and monitoring,
ATH Movil and ATH Business. The segment revenues also include revenues from card processing services (such as credit and
debit card processing, authorization and settlement and fraud monitoring and control to debit or credit issuers), payment
processing services (such as payment and billing products for merchants, businesses and financial institutions) and EBT (which
principally consist of services to the government of Puerto Rico for the delivery of benefits to participants). For ATH debit
network and processing services, revenues are primarily driven by the number of transactions processed. Revenues are derived
primarily from network fees, transaction switching and processing fees, and the leasing of POS devices. For card issuer
processing, revenues are primarily dependent upon the number of cardholder accounts on file, transactions and authorizations
processed, the number of cards embossed and other processing services. For EBT services, revenues are primarily derived from
the number of beneficiaries on file.

The Payment Services - Latin America segment revenues consist of revenues related to providing access to the ATH network of
ATM:s and other card networks to financial institutions, including related services such as authorization, processing,
management and recording of ATM and POS transactions, and ATM management and monitoring. The segment revenues also
include revenues from card processing services (such as credit and debit card processing, authorization and settlement and fraud
monitoring and control to debit or credit issuers), payment processing services (such as payment and billing products for
merchants, businesses and financial institutions), as well as licensed software solutions for risk and fraud management and card
payment processing. For network and processing services, revenues are primarily driven by the number of transactions
processed. Revenues are derived primarily from network fees, transaction switching and processing fees, and the leasing of
POS devices. For card issuer processing, revenues are primarily dependent upon the number of cardholder accounts on file,
transactions and authorizations processed, the number of cards embossed and other processing services.

The Merchant Acquiring segment consists of revenues from services that allow merchants to accept electronic methods of
payment. In the Merchant Acquiring segment, revenues include a discount fee and membership fees charged to merchants, debit
network fees and rental fees from POS devices and other equipment, net of credit card interchange and assessment fees charged
by credit cards associations (such as VISA or MasterCard) or payment networks. The discount fee is generally a percentage of
the transaction value. EVERTEC also charges merchants for other services that are unrelated to the number of transactions or
the transaction value.

The Business Solutions segment consists of revenues from a full suite of business process management solutions in various
product areas such as core bank processing, network hosting and management, IT professional services, business process
outsourcing, item processing, cash processing, and fulfillment. Core bank processing and network services revenues are derived
in part from a recurrent fixed fee and from fees based on the number of accounts on file (i.e., savings or checking accounts,
loans, etc.) or computer resources utilized. Revenues from other processing services within the Business Solutions segment are
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generally volume-based and depend on factors such as the number of accounts processed. In addition, EVERTEC is a reseller
of hardware and software products and these resale transactions are generally non-recurring.

In addition to the four operating segments described above, Management identified certain functional cost areas that operate
independently and do not constitute businesses in themselves. These areas could neither be concluded as operating segments
nor could they be combined with any other operating segments. Therefore, these areas are aggregated and presented as
“Corporate and Other” category in the financial statements alongside the operating segments. The Corporate and Other category
consists of corporate overhead expenses, intersegment eliminations, certain leveraged activities and other non-operating and
miscellaneous expenses that are not included in the operating segments. The overhead and leveraged costs relate to activities
such as:

*  marketing,

*  corporate finance and accounting,

*  human resources,

¢ legal,

e risk management functions,

e internal audit,

e corporate debt related costs,

* non-operating depreciation and amortization expenses generated as a result of merger and acquisition activity,

e intersegment revenues and expenses, and

*  other non-recurring fees and expenses that are not considered when management evaluates financial performance at a
segment level.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") reviews the operating segments separate financial information to assess
performance and to allocate resources. Management evaluates the operating results of each of its operating segments based
upon revenues and Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA further adjusted to exclude unusual items and
other adjustments. Adjusted EBITDA, as it relates to operating segments, is presented in conformity with ASC 280, Segment
Reporting, given that it is reported to the CODM for purposes of allocating resources. Segment asset disclosure is not used by
the CODM as a measure of segment performance since the segment evaluation is driven by revenues and adjusted EBITDA. As
such, segment assets are not disclosed in the notes to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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The following tables set forth information about the Company’s operations by its four business segments for the periods

indicated:
December 31, 2021
Payment
Services - Payment
Puerto Rico & Services - Merchant Business Corporate and
(In thousands) Caribbean Latin America  Acquiring, net Solutions Other Total
Revenues § 155392 § 105963 $§ 143965 $§ 243,807 $ (59,331) $§ 589,796
Operating costs and expenses 84,742 86,152 75,795 150,433 (3,840) 393,282
Depreciation and amortization 16,085 11,395 3,583 18,930 25,077 75,070
Non-operating income (expenses) 842 8,216 1,107 3,056 (7,109) 6,112
EBITDA 87,577 39,422 72,860 115,360 (37,523) 277,696
Compensation and benefits ® 1,702 3,080 1,012 1,775 7,575 15,144
Transaction, refinancing, and
other fees @ 660 — — (647) 1,965 1,978
Adjusted EBITDA $ 89,939 § 42,502 $ 73872 § 116,488 $ (27,983) $ 294818
e8) Corporate and Other consists of corporate overhead, certain leveraged activities, other non-operating expenses and

intersegment eliminations. Intersegment revenue eliminations predominantly reflect the $42.4 million processing fee
from Payments Services - Puerto Rico & Caribbean to Merchant Acquiring, intercompany software developments and
transaction processing of $9.2 million from Payment Services- Latin America to both Payment Services- Puerto Rico &
Caribbean and Business Solutions, and transaction processing and monitoring fees of $7.6 million from Payment
Services - Puerto Rico & Caribbean to Payment Services - Latin America.

2) Primarily represents share-based compensation and severance payments.
3) Primarily represents fees and expenses associated with corporate transactions as defined in the 2018 Credit Agreement,
the elimination of non-cash equity earnings from our 19.99% equity investment in Consorcio de Tarjetas Dominicanas
S.A., net of dividends received, a software impairment charge and a gain from sale of assets.
December 31, 2020
Payment
Services - Payment
Puerto Rico & Services - Merchant Business Corporate and
(In thousands) Caribbean Latin America  Acquiring, net Solutions Other Total
Revenues § 1247771 $ 84,641 § 109,788 $ 234965 § (43,577) $ 510,588
Operating costs and expenses 72,968 73,030 58,163 141,446 23,589 369,196
Depreciation and amortization 13,455 11,299 1,905 17,551 27,308 71,518
Non-operating income (expenses) 202 6,934 650 1,938 (3,691) 6,033
EBITDA 65,460 29,844 54,180 113,008 (43,549) 218,943
Compensation and benefits 987 2,934 926 1,794 7,742 14,383
Transaction, refinancing, exit
activity and other fees 500 — — — 6,641 7,141
Adjusted EBITDA $ 66,947 § 32,778  § 55,106 § 114802 $  (29,166) $ 240,467
(1) Corporate and Other consists of corporate overhead, certain leveraged activities, other non-operating expenses and
intersegment eliminations. Intersegment revenue eliminations predominantly reflect the $34.6 million processing fee
from Payments Services - Puerto Rico & Caribbean to Merchant Acquiring and intercompany software sale and
developments of $9.0 million from Payment Services- Latin America to Payment Services- Puerto Rico & Caribbean.
) Primarily represents share-based compensation.
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3) Primarily represents fees and expenses associated with corporate transactions as defined in the 2018 Credit Agreement,
an impairment charge and the elimination of non-cash equity earnings from our 19.99% equity investment in Consorcio
de Tarjetas Dominicanas S.A.

December 31, 2019

Payment
Services - Payment
Puerto Rico & Services - Merchant Business Corporate and
(In thousands) Caribbean Latin America  Acquiring, net Solutions Other @ Total
Revenues § 125,544 % 84,453 § 106,388 $ 216,662 $ (45,673) $ 487,374
Operating costs and expenses 61,396 65,701 62,098 138,224 15,453 342,872
Depreciation and amortization 11,646 9,930 1,814 16,529 28,163 68,082
Non-operating income (expenses) 1,781 286 48 340 (2,688) (233)
EBITDA 77,575 28,968 46,152 95,307 (35,651) 212,351
Compensation and benefits ® 1,034 1,501 1,004 2,114 8,145 13,798
Transaction, refinancing, and
other fees & — 210 — — (163) 47
Adjusted EBITDA $ 78,609 § 30,679 § 47,156 $ 97,421 §  (27,669) § 226,196
(1) Corporate and Other consists of corporate overhead, certain leveraged activities, other non-operating expenses and

intersegment eliminations. Intersegment revenue eliminations predominantly reflect the $39.0 million processing fee
from Payments Services - Puerto Rico & Caribbean to Merchant Acquiring, intercompany software sale and
developments of $6.7 million from Payment Services-Latin America to Payment Services-Puerto Rico & Caribbean.
2) Primarily represents share-based compensation, other compensation expense and severance payments.
3) Primarily represents fees and expenses associated with corporate transactions as defined in the 2018 Credit Agreement
and the elimination of non-cash equity earnings from our 19.99% equity investment in Consorcio de Tarjetas
Dominicanas S.A., net of cash dividends received.

The reconciliation of EBITDA to consolidated net income is as follows:

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Total EBITDA $ 277,696 $ 218,943 §$ 212,351
Less:
Income tax expense 20,562 19,002 12,975
Interest expense, net 20,921 23,572 27,594
Depreciation and amortization 75,070 71,518 68,082
Net Income $ 161,143 $ 104,851 $ 103,700

The geographic segment information below is classified based on the geographic location of the Company’s subsidiaries:

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Revenues
Puerto Rico $ 473,647 $ 418,151 $ 392,628
Caribbean 18,917 14,873 15,950
Latin America 97,232 77,564 78,796
Total Revenues $ 589,796 $ 510,588 $ 487,374

(1 Revenues are based on subsidiaries’ country of domicile.

Major customers
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For the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company had one major customer which accounted for
approximately $245.3 million or 42%, $225.5 million or 44%, and $208.0 million or 43%, respectively, of total revenues. See
Note 21.

The Company’s next largest customer, the Government of Puerto Rico, consolidating all individual agencies and public
corporations, represented 6%, 8%, and 7% of the Company’s total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

Note 25—Subsequent Events

On February 15, 2022, the Board declared a regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.05 per share on the Company’s outstanding
shares of common stock. The dividend will be paid on March 25, 2022 to stockholders of record as of the close of business on
February 25, 2022. The Board anticipates declaring this dividend in future quarters on a regular basis; however future
declarations of dividends are subject to Board of Directors’ approval and may be adjusted as business needs or market
conditions change.

On February 24, 2022, the Company announced that it had signed a definitive agreement with Banco Popular de Puerto Rico
and its parent, Popular, to sell certain assets in exchange for Evertec stock held by Popular with an approximate value of

$197 million. The Company also entered into an agreement to modify and extend certain commercial agreements with Popular
that had an initial term ending in 2025. The transaction is expected to close during the mid-year 2022 and is subject to
customary closing conditions.

The Company also announced on February 24, 2022 that it entered into a share purchase agreement to acquire 100% of the
outstanding shares of BBR SpA, a Santiago, Chile based payment solutions company with operating offices in Peru. The
aggregate purchase price for the shares is CLP 48,600 million, approximately USD$60 million at current exchange rates. The
transaction is subject to regulatory approval and is expected to close in the second or third quarter of 2022.



Schedule I

EVERTEC, Inc. Condensed Financial Statements

Parent Company Only

Condensed Balance Sheets

(In thousands)
Assets
Current assets:

Cash

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets
Investment in subsidiaries, at equity
Deferred tax asset, net
Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:

Accrued liabilities

Accounts payable

Income tax payable

Total current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

December 31,

2021 2020

1,680 $ 1,680

— 470
1,680 2,150
468,651 342,385
4,062 2,786
474393 $ 347,321
1259 3 272
1,448 2,777
1,834 —
4,541 3,049
3,640 6,530
8,181 9,579

719 721
7,565 5,339
506,051 379,937
(48,123) (48,255)
466,212 337,742
474393 $ 347,321
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Condensed Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

(In thousands)

Non-operating income (expenses)

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries

Interest income

Other expenses
Income before income taxes

Income tax benefit
Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Loss on cash flow hedges

Unrealized gain on change in fair value of debt securities
available-for-sale

Total comprehensive income

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid

Repurchase of common stock

Withholding taxes paid on share-based compensation
Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash

Cash at beginning of the period

Cash at end of the period

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019
157,787 $ 103,308 $ 101,078
157 234 367
(2,563) (1,594) (1,595)
155,381 101,948 99,850
(5,749) (2,489) (3,619)
161,130 104,437 103,469
(11,129) (7,970) 4,754
11,151 (10,275) (10,974)
109 — —
161,261 $ 86,192 § 97,249
Years ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019
47,590 $ 29,817 $ 55,092
(14,409) (14,382) (14,420)
(24,388) (7,300) (31,822)

(8,793) (8,134) (8,849)

(47,590) (29,816) (55,091)
— 1 1
1,680 1,679 1,678
1,680 § 1,680 § 1,679
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